

No. 62
JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

Senate Chamber, Lansing, Tuesday, September 25, 2001.

10:00 a.m.

The Senate was called to order by the President, Lieutenant Governor Dick Posthumus.

The roll was called by the Secretary of the Senate, who announced that a quorum was present.

Bennett—present
Bullard—present
Byrum—present
Cherry—present
DeBeaussaert—present
DeGrow—present
Dingell—excused
Dunaskiss—present
Emerson—present
Emmons—present
Garcia—present
Gast—present
Goschka—present

Gougeon—present
Hammerstrom—present
Hart—present
Hoffman—present
Johnson—present
Koivisto—present
Leland—present
McCotter—present
McManus—present
Miller—present
Murphy—present
North—present

Peters—present
Schuette—present
Schwarz—present
Scott—present
Shugars—present
Sikkema—present
Smith—present
Steil—present
Stille—present
Van Regenmorter—present
Vaughn—excused
Young—present

Pastor Rueben Richardson of New Beginning Church of Christ of Grand Rapids offered the following invocation:

I would like you to pray with me the 23rd Psalm: "The Lord is my shepherd; I shall not want. He maketh me to lie down in green pastures: he leadeth me beside the still waters. He restoreth my soul: He leadeth me in the paths of righteousness for his name's sake. Yea, though I walk through the valley of the shadow of death, I will fear no evil: for the Lord is with me; thy rod and thy staff they comfort me. Thou prepareth a table before me in the presence of mine enemies: thou anointest my head with oil; my cup runneth over. Surely goodness and mercy shall follow me all the days of my life: and I will dwell in the house of the Lord forever."

Our God and our Father, I invoke Your blessings upon these chambers and ask that thy blesseth anointing go through these walls. Protect this body, lend to them thy wisdom, and help them to look out for the poor and for the needy and for those who are hopeless and think they have no hope. I am asking this in the name of Jesus. Sanctify the minds, and share with them thy wisdom. In Jesus' name, thank God, and this body says Amen.

Motions and Communications

Senator Emmons moved that Senator Dunaskiss be temporarily excused from today's session.
The motion prevailed.

Senator Emerson moved that Senator Dingell be excused from today's session.
The motion prevailed.

Senator Emerson moved that Senator Vaughn be excused from this week's sessions.
The motion prevailed.

The Secretary announced that pursuant to rule 2.109 of the Standing Rules of the Senate, the following expense reports have been filed with the Secretary of the Senate for the quarter from April 1, 2001 through June 30, 2001, and are available in the Secretary's office during business hours for public inspection:

Committee

Appropriations
Banking and Financial Institutions
Detroit Metro Airport Review
Economic Development, International Trade
and Regulatory Affairs
Education
Families, Mental Health and Human Services
Farming, Agribusiness and Food Systems
Finance
Financial Services
Government Operations
Health Policy
Human Resources and Labor
Hunting, Fishing and Forestry
Judiciary
Local, Urban and State Affairs
Natural Resources and Environmental Affairs
Reapportionment
Senior Citizens and Veterans Affairs
Technology and Energy
Transportation and Tourism
Appropriations Subcommittee on Career
Development Strategic Fund Agency
Appropriations Subcommittee on Community
Health
Appropriations Subcommittee on Department of
Education

Chairperson

Senator Harry Gast
Senator Valde Garcia
Senator Glenn Steil
Senator Bill Schuette

Senator Loren Bennett
Senator Beverly Hammerstrom
Senator George McManus
Senator Joanne Emmons
Senator Bill Bullard
Senator Thaddeus McCotter
Senator Dale Shugars
Senator Glenn Steil
Senator Philip Hoffman
Senator William Van Regenmorter
Senator Thaddeus McCotter
Senator Ken Sikkema
Senator Bill Schuette
Senator Mat Dunaskiss
Senator Mat Dunaskiss
Senator Bill Bullard
Senator Shirley Johnson

Senator Joel Gougeon

Senator Leon Stille

Appropriations Subcommittee on Family Independence Agency	Senator Mike Goschka
Appropriations Subcommittee on Higher Education	Senator John Schwarz
Appropriations Subcommittee on Retirement	Senator Joel Gougeon
Appropriations Subcommittee on School Aid	Senator Leon Stille
Appropriations Subcommittee on Transportation	Senator Philip Hoffman

The Secretary announced the printing and placement in the members' files on Thursday, September 20, of:

Senate Bill Nos.	621	622	623	624	625	626	627	628	629	630	631	632	633	634
	635	636	637	638	639	640								
House Bill No.	5080													

The Secretary announced the printing and placement in the members' files on Monday, September 24, of:

Senate Bill Nos.	641	642	643	644	645	646	647	648	649	650	651	652	653	654
	655	656	657	658	659	660	661	662	663	664				
Senate Joint Resolution	S													
House Bill Nos.	5045	5046	5047	5048	5049	5050	5051	5052	5053	5054	5055	5056	5057	5058
	5059	5060	5061	5062	5063	5064	5065	5066	5067	5068	5069	5070	5071	5072
	5073	5074	5075	5076	5077	5078	5079							

Senator Dunaskiss entered the Senate Chamber.

By unanimous consent the Senate proceeded to the order of
Conference Reports

House Bill No. 4371, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 22a, 22b, 24, 26a, 31a, 31d, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32f, 32g, 32h, 33, 41, 51a, 51c, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 94a, 96, 97, 98, 99, 107, 108, and 147 (MCL 388.1606, 388.1611, 388.1611f, 388.1611g, 388.1620, 388.1620j, 388.1622a, 388.1622b, 388.1624, 388.1626a, 388.1631a, 388.1631d, 388.1632a, 388.1632b, 388.1632c, 388.1632d, 388.1632e, 388.1632f, 388.1632g, 388.1632h, 388.1633, 388.1641, 388.1651a, 388.1651c, 388.1653a, 388.1654, 388.1656, 388.1657, 388.1661a, 388.1662, 388.1663, 388.1667, 388.1668, 388.1674, 388.1681, 388.1694, 388.1694a, 388.1696, 388.1697, 388.1698, 388.1699, 388.1707, 388.1708, and 388.1747), sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 24, 26a, 31a, 31d, 33, 41, 51a, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 99, 107, and 147 as amended and sections 22a, 22b, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32g, 32h, 51c, 94a, 96, 97, 98, and 108 as added by 2000 PA 297 and section 32f as amended by 2000 PA 388; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

The House of Representatives has adopted the report of the Committee of Conference and ordered that the bill be given immediate effect.

The Conference Report was read as follows:

FIRST CONFERENCE REPORT

The Committee of Conference on the matters of difference between the two Houses concerning
House Bill No. 4371, entitled

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 22a, 22b, 24, 26a, 31a, 31d, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32f, 32g, 32h, 33, 41, 51a, 51c, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 94a, 96, 97, 98, 99, 107, 108, and 147 (MCL 388.1606, 388.1611, 388.1611f, 388.1611g, 388.1620, 388.1620j, 388.1622a, 388.1622b, 388.1624, 388.1626a, 388.1631a, 388.1631d, 388.1632a, 388.1632b, 388.1632c, 388.1632d, 388.1632e, 388.1632f, 388.1632g, 388.1632h, 388.1633, 388.1641, 388.1651a, 388.1651c, 388.1653a, 388.1654, 388.1656, 388.1657, 388.1661a, 388.1662, 388.1663, 388.1667, 388.1668, 388.1674, 388.1681, 388.1694, 388.1694a, 388.1696, 388.1697, 388.1698, 388.1699, 388.1707, 388.1708, and 388.1747), sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 24, 26a, 31a, 31d, 33, 41, 51a, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 99, 107, and 147 as amended and sections 22a, 22b, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32g, 32h, 51c, 94a, 96, 97, 98, and 108 as added by 2000 PA 297 and section 32f as amended by 2000 PA 388; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

Recommends:

First: That the House and Senate agree to the Substitute of the Senate as passed by the Senate, amended to read as follows:

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "The state school aid act of 1979," by amending sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 22a, 22b, 22c, 24, 25b, 26a, 31a, 31d, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32f, 32g, 32h, 33, 41, 51a, 51c, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 94a, 95, 96, 98, 99, 107, 108, and 147 (MCL 388.1606, 388.1611, 388.1611f, 388.1611g, 388.1620, 388.1620j, 388.1622a, 388.1622b, 388.1622c, 388.1624, 388.1625b, 388.1626a, 388.1631a, 388.1631d, 388.1632a, 388.1632b, 388.1632c, 388.1632d, 388.1632e, 388.1632f, 388.1632g, 388.1632h, 388.1633, 388.1641, 388.1651a, 388.1651c, 388.1653a, 388.1654, 388.1656, 388.1657, 388.1661a, 388.1662, 388.1663, 388.1667, 388.1668, 388.1674, 388.1681, 388.1694, 388.1694a, 388.1695, 388.1696, 388.1698, 388.1699, 388.1707, 388.1708, and 388.1747), sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 24, 26a, 31a, 31d, 33, 41, 51a, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 99, 107, and 147 as amended and sections 22a, 22b, 22c, 25b, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32g, 32h, 51c, 94a, 95, 96, 98, and 108 as added by 2000 PA 297 and section 32f as amended by 2000 PA 388, and by adding sections 18d and 25c; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN ENACT:

Sec. 6. (1) "Center program" means a program operated by a district or intermediate district for special education pupils from several districts in programs for the autistically impaired, trainable mentally impaired, severely mentally impaired, severely multiply impaired, hearing impaired, physically and otherwise health impaired, and visually impaired. Programs for emotionally impaired pupils housed in buildings that do not serve regular education pupils also qualify. Unless otherwise approved by the department, a center program either shall serve all constituent districts within an intermediate district or shall serve several districts with less than 50% of the pupils residing in the operating district. In addition, special education center program pupils placed part-time in noncenter programs to comply with the least restrictive environment provisions of section 612 of part B of the individuals with disabilities education act, title VI of Public Law 91-230, 20 U.S.C. 1412, may be considered center program pupils for pupil accounting purposes for the time scheduled in either a center program or a noncenter program.

(2) "District pupil retention rate" means the proportion of pupils who have not dropped out of school in the immediately preceding school year and is equal to 1 minus the quotient of the number of pupils unaccounted for in the immediately preceding school year, as determined pursuant to subsection (3), divided by the pupils of the immediately preceding school year.

(3) "District pupil retention report" means a report of the number of pupils, excluding migrant and adult, in the district for the immediately preceding school year, adjusted for those pupils who have transferred into the district, transferred out of the district, transferred to alternative programs, and have graduated, to determine the number of pupils who are unaccounted for. The number of pupils unaccounted for shall be calculated as determined by the department.

(4) "Membership", except as otherwise provided in this act, means for ~~1999-2000 for a district, public school academy, university school, or intermediate district the sum of the product of .75 times the number of full-time equated pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the pupil membership count day for the current school year, plus the product of .25 times the final audited count from the supplemental count day for the immediately preceding school year. Beginning in 2000-2001, membership means for a district, public school academy, university school, or intermediate district the sum of the product of .8 times the number of full-time equated pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the pupil membership count day for the current school year, plus the product of .2 times the final audited count from the supplemental count day for the immediately preceding school year. All pupil counts used in this subsection are as determined by the department and calculated by adding the number of pupils registered for attendance plus pupils received by transfer and minus pupils lost as defined by rules promulgated by the superintendent, and as corrected by a subsequent department audit. The amount of the foundation allowance for a pupil in membership is determined under section 20. In making the calculation of membership, all of the following, as applicable, apply to determining the membership of a district, public school academy, university school, or intermediate district:~~

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, and pursuant to subsection (6), a pupil shall be counted in membership in the pupil's educating district or districts. An individual pupil shall not be counted for more than a total of 1.0 full-time equated membership.

(b) If a pupil is educated in a district other than the pupil's district of residence, if the pupil is not being educated as part of a cooperative education program, if the pupil's district of residence does not give the educating district its approval to count the pupil in membership in the educating district, and if the pupil is not covered by an exception specified in subsection (6) to the requirement that the educating district must have the approval of the pupil's district of residence to count the pupil in membership, the pupil shall not be counted in membership in any district.

(c) A special education pupil educated by the intermediate district shall be counted in membership in the intermediate district.

(d) A pupil placed by a court or state agency in an on-grounds program of a juvenile detention facility, a child caring institution, or a mental health institution, or a pupil funded under section 53a, shall be counted in membership in the district or intermediate district approved by the department to operate the program.

(e) A pupil enrolled in the Michigan schools for the deaf and blind shall be counted in membership in the pupil's intermediate district of residence.

(f) A pupil enrolled in a vocational education program supported by a millage levied over an area larger than a single district or in an area vocational-technical education program established pursuant to section 690 of the revised school code, MCL 380.690, shall be counted only in the pupil's district of residence.

(g) A pupil enrolled in a university school shall be counted in membership in the university school.

(h) A pupil enrolled in a public school academy shall be counted in membership in the public school academy.

(i) For a new district, university school, or public school academy beginning its operation after December 31, 1994, membership for the first 2 full or partial fiscal years of operation shall be determined as follows:

(i) If operations begin before the pupil membership count day for the fiscal year, membership is the average number of full-time equated pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the pupil membership count day for the current school year and on the supplemental count day for the current school year, as determined by the department and calculated by adding the number of pupils registered for attendance on the pupil membership count day plus pupils received by transfer and minus pupils lost as defined by rules promulgated by the superintendent, and as corrected by a subsequent department audit, plus the final audited count from the supplemental count day for the current school year, and dividing that sum by 2.

(ii) If operations begin after the pupil membership count day for the fiscal year and not later than the supplemental count day for the fiscal year, membership is the final audited count of the number of full-time equated pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the supplemental count day for the current school year.

(j) If a district is the authorizing body for a public school academy, then, in the first school year in which pupils are counted in membership on the pupil membership count day in the public school academy, the determination of the district's membership shall exclude from the district's pupil count for the immediately preceding supplemental count day any pupils who are counted in the public school academy on that first pupil membership count day who were also counted in the district on the immediately preceding supplemental count day.

(k) In a district, public school academy, university school, or intermediate district operating an extended school year program approved by the superintendent, a pupil enrolled, but not scheduled to be in regular daily attendance on a pupil membership count day, shall be counted.

(l) Pupils to be counted in membership shall be not less than 5 years of age on December 1 and less than 20 years of age on September 1 of the school year except a special education pupil who is enrolled and receiving instruction in a special education program approved by the department and not having a high school diploma who is less than 26 years of age as of September 1 of the current school year shall be counted in membership.

(m) An individual who has obtained a high school diploma shall not be counted in membership. An individual who has obtained a general education development (G.E.D.) certificate shall not be counted in membership. An individual participating in a job training program funded under former section 107a or a jobs program funded under former section 107b, administered by the Michigan strategic fund or the department of career development, or participating in any successor of either of those 2 programs, shall not be counted in membership.

(n) If a pupil counted in membership in a public school academy is also educated by a district or intermediate district as part of a cooperative education program, the pupil shall be counted in membership only in the public school academy, and the instructional time scheduled for the pupil in the district or intermediate district shall be included in the full-time equated membership determination under subdivision (q). However, for pupils receiving instruction in both a public school academy and in a district or intermediate district but not as a part of a cooperative education program, the following apply:

(i) If the public school academy provides instruction for at least 1/2 of the class hours specified in subdivision (q), the public school academy shall receive as its prorated share of the full-time equated membership for each of those pupils an amount equal to 1 times the product of the hours of instruction the public school academy provides divided by the number of hours specified in subdivision (q) for full-time equivalency, and the remainder of the full-time membership for each of those pupils shall be allocated to the district or intermediate district providing the remainder of the hours of instruction.

(ii) If the public school academy provides instruction for less than 1/2 of the class hours specified in subdivision (q), the district or intermediate district providing the remainder of the hours of instruction shall receive as its prorated share of the full-time equated membership for each of those pupils an amount equal to 1 times the product of the hours of instruction the district or intermediate district provides divided by the number of hours specified in subdivision (q) for full-time equivalency, and the remainder of the full-time membership for each of those pupils shall be allocated to the public school academy.

(o) An individual less than 16 years of age as of September 1 of the current school year who is being educated in an alternative education program shall not be counted in membership if there are also adult education participants being educated in the same program or classroom.

(p) The department shall give a uniform interpretation of full-time and part-time memberships.

(q) The number of class hours used to calculate full-time equated memberships shall be consistent with section 101(3). In determining full-time equated memberships for pupils who are enrolled in a postsecondary institution, a pupil shall not be considered to be less than a full-time equated pupil solely because of the effect of his or her postsecondary enrollment, including necessary travel time, on the number of class hours provided by the district to the pupil.

(r) Full-time equated memberships for pupils in kindergarten shall be determined by dividing the number of class hours scheduled and provided per year per kindergarten pupil by a number equal to $1/2$ the number used for determining full-time equated memberships for pupils in grades 1 to 12.

(s) For a district, university school, or public school academy that has pupils enrolled in a grade level that was not offered by the district, university school, or public school academy in the immediately preceding school year, the number of pupils enrolled in that grade level to be counted in membership is the average of the number of those pupils enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the pupil membership count day and the supplemental count day of the current school year, as determined by the department. Membership shall be calculated by adding the number of pupils registered for attendance in that grade level on the pupil membership count day plus pupils received by transfer and minus pupils lost as defined by rules promulgated by the superintendent, and as corrected by subsequent department audit, plus the final audited count from the supplemental count day for the current school year, and dividing that sum by 2.

(t) A pupil enrolled in a cooperative education program may be counted in membership in the pupil's district of residence with the written approval of all parties to the cooperative agreement.

(u) If, as a result of a disciplinary action, a district determines through the district's alternative or disciplinary education program that the best instructional placement for a pupil is in the pupil's home, if that placement is authorized in writing by the district superintendent and district alternative or disciplinary education supervisor, and if the district provides appropriate instruction as described in this subdivision to the pupil at the pupil's home, the district may count the pupil in membership on a pro rata basis, with the proration based on the number of hours of instruction the district actually provides to the pupil divided by the number of hours specified in subdivision (q) for full-time equivalency. For the purposes of this subdivision, a district shall be considered to be providing appropriate instruction if all of the following are met:

(i) The district provides at least 2 nonconsecutive hours of instruction per week to the pupil at the pupil's home under the supervision of a certificated teacher.

(ii) The district provides instructional materials, resources, and supplies, except computers, that are comparable to those otherwise provided in the district's alternative education program.

(iii) Course content is comparable to that in the district's alternative education program.

(iv) Credit earned is awarded to the pupil and placed on the pupil's transcript.

(v) A pupil enrolled in an alternative or disciplinary education program described in section 25 shall be counted in membership in the district or public school academy that expelled the pupil.

(w) If a pupil was enrolled in a public school academy on the pupil membership count day, if the public school academy's contract with its authorizing body is revoked, and if the pupil enrolls in a district within 45 days after the pupil membership count day, the department shall adjust the district's pupil count for the pupil membership count day to include the pupil in the count.

(x) ~~For 1999-2000, for a public school academy that has been in operation for at least 2 years and that suspended operations for at least 1 semester and is resuming operations, membership is the sum of the product of .75 times the number of full-time equated pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the first pupil membership count day or supplemental count day, whichever is first, occurring after operations resume, plus the product of .25 times the final audited count from the most recent pupil membership count day or supplemental count day that occurred before suspending operations, as determined by the superintendent. Beginning in 2000-2001, for~~ FOR a public school academy that has been in operation for at least 2 years and that suspended operations for at least 1 semester and is resuming operations, membership is the sum of the product of .8 times the number of full-time equated pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance on the first pupil membership count day or supplemental count day, whichever is first, occurring after operations resume, plus the product of .2 times the final audited count from the most recent pupil membership count day or supplemental count day that occurred before suspending operations, as determined by the superintendent.

(y) For 2000-2001 only, if a district's membership for ~~a particular~~ THAT fiscal year, as otherwise calculated under this subsection, would be less than 1,550 pupils, the district's membership for that fiscal year shall be considered to be THE MEMBERSHIP FIGURE CALCULATED UNDER THIS SUBDIVISION. FOR 2001-2002 ONLY, IF A DISTRICT'S MEMBERSHIP FOR THAT FISCAL YEAR, AS OTHERWISE CALCULATED UNDER THIS SUBSECTION, WOULD BE LESS THAN 1,550 PUPILS AND THE DISTRICT HAS 4.5 OR FEWER PUPILS PER SQUARE MILE, AS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT, THE DISTRICT'S MEMBERSHIP SHALL BE CONSIDERED TO BE THE MEMBERSHIP FIGURE CALCULATED UNDER THIS SUBSECTION. THE MEMBERSHIP FIGURE CALCULATED UNDER THIS SUBSECTION IS the greater of the following:

(i) The average of the district's membership for the 3-fiscal-year period ending with that fiscal year, calculated by adding the district's actual membership for that fiscal year, as otherwise calculated under this subsection, plus the district's membership AS CALCULATED UNDER THIS SUBDIVISION for each of the 2 immediately preceding fiscal years, and dividing the sum of those 3 membership figures by 3.

(ii) The district's actual membership as otherwise calculated under this subsection.

(5) "Public school academy" means a public school academy or strict discipline academy operating under the revised school code.

(6) "Pupil" means a person in membership in a public school. A district must have the approval of the pupil's district of residence to count the pupil in membership, except approval by the pupil's district of residence shall not be required for any of the following:

(a) A nonpublic part-time pupil enrolled in grades 1 to 12 in accordance with section 166b.

(b) A pupil receiving 1/2 or less of his or her instruction in a district other than the pupil's district of residence.

(c) A pupil enrolled in a public school academy or university school.

(d) A pupil enrolled in a district other than the pupil's district of residence under an intermediate district schools of choice pilot program as described in section 91a or former section 91 if the intermediate district and its constituent districts have been exempted from section 105.

(e) A pupil enrolled in a district other than the pupil's district of residence but within the same intermediate district if the educating district enrolls nonresident pupils in accordance with section 105.

(f) A pupil enrolled in a district other than the pupil's district of residence if the pupil has been continuously enrolled in the educating district since a school year in which the pupil enrolled in the educating district under section 105 or 105c and in which the educating district enrolled nonresident pupils in accordance with section 105 or 105c.

(g) A ~~nonresident~~ pupil who has made an official written complaint or whose parent or legal guardian has made an official written complaint to law enforcement officials and to school officials of the pupil's district of residence that the pupil has been the victim of a criminal sexual assault or other serious assault, if the official complaint either indicates that the assault occurred at school or that the assault was committed by 1 or more other pupils enrolled in the school the ~~nonresident~~ pupil would otherwise attend in the district of residence or by an employee of the district of residence. A person who intentionally makes a false report of a crime to law enforcement officials for the purposes of this subdivision is subject to section 411a of the Michigan penal code, 1931 PA 328, MCL 750.411a, which provides criminal penalties for that conduct. As used in this subdivision:

(i) "At school" means in a classroom, elsewhere on school premises, on a school bus or other school-related vehicle, or at a school-sponsored activity or event whether or not it is held on school premises.

(ii) "Serious assault" means an act that constitutes a felony violation of chapter XI of the Michigan penal code, 1931 PA 328, MCL 750.81 to 750.90g, or that constitutes an assault and infliction of serious or aggravated injury under section 81a of the Michigan penal code, 1931 PA 328, MCL 750.81a.

(h) A pupil enrolled in a district located in a contiguous intermediate district, as described in section 105c, if the educating district enrolls those nonresident pupils in accordance with section 105c.

(i) A pupil whose district of residence changed after the pupil membership count day and before the supplemental count day and who continues to be enrolled on the supplemental count day as a nonresident in the district in which he or she was enrolled as a resident on the pupil membership count day of the same school year.

(j) A pupil enrolled in an alternative education program operated by a district other than his or her district of residence who meets 1 or more of the following:

(i) The pupil has been suspended or expelled from his or her district of residence for any reason, including, but not limited to, a suspension or expulsion under section 1310, 1311, or 1311a of the revised school code, MCL 380.1310, 380.1311, and 380.1311a.

(ii) The pupil had previously dropped out of school.

(iii) The pupil is pregnant or is a parent.

(iv) The pupil has been referred to the program by a court.

(k) A pupil enrolled in the Michigan virtual high school, for the pupil's enrollment in the Michigan virtual high school.

However, if a district that is not a first class district educates pupils who reside in a first class district and if the primary instructional site for those pupils is located within the boundaries of the first class district, the educating district must have the approval of the first class district to count those pupils in membership. As used in this subsection, "first class district" means a district organized as a school district of the first class under the revised school code.

(7) "Pupil membership count day" of a district or intermediate district means:

(a) Except as provided in subdivision (b), the fourth Wednesday in September each school year.

(b) For a district or intermediate district maintaining school during the entire school year, the following days:

(i) Fourth Wednesday in July.

(ii) Fourth Wednesday in September.

(iii) Second Wednesday in February.

(iv) Fourth Wednesday in April.

(8) "Pupils in grades K to 12 actually enrolled and in regular daily attendance" means pupils in grades K to 12 in attendance and receiving instruction in all classes for which they are enrolled on the pupil membership count day or the supplemental count day, as applicable. A pupil who is absent from any of the classes in which the pupil is enrolled on the pupil membership count day or supplemental count day and who does not attend each of those classes during

the 10 consecutive school days immediately following the pupil membership count day or supplemental count day, except for a pupil who has been excused by the district, shall not be counted as 1.0 full-time equated membership. In addition, a pupil who is excused from attendance on the pupil membership count day or supplemental count day and who fails to attend each of the classes in which the pupil is enrolled within 30 calendar days after the pupil membership count day or supplemental count day shall not be counted as 1.0 full-time equated membership. Pupils not counted as 1.0 full-time equated membership due to an absence from a class shall be counted as a prorated membership for the classes the pupil attended. For purposes of this subsection, "class" means a period of time in 1 day when pupils and a certificated teacher or legally qualified substitute teacher are together and instruction is taking place.

(9) "Rule" means a rule promulgated pursuant to the administrative procedures act of 1969, 1969 PA 306, MCL 24.201 to 24.328.

(10) "The revised school code" means 1976 PA 451, MCL 380.1 to 380.1852.

(11) "School fiscal year" means a fiscal year that commences July 1 and continues through June 30.

(12) "State board" means the state board of education.

(13) "Superintendent", unless the context clearly refers to a district or intermediate district superintendent, means the superintendent of public instruction described in section 3 of article VIII of the state constitution of 1963.

(14) "Supplemental count day" means the day on which the supplemental pupil count is conducted under section 6a.

(15) "Tuition pupil" means a pupil of school age attending school in a district other than the pupil's district of residence for whom tuition may be charged. Tuition pupil does not include a pupil who is a special education pupil or a pupil described in subsection (6)(d) to (k). A pupil's district of residence shall not require a high school tuition pupil, as provided under section 111, to attend another school district after the pupil has been assigned to a school district.

(16) "State school aid fund" means the state school aid fund established in section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963.

(17) "Taxable value" means the taxable value of property as determined under section 27a of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.27a.

(18) "Total state aid" or "total state school aid" means the total combined amount of all funds due to a district, intermediate district, or other entity under all of the provisions of this act.

(19) "University school" means an instructional program operated by a public university under section 23 that meets the requirements of section 23.

Sec. 11. (1) ~~For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2000, there is appropriated for the public schools of this state and certain other state purposes relating to education the sum of \$9,623,215,800.00 from the state school aid fund established by section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963 and the sum of \$420,613,500.00 from the general fund. For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, there is appropriated for the public schools of this state and certain other state purposes relating to education the sum of \$10,402,821,500.00~~ \$10,306,721,500.00 from the state school aid fund established by section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963 and the sum of \$385,613,500.00 from the general fund. For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002, there is appropriated for the public schools of this state and certain other state purposes relating to education the sum of ~~\$11,192,489,800.00~~ \$10,989,699,900.00 from the state school aid fund established by section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963 and the sum of \$205,613,500.00 from the general fund. For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2003, there is appropriated for the public schools of this state and certain other state purposes relating to education the sum of ~~\$11,339,360,300.00~~ \$10,985,960,300.00 from the state school aid fund established by section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963 and the sum of \$420,613,500.00 from the general fund. In addition, available federal funds are appropriated for each of those fiscal years.

(2) The appropriations under this section shall be allocated as provided in this act. Money appropriated under this section from the general fund and from available federal funds shall be expended to fund the purposes of this act before the expenditure of money appropriated under this section from the state school aid fund. If the maximum amount appropriated under this section from the state school aid fund for a fiscal year exceeds the amount necessary to fully fund allocations under this act from the state school aid fund, that excess amount shall not be expended in that state fiscal year and shall not lapse to the general fund, but instead shall remain in the state school aid fund.

(3) If the maximum amount appropriated under this section and section 11f from the state school aid fund for a fiscal year exceeds the amount available for expenditure from the state school aid fund for that fiscal year, payments under sections 11f, 11g, 22a, 31d, 51a(2), and 51c shall be made in full and payments under each of the other sections of this act shall be prorated on an equal percentage basis as necessary to reflect the amount available for expenditure from the state school aid fund for that fiscal year. However, if the department of treasury determines that proration will be required under this subsection, the department of treasury shall notify the state budget director, and the state budget director shall notify the legislature at least 30 calendar days or 6 legislative session days, whichever is more, before the department reduces any payments under this act because of the proration. During the 30 calendar day or 6 legislative session day period after that notification by the state budget director, the department shall not reduce any payments under this act because of proration under this subsection. The legislature may prevent proration from occurring by, within the 30 calendar day or 6 legislative session day period after that notification by the state budget

director, enacting legislation appropriating additional funds from the general fund, countercyclical budget and economic stabilization fund, state school aid fund balance, or another source to fund the amount of the projected shortfall.

(4) Except for the allocation under section 26a, any general fund allocations under this act that are not expended by the end of the state fiscal year are transferred to the state school aid fund.

Sec. 11f. (1) In addition to any other money appropriated under this act, there is appropriated from the state school aid fund an amount not to exceed \$32,000,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2000,~~ for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2003, and for each succeeding fiscal year through the fiscal year ending September 30, 2008. Payments under this section will cease after September 30, 2008. These appropriations are for paying the amounts described in subsection (4) to districts and intermediate districts, other than those receiving a lump sum payment under subsection (2), that were not plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan, Michigan supreme court docket no. 104458-104492 and that, on or before March 2, 1998, submitted to the state treasurer a board resolution waiving any right or interest the district or intermediate district has or may have in any claim or litigation based on or arising out of any claim or potential claim through September 30, 1997 that is or was similar to the claims asserted by the plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan. The waiver resolution shall be in form and substance as required under subsection (8). The state treasurer is authorized to accept such a waiver resolution on behalf of this state. The amounts described in this subsection represent offers of settlement and compromise of any claim or claims that were or could have been asserted by these districts and intermediate districts, as described in this subsection.

(2) In addition to any other money appropriated under this act, there ~~is~~ WAS appropriated from the state school aid fund an amount not to exceed \$1,700,000.00 for the fiscal year ending September 30, 1999. This appropriation ~~is~~ WAS for paying the amounts described in this subsection to districts and intermediate districts that were not plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan; that, on or before March 2, 1998, submitted to the state treasurer a board resolution waiving any right or interest the district or intermediate district ~~has~~ HAD or may have HAD in any claim or litigation based on or arising out of any claim or potential claim through September 30, 1997 that is or was similar to the claims asserted by the plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan; and for which the total amount listed in section 11h and paid under this section ~~is~~ WAS less than \$75,000.00. ~~The waiver resolution shall be in form and substance as required under subsection (8). The state treasurer is authorized to accept such a waiver resolution on behalf of this state.~~ For a district or intermediate district qualifying for a payment under this subsection, the entire amount listed for the district or intermediate district in section 11h ~~shall be~~ WAS paid in a lump sum on November 15, 1998 or on the next business day following that date. The amounts paid under this subsection represent offers of settlement and compromise of any claim or claims that were or could have been asserted by these districts and intermediate districts, as described in this subsection.

(3) This section does not create any obligation or liability of this state to any district or intermediate district that does not submit a waiver resolution described in ~~subsection (1) or (2)~~ THIS SECTION. This section, any other provision of this act, and section 353e of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1353e, are not intended to admit liability or waive any defense that is or would be available to this state or its agencies, employees, or agents in any litigation or future litigation with a district or intermediate district.

(4) The amount paid each fiscal year to each district or intermediate district under subsection (1) shall be 1/20 of the total amount listed in section 11h for each listed district or intermediate district that qualifies for a payment under subsection (1). The amounts listed in section 11h and paid in part under this subsection and in a lump sum under subsection (2) are offers of settlement and compromise to each of these districts or intermediate districts to resolve, in their entirety, any claim or claims that these districts or intermediate districts may have asserted for violations of section 29 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963 through September 30, 1997, which claims are or were similar to the claims asserted by the plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan. This section, any other provision of this act, and section 353e of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1353e, shall not be construed to constitute an admission of liability to the districts or intermediate districts listed in section 11h or a waiver of any defense that is or would have been available to the state or its agencies, employees, or agents in any litigation or future litigation with a district or intermediate district.

(5) The entire amount of each payment under subsection (1) each fiscal year shall be paid on November 15 of the applicable fiscal year or on the next business day following that date.

(6) Funds paid to a district or intermediate district under this section shall be used only for textbooks, electronic instructional material, software, technology, infrastructure or infrastructure improvements, school buses, school security, training for technology, or to pay debt service on voter-approved bonds issued by the district or intermediate district before the effective date of this section. For intermediate districts only, funds paid under this section may also be used for other nonrecurring instructional expenditures including, but not limited to, nonrecurring instructional expenditures for vocational education, or for debt service for acquisition of technology for academic support services. Funds received by an intermediate district under this section may be used for projects conducted for the benefit of its

constituent districts at the discretion of the intermediate board. To the extent payments under this section are used by a district or intermediate district to pay debt service on debt payable from millage revenues, and to the extent permitted by law, the district or intermediate district may make a corresponding reduction in the number of mills levied for that debt service.

(7) The appropriations under this section are from the money appropriated and transferred to the state school aid fund from the countercyclical budget and economic stabilization fund under section 353e(2) and (3) of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1353e.

(8) The resolution to be adopted and submitted by a district or intermediate district under this section and section 11g shall read as follows:

“Whereas, the board of _____ (name of district or intermediate district) desires to settle and compromise, in their entirety, any claim or claims that the district (or intermediate district) has or had for violations of section 29 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, which claim or claims are or were similar to the claims asserted by the plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan, Michigan supreme court docket no. 104458-104492.

Whereas, the district (or intermediate district) agrees to settle and compromise these claims for the consideration described in sections 11f and 11g of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1611f and 388.1611g, and in the amount specified for the district (or intermediate district) in section 11h of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1611h.

Whereas, the board of _____ (name of district or intermediate district) is authorized to adopt this resolution.

Now, therefore, be it resolved as follows:

1. The board of _____ (name of district or intermediate district) waives any right or interest it may have in any claim or potential claim through September 30, 1997 relating to the amount of funding the district or intermediate district is, or may have been, entitled to receive under the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1601 to 388.1772, or any other source of state funding, by reason of the application of section 29 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, which claims or potential claims are or were similar to the claims asserted by the plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan, Michigan supreme court docket no. 104458-104492.

2. The board of _____ (name of district or intermediate district) directs its secretary to submit a certified copy of this resolution to the state treasurer no later than 5 p.m. eastern standard time on March 2, 1998, and agrees that it will not take any action to amend or rescind this resolution.

3. The board of _____ (name of district or intermediate district) expressly agrees and understands that, if it takes any action to amend or rescind this resolution, the state, its agencies, employees, and agents shall have available to them any privilege, immunity, and/or defense that would otherwise have been available had the claims or potential claims been actually litigated in any forum.

4. This resolution is contingent on continued payments by the state each fiscal year as determined under sections 11f and 11g of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1611f and 388.1611g. However, this resolution shall be an irrevocable waiver of any claim to amounts actually received by the school district or intermediate school district under sections 11f and 11g of the state school aid act of 1979.”

Sec. 11g. (1) From the general fund money appropriated in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$40,000,000.00 ~~for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2000,~~ for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2001, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002, for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2003, and for each succeeding fiscal year through the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013. Payments under this section will cease after September 30, 2013. These appropriations are for paying the amounts described in subsection (3) to districts and intermediate districts, other than those receiving a lump sum payment under section 11f(2), that were not plaintiffs in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan, Michigan supreme court docket no. 104458-104492 and that, on or before March 2, 1998, submitted to the state treasurer a waiver resolution described in section 11f. The amounts paid under this section represent offers of settlement and compromise of any claim or claims that were or could have been asserted by these districts and intermediate districts, as described in this section.

(2) This section does not create any obligation or liability of this state to any district or intermediate district that does not submit a waiver resolution described in section 11f. This section, any other provision of this act, and section 353e of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1353e, are not intended to admit liability or waive any defense that is or would be available to this state or its agencies, employees, or agents in any litigation or future litigation with a district or intermediate district regarding these claims or potential claims.

(3) The amount paid each fiscal year to each district or intermediate district under this section shall be the sum of the following:

(a) 1/30 of the total amount listed in section 11h for the district or intermediate district.

(b) If the district or intermediate district borrows money and issues bonds under section 11i, an additional amount in each fiscal year calculated by the department of treasury that, when added to the amount described in subdivision

(a), will cause the net present value as of November 15, 1998 of the total of the 15 annual payments made to the district or intermediate district under this section, discounted at a rate as determined by the state treasurer, to equal the amount of the bonds issued by that district or intermediate district under section 11i and that will result in the total payments made to all districts and intermediate districts in each fiscal year under this section being no more than the amount appropriated under this section in each fiscal year.

(4) The entire amount of each payment under this section each fiscal year shall be paid on May 15 of the applicable fiscal year or on the next business day following that date. If a district or intermediate district borrows money and issues bonds under section 11i, the district or intermediate district shall use funds received under this section to pay debt service on bonds issued under section 11i. If a district or intermediate district does not borrow money and issue bonds under section 11i, the district or intermediate district shall use funds received under this section only for the following purposes, in the following order of priority:

(a) First, to pay debt service on voter-approved bonds issued by the district or intermediate district before the effective date of this section.

(b) Second, to pay debt service on other limited tax obligations.

(c) Third, for deposit into a sinking fund established by the district or intermediate district under the revised school code.

(5) To the extent payments under this section are used by a district or intermediate district to pay debt service on debt payable from millage revenues, and to the extent permitted by law, the district or intermediate district may make a corresponding reduction in the number of mills levied for debt service.

(6) A district or intermediate district may pledge or assign payments under this section as security for bonds issued under section 11i, but shall not otherwise pledge or assign payments under this section.

SEC. 18D. ANY CLAIM OF A DEBT OR FINANCIAL OBLIGATION OWED TO THE STATE AND MADE AGAINST A DISTRICT ARISING OUT OF A MEMBERSHIP COUNT DISPUTE OCCURRING ON OR BEFORE MARCH 1, 1997 SHALL BE CONSIDERED SATISFIED AND DISCHARGED IF NOT ASSERTED IN WRITING AGAINST THE DISTRICT BY AN EXECUTIVE AGENCY OR DEPARTMENT OF THE STATE ON OR BEFORE JULY 1, 2001.

Sec. 20. (1) ~~For 1999-2000, the basic foundation allowance is \$5,700.00 per membership pupil. For 2000-2001, the basic foundation allowance is \$6,000.00 per membership pupil. For 2001-2002, the basic foundation allowance is \$6,300.00 per membership pupil. For 2002-2003, the basic foundation allowance is \$6,700.00 per membership pupil.~~

(2) ~~From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated for 1999-2000 an amount not to exceed \$8,418,600,000.00 to guarantee each district a foundation allowance per membership pupil other than special education pupils and to make payments under this section to public school academies and university schools for membership pupils other than special education pupils. The amount of each district's foundation allowance shall be calculated as provided in this section, using a basic foundation allowance in the amount specified in subsection (1). If the maximum amount allocated under this section is not sufficient to fully fund payments under this section, and before any proration required under section 11, the amount of the payment to each district, university school, and public school academy shall be prorated by reducing by an equal percentage the total payment under this section to each district, university school, and public school academy. However, if the department determines that proration will be required under this section, the superintendent shall notify the state budget director, and the state budget director shall notify the legislature at least 30 calendar days or 6 legislative session days, whichever is more, before the department reduces any payments under this section because of the proration. During the 30 calendar day or 6 legislative session day period after that notification by the state budget director, the department shall not reduce any payments under this section because of proration. The legislature may prevent proration under this section from occurring by, within the 30 calendar day or 6 legislative session day period after that notification by the director, enacting legislation appropriating additional funds from the general fund, countercyclical budget and economic stabilization fund, state school aid fund balance, or another source to ensure full foundation allowance funding for each district, university school, and public school academy.~~

(3) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the amount of a district's foundation allowance shall be calculated as follows, using in all calculations the total amount of the district's foundation allowance as calculated before any proration:

(a) ~~For a district that in the immediately preceding state fiscal year had a foundation allowance at least equal to the sum of \$4,200.00 plus the total dollar amount of all adjustments made from 1994-95 to the immediately preceding state fiscal year in the lowest foundation allowance among all districts, but less than the basic foundation allowance in the immediately preceding state fiscal year, the district shall receive a foundation allowance in an amount equal to the sum of the district's foundation allowance for the immediately preceding state fiscal year plus the difference between twice the dollar amount of the adjustment from the immediately preceding state fiscal year to the current state fiscal year made in the basic foundation allowance and [(the dollar amount of the adjustment from the immediately preceding state fiscal year to the current state fiscal year made in the basic foundation allowance minus \$50.00) times (the difference between the district's foundation allowance for the immediately preceding state fiscal year and the sum of \$4,200.00~~

~~plus the total dollar amount of all adjustments made from 1994-95 to the immediately preceding state fiscal year in the lowest foundation allowance among all districts) divided by the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and the sum of \$4,200.00 plus the total dollar amount of all adjustments made from 1994-95 to the immediately preceding state fiscal year in the lowest foundation allowance among all districts]. However, the foundation allowance for a district that had less than the basic foundation allowance in the immediately preceding state fiscal year shall not exceed the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year.~~

(A) ~~(b)~~ Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, for a district that in the immediately preceding state fiscal year had a foundation allowance in an amount at least equal to the amount of the basic foundation allowance for the immediately preceding state fiscal year, the district shall receive a foundation allowance in an amount equal to the sum of the district's foundation allowance for the immediately preceding state fiscal year plus the dollar amount of the adjustment from the immediately preceding state fiscal year to the current state fiscal year in the basic foundation allowance.

(B) ~~(c)~~ ~~Beginning in 1999-2000, for~~ FOR a district that in the 1994-95 state fiscal year had a foundation allowance greater than \$6,500.00, the district's foundation allowance is an amount equal to the sum of the district's foundation allowance for the immediately preceding state fiscal year plus the lesser of the increase in the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year, as compared to the immediately preceding state fiscal year, or the product of the district's foundation allowance for the immediately preceding state fiscal year times the percentage increase in the United States consumer price index in the calendar year ending in the immediately preceding fiscal year as reported by the May revenue estimating conference conducted under section 367b of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1367b.

~~(d) For 1999-2000, each district's foundation allowance shall be at least \$5,700.00.~~

(C) ~~(e)~~ ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, for~~ FOR a district that has a foundation allowance that is not a whole dollar amount, the district's foundation allowance shall be rounded up to the nearest whole dollar.

(D) ~~(f)~~ Beginning in 2002-2003, for a district that receives a payment under section 22c for 2001-2002, the district's 2001-2002 foundation allowance shall be considered to have been an amount equal to the sum of the district's actual 2001-2002 foundation allowance as otherwise calculated under this section plus the per pupil amount of the district's equity payment for 2001-2002 under section 22c.

(4) ~~To ensure that a district receives the district's foundation allowance, there is allocated to each district a state portion of the district's foundation allowance in an amount calculated under this subsection.~~ Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the state portion of a district's foundation allowance is an amount equal to the district's foundation allowance or \$6,500.00, whichever is less, minus the difference between the product of the taxable value per membership pupil of all property in the district that is not a homestead or qualified agricultural property times the lesser of 18 mills or the number of mills of school operating taxes levied by the district in 1993-94 and the quotient of the ad valorem property tax revenue of the district captured under 1975 PA 197, MCL 125.1651 to 125.1681, the tax increment finance authority act, 1980 PA 450, MCL 125.1801 to 125.1830, the local development financing act, 1986 PA 281, MCL 125.2151 to 125.2174, or the brownfield redevelopment financing act, 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 to 125.2672, divided by the district's membership excluding special education pupils. ~~Beginning in 1999-2000, for~~ FOR a district described in subsection ~~(3)(e)~~ (3)(B), the state portion of the district's foundation allowance is an amount equal to \$6,962.00 plus the difference between the district's foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and the district's foundation allowance for 1998-99, minus the difference between the product of the taxable value per membership pupil of all property in the district that is not a homestead or qualified agricultural property times the lesser of 18 mills or the number of mills of school operating taxes levied by the district in 1993-94 and the quotient of the ad valorem property tax revenue of the district captured under 1975 PA 197, MCL 125.1651 to 125.1681, the tax increment finance authority act, 1980 PA 450, MCL 125.1801 to 125.1830, the local development financing act, 1986 PA 281, MCL 125.2151 to 125.2174, or the brownfield redevelopment financing act, 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 to 125.2672, divided by the district's membership excluding special education pupils. For a district that has a millage reduction required under section 31 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, the state portion of the district's foundation allowance shall be calculated as if that reduction did not occur. The \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00. However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00.

(5) The allocation CALCULATED under this section for a pupil shall be based on the foundation allowance of the pupil's district of residence. However, for a pupil enrolled pursuant to section 105 or 105c in a district other than the pupil's district of residence, the allocation CALCULATED under this section shall be based on the lesser of the foundation allowance of the pupil's district of residence or the foundation allowance of the educating district. For a pupil in membership in a K-5, K-6, or K-8 district who is enrolled in another district in a grade not offered by the pupil's district of residence, the allocation CALCULATED under this section shall be based on the foundation allowance of the educating district if the educating district's foundation allowance is greater than the foundation

allowance of the pupil's district of residence. ~~Beginning in 1999-2000, the~~ THE calculation under this subsection shall take into account a district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2).

(6) Subject to subsection (7) AND SECTION 22B(4) and except as otherwise provided in this subsection, for pupils in membership, other than special education pupils, in a public school academy or a university school, ~~there is allocated under this section each fiscal year for 1999-2000, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to the authorizing body that is the fiscal agent for the public school academy for forwarding to the public school academy, or to the board of the public university operating the university school,~~ THE ALLOCATION CALCULATED UNDER THIS SECTION IS an amount per membership pupil other than special education pupils in the public school academy or university school equal to the sum of the local school operating revenue per membership pupil other than special education pupils for the district in which the public school academy or university school is located and the state portion of that district's foundation allowance, or the sum of the basic foundation allowance under subsection (1) plus \$500.00, whichever is less. However, beginning in 2002-2003, this \$500.00 amount shall instead be \$300.00. Notwithstanding section 101(2), for a public school academy that begins operations in ~~1999-2000, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, or 2002-2003,~~ as applicable, after the pupil membership count day, the amount per membership pupil calculated under this subsection shall be adjusted by multiplying that amount per membership pupil by the number of hours of pupil instruction provided by the public school academy after it begins operations, as determined by the department, divided by the minimum number of hours of pupil instruction required under section 1284 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1284. The result of this calculation shall not exceed the amount per membership pupil otherwise calculated under this subsection.

(7) If more than 25% of the pupils residing within a district are in membership in 1 or more public school academies located in the district, then the amount per membership pupil ~~allocated~~ CALCULATED under this section ~~to the authorizing body that is the fiscal agent for a public school academy located in the district for forwarding to the public school academy~~ shall be reduced by an amount equal to the difference between the product of the taxable value per membership pupil of all property in the district that is not a homestead or qualified agricultural property times the lesser of 18 mills or the number of mills of school operating taxes levied by the district in 1993-94 and the quotient of the ad valorem property tax revenue of the district captured under 1975 PA 197, MCL 125.1651 to 125.1681, the tax increment finance authority act, 1980 PA 450, MCL 125.1801 to 125.1830, the local development financing act, 1986 PA 281, MCL 125.2151 to 125.2174, or the brownfield redevelopment financing act, 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 to 125.2672, divided by the district's membership excluding special education pupils, in the school fiscal year ending in the current state fiscal year, calculated as if the resident pupils in membership in 1 or more public school academies located in the district were in membership in the district. In order to receive state school aid under this act, a district described in this subsection shall pay to the authorizing body that is the fiscal agent for a public school academy located in the district for forwarding to the public school academy an amount equal to that local school operating revenue per membership pupil for each resident pupil in membership other than special education pupils in the public school academy, as determined by the department.

(8) If a district does not receive ~~a payment~~ AN AMOUNT CALCULATED under subsection (9); if the number of mills the district may levy on a homestead and qualified agricultural property under section 1211(1) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, is 0.5 mills or less; and if the district elects not to levy those mills, the district instead shall receive a separate supplemental ~~payment~~ AMOUNT CALCULATED under this subsection in an amount equal to the amount the district would have received had it levied those mills, as determined by the department of treasury. A district shall not receive a separate supplemental ~~payment~~ AMOUNT CALCULATED under this subsection for a fiscal year unless in the calendar year ending in the fiscal year the district levies 18 mills or the number of mills of school operating taxes levied by the district in 1993, whichever is less, on property that is not a homestead or qualified agricultural property.

(9) For a district that had combined state and local revenue per membership pupil in the 1993-94 state fiscal year of more than \$6,500.00 and that had fewer than 350 pupils in membership, if the district elects not to reduce the number of mills from which a homestead and qualified agricultural property are exempt and not to levy school operating taxes on a homestead and qualified agricultural property as provided in section 1211(1) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, and not to levy school operating taxes on all property as provided in section 1211(2) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, there is ~~allocated~~ CALCULATED under this subsection for 1994-95 and each succeeding fiscal year a separate supplemental ~~payment~~ AMOUNT in an amount equal to the amount the district would have received per membership pupil had it levied school operating taxes on a homestead and qualified agricultural property at the rate authorized for the district under section 1211(1) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, and levied school operating taxes on all property at the rate authorized for the district under section 1211(2) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, as determined by the department of treasury. If in the calendar year ending in the fiscal year a district does not levy 18 mills or the number of mills of school operating taxes levied by the district in 1993, whichever is less, on property that is not a homestead or qualified agricultural property, the ~~payment~~ AMOUNT CALCULATED under this subsection will be reduced by the same percentage as the millage actually levied compares to the 18 mills or the number of mills levied in 1993, whichever is less.

~~(10) A district or public school academy may use any funds allocated under this section in conjunction with any federal funds for which the district or public school academy otherwise would be eligible.~~

(10) ~~(11)~~ For a district that is formed or reconfigured after June 1, 1994 by consolidation of 2 or more districts or by annexation, the resulting district's foundation allowance under this section beginning after the effective date of the consolidation or annexation shall be the average of the foundation allowances of each of the original or affected districts, calculated as provided in this section, weighted as to the percentage of pupils in total membership in the resulting district who reside in the geographic area of each of the original districts. If an affected district's foundation allowance is less than the basic foundation allowance, the amount of that district's foundation allowance shall be considered for the purpose of calculations under this subsection to be equal to the amount of the basic foundation allowance.

(11) ~~(12)~~ Each fraction used in making calculations under this section shall be rounded to the fourth decimal place and the dollar amount of an increase in the basic foundation allowance shall be rounded to the nearest whole dollar.

(12) ~~(13)~~ State payments related to payment of the foundation allowance for a special education pupil are not ~~funded~~ CALCULATED under this section but are instead ~~funded~~ CALCULATED under section 51a.

(13) ~~(14)~~ To assist the legislature in determining the basic foundation allowance for the subsequent state fiscal year, each revenue estimating conference conducted under section 367b of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1367b, shall calculate a pupil membership factor, a revenue adjustment factor, and an index as follows:

(a) The pupil membership factor shall be computed by dividing the estimated membership in the school year ending in the current state fiscal year, excluding intermediate district membership, by the estimated membership for the school year ending in the subsequent state fiscal year, excluding intermediate district membership. If a consensus membership factor is not determined at the revenue estimating conference, the principals of the revenue estimating conference shall report their estimates to the house and senate subcommittees responsible for school aid appropriations not later than 7 days after the conclusion of the revenue conference.

(b) The revenue adjustment factor shall be computed by dividing the sum of the estimated total state school aid fund revenue for the subsequent state fiscal year plus the estimated total state school aid fund revenue for the current state fiscal year, adjusted for any change in the rate or base of a tax the proceeds of which are deposited in that fund and excluding money transferred into that fund from the countercyclical budget and economic stabilization fund under section 353e of the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1353e, by the sum of the estimated total school aid fund revenue for the current state fiscal year plus the estimated total state school aid fund revenue for the immediately preceding state fiscal year, adjusted for any change in the rate or base of a tax the proceeds of which are deposited in that fund. If a consensus revenue factor is not determined at the revenue estimating conference, the principals of the revenue estimating conference shall report their estimates to the house and senate subcommittees responsible for school aid appropriations not later than 7 days after the conclusion of the revenue conference.

(c) The index shall be calculated by multiplying the pupil membership factor by the revenue adjustment factor. If a consensus index is not determined at the revenue estimating conference, the principals of the revenue estimating conference shall report their estimates to the house and senate subcommittees responsible for school aid appropriations not later than 7 days after the conclusion of the revenue conference.

(14) ~~(15)~~ If the principals at the revenue estimating conference reach a consensus on the index described in subsection ~~(14)(c)~~ (13)(C), the basic foundation allowance for the subsequent state fiscal year shall be at least the amount of that consensus index multiplied by the basic foundation allowance specified in subsection (1).

(15) ~~(16)~~ If at the January revenue estimating conference it is estimated that pupil membership, excluding intermediate district membership, for the subsequent state fiscal year will be greater than 101% of the pupil membership, excluding intermediate district membership, for the current state fiscal year, then it is the intent of the legislature that the executive budget proposal for the school aid budget for the subsequent state fiscal year include a general fund/general purpose allocation sufficient to support the membership in excess of 101% of the current year pupil membership.

(16) ~~(17) Beginning in 1999-2000, for~~ FOR a district that had combined state and local revenue per membership pupil in the 1993-94 state fiscal year of more than \$6,500.00, that had fewer than 7 pupils in membership in the 1993-94 state fiscal year, that has at least 1 child educated in the district in the current state fiscal year, and that levies the number of mills of school operating taxes authorized for the district under section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, ~~the district shall be allocated~~ a minimum amount of combined state and local revenue SHALL BE CALCULATED FOR THE DISTRICT as provided under this subsection. The minimum amount of combined state and local revenue for 1999-2000 shall be \$67,000.00 plus the district's additional expenses to educate pupils in grades 9 to 12 educated in other districts as determined and allowed by the department. ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, the~~ THE minimum amount of combined state and local revenue under this subsection, before adding the additional expenses, shall increase each fiscal year by the same percentage increase as the percentage increase in the basic foundation allowance from the immediately preceding fiscal year to the current fiscal year. The state portion of the minimum amount of combined state and local revenue under this subsection shall be calculated by subtracting from the minimum amount of combined state and local revenue under this subsection the sum of the district's local school operating

revenue and AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO the product of the SUM OF THE state portion of the district's foundation allowance PLUS THE AMOUNT CALCULATED UNDER SECTION 20J times the district's membership. As used in this subsection, "additional expenses" means the district's expenses for tuition or fees, not to exceed \$6,500.00 as adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, plus a room and board stipend not to exceed \$10.00 per school day for each pupil in grades 9 to 12 educated in another district, as approved by the department. However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00.

(17) ~~(18)~~ For a district in which 7.75 mills levied in 1992 for school operating purposes in the 1992-93 school year were not renewed in 1993 for school operating purposes in the 1993-94 school year, the district's combined state and local revenue per membership pupil shall be recalculated as if that millage reduction did not occur and, ~~beginning in 2000-2001,~~ the district's foundation allowance shall be calculated as if its 1994-95 foundation allowance had been calculated using that recalculated 1993-94 combined state and local revenue per membership pupil as a base. A district is not entitled to any retroactive payments for fiscal years before 2000-2001 due to this subsection.

(18) ~~(19)~~ ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, payments~~ PAYMENTS to districts, university schools, or public school academies shall not be made under this section. Rather, the calculations under this section shall be used to determine the amount of state payments under section 22b.

~~(20) From the allocation in subsection (2), the department may expend funds to pay for necessary costs associated with resolving matters pending in federal court impacting payments to districts.~~

(19) ~~(21)~~ If an amendment to section 2 of article VIII of the state constitution of 1963 allowing state aid to some or all nonpublic schools is approved by the voters of this state, each foundation allowance or per pupil payment calculation under this section may be reduced.

(20) ~~(22)~~ As used in this section:

(a) "Combined state and local revenue" means the aggregate of the district's state school aid received by or paid on behalf of the district under this section and the district's local school operating revenue.

(b) "Combined state and local revenue per membership pupil" means the district's combined state and local revenue divided by the district's membership excluding special education pupils.

(c) "Current state fiscal year" means the state fiscal year for which a particular calculation is made.

(d) "Homestead" means that term as defined in section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211.

(e) "Immediately preceding state fiscal year" means the state fiscal year immediately preceding the current state fiscal year.

(f) "Local school operating revenue" means school operating taxes levied under section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211.

(g) "Local school operating revenue per membership pupil" means a district's local school operating revenue divided by the district's membership excluding special education pupils.

(h) "Membership" means the definition of that term under section 6 as in effect for the particular fiscal year for which a particular calculation is made.

(i) "Qualified agricultural property" means that term as defined in section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211.

(j) "School operating purposes" means the purposes included in the operation costs of the district as prescribed in sections 7 and 18.

(k) "School operating taxes" means local ad valorem property taxes levied under section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, and retained for school operating purposes.

(l) "Taxable value per membership pupil" means taxable value, as certified by the department of treasury, for the calendar year ending in the current state fiscal year divided by the district's membership excluding special education pupils for the school year ending in the current state fiscal year.

Sec. 20j. (1) ~~From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated for 1999-2000 an amount not to exceed \$23,400,000.00 for foundation~~ FOUNDATION allowance supplemental payments to districts that in the 1994-95 state fiscal year had a foundation allowance greater than \$6,500.00 SHALL BE CALCULATED UNDER THIS SECTION.

(2) The per pupil allocation to each district under this section shall be the difference between the dollar amount of the adjustment from the 1998-99 state fiscal year to the current state fiscal year in the basic foundation allowance minus the dollar amount of the adjustment from the 1998-99 state fiscal year to the current state fiscal year in the district's foundation allowance.

(3) ~~The~~ IF A DISTRICT'S LOCAL REVENUE PER PUPIL DOES NOT EXCEED THE SUM OF ITS FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE UNDER SECTION 20 PLUS THE PER PUPIL ALLOCATION UNDER SUBSECTION (2), THE total payment to ~~each~~ THE district CALCULATED under this section shall be the product of the per pupil allocation under subsection (2) multiplied by the district's membership excluding special education pupils. IF A DISTRICT'S LOCAL REVENUE PER PUPIL EXCEEDS THE FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE UNDER

SECTION 20 BUT DOES NOT EXCEED THE SUM OF THE FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE UNDER SECTION 20 PLUS THE PER PUPIL ALLOCATION UNDER SUBSECTION (2), THE TOTAL PAYMENT TO THE DISTRICT CALCULATED UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL BE THE PRODUCT OF THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE SUM OF THE FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE UNDER SECTION 20 PLUS THE PER PUPIL ALLOCATION UNDER SUBSECTION (2) MINUS THE LOCAL REVENUE PER PUPIL MULTIPLIED BY THE DISTRICT'S MEMBERSHIP EXCLUDING SPECIAL EDUCATION PUPILS. IF A DISTRICT'S LOCAL REVENUE PER PUPIL EXCEEDS THE SUM OF THE FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE UNDER SECTION 20 PLUS THE PER PUPIL ALLOCATION UNDER SUBSECTION (2), THERE IS NO PAYMENT CALCULATED UNDER THIS SECTION FOR THE DISTRICT.

(4) ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, payments~~ PAYMENTS to districts shall not be made under this section. Rather, the calculations under this section shall be made and used to determine the amount of state payments under section 22b.

Sec. 22a. (1) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$7,181,000,000.00~~ \$7,151,000,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$7,088,000,000.00~~ \$7,042,100,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$7,004,000,000.00~~ \$6,956,000,000.00 for 2002-2003 for payments to districts, qualifying university schools, and qualifying public school academies to guarantee each district, qualifying university school, and qualifying public school academy an amount equal to its 1994-95 total state and local per pupil revenue for school operating purposes under section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963. Pursuant to section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, this guarantee does not apply to a district in a year in which the district levies a millage rate for school district operating purposes less than it levied in 1994. However, subsection (2) applies to calculating the payments under this section. FUNDS ALLOCATED UNDER THIS SECTION THAT ARE NOT EXPENDED IN THE STATE FISCAL YEAR FOR WHICH THEY WERE ALLOCATED, AS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT, MAY BE USED TO SUPPLEMENT THE ALLOCATIONS UNDER SECTIONS 22B AND 51C IN ORDER TO FULLY FUND THOSE CALCULATED ALLOCATIONS FOR THE SAME FISCAL YEAR.

(2) To ensure that a district receives an amount equal to the district's 1994-95 total state and local per pupil revenue for school operating purposes, there is allocated to each district a state portion of the district's 1994-95 foundation allowance in an amount calculated as follows:

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the state portion of a district's 1994-95 foundation allowance is an amount equal to the district's 1994-95 foundation allowance or \$6,500.00, whichever is less, minus the difference between the product of the taxable value per membership pupil of all property in the district that is not a homestead or qualified agricultural property times the lesser of 18 mills or the number of mills of school operating taxes levied by the district in 1993-94 and the quotient of the ad valorem property tax revenue of the district captured under 1975 PA 197, MCL 125.1651 to 125.1681, the tax increment finance authority act, 1980 PA 450, MCL 125.1801 to 125.1830, the local development financing act, 1986 PA 281, MCL 125.2151 to 125.2174, or the brownfield redevelopment financing act, 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 to 125.2672, divided by the district's membership. For a district that has a millage reduction required under section 31 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, the state portion of the district's foundation allowance shall be calculated as if that reduction did not occur.

(b) For a district that had a 1994-95 foundation allowance greater than \$6,500.00, the state payment under this subsection shall be the sum of the amount calculated under subdivision (a) plus the amount calculated under this subdivision. The amount calculated under this subdivision shall be equal to the difference between the district's 1994-95 foundation allowance minus \$6,500.00 and the current year hold harmless school operating taxes per pupil. If the result of the calculation under subdivision (a) is negative, the negative amount shall be an offset against any state payment calculated under this subdivision. If the result of a calculation under this subdivision is negative, there shall not be a state payment or a deduction under this subdivision. The taxable values per membership pupil used in the calculations under this subdivision are as adjusted by ad valorem property tax revenue captured under 1975 PA 197, MCL 125.1651 to 125.1681, the tax increment finance authority act, 1980 PA 450, MCL 125.1801 to 125.1830, the local development financing act, 1986 PA 281, MCL 125.2151 to 125.2174, or the brownfield redevelopment financing act, 1996 PA 381, MCL 125.2651 to 125.2672, divided by the district's membership.

(3) For pupils in membership in a qualifying public school academy or qualifying university school, there is allocated under this section each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to the authorizing body that is the fiscal agent for the qualifying public school academy for forwarding to the qualifying public school academy, or to the board of the public university operating the qualifying university school, an amount equal to the 1994-95 per pupil payment to the qualifying public school academy or qualifying university school under section 20.

(4) A district, qualifying university school, or qualifying public school academy may use funds allocated under this section in conjunction with any federal funds for which the district, qualifying university school, or qualifying public school academy otherwise would be eligible.

(5) For a district that is formed or reconfigured after June 1, 2000 by consolidation of 2 or more districts or by annexation, the resulting district's 1994-95 foundation allowance under this section beginning after the effective date of the consolidation or annexation shall be the average of the 1994-95 foundation allowances of each of the original or affected districts, calculated as provided in this section, weighted as to the percentage of pupils in total membership in

the resulting district in the state fiscal year in which the consolidation takes place who reside in the geographic area of each of the original districts. If an affected district's 1994-95 foundation allowance is less than the 1994-95 basic foundation allowance, the amount of that district's 1994-95 foundation allowance shall be considered for the purpose of calculations under this subsection to be equal to the amount of the 1994-95 basic foundation allowance.

(6) As used in this section:

(a) "1994-95 foundation allowance" means a district's 1994-95 foundation allowance calculated and certified by the department of treasury or the superintendent under former section 20a as enacted in 1993 PA 336 and as amended by 1994 PA 283.

(b) "Current state fiscal year" means the state fiscal year for which a particular calculation is made.

(c) "Current year hold harmless school operating taxes per pupil" means the per pupil revenue generated by multiplying a district's 1994-95 hold harmless millage by the district's current year taxable value per membership pupil.

(d) "Hold harmless millage" means, for a district with a 1994-95 foundation allowance greater than \$6,500.00, the number of mills by which the exemption from the levy of school operating taxes on a homestead and qualified agricultural property could be reduced as provided in section 1211(1) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, and the number of mills of school operating taxes that could be levied on all property as provided in section 1211(2) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, as certified by the department of treasury for the 1994 tax year.

(e) "Homestead" means that term as defined in section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211.

(f) "Membership" means the definition of that term under section 6 as in effect for the particular fiscal year for which a particular calculation is made.

(g) "Qualified agricultural property" means that term as defined in section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211.

(h) "Qualifying public school academy" means a public school academy that was in operation in the 1994-95 school year and is in operation in the current state fiscal year.

(i) "Qualifying university school" means a university school that was in operation in the 1994-95 school year and is in operation in the current fiscal year.

(j) "School operating taxes" means local ad valorem property taxes levied under section 1211 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, and retained for school operating purposes.

(k) "Taxable value per membership pupil" means each of the following divided by the district's membership:

(i) For the number of mills by which the exemption from the levy of school operating taxes on a homestead and qualified agricultural property may be reduced as provided in section 1211(1) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, the taxable value of homestead and qualified agricultural property for the calendar year ending in the current state fiscal year.

(ii) For the number of mills of school operating taxes that may be levied on all property as provided in section 1211(2) of the revised school code, MCL 380.1211, the taxable value of all property for the calendar year ending in the current state fiscal year.

Sec. 22b. (1) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$1,811,000,000.00~~ \$1,864,000,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$2,324,000,000.00~~ \$2,377,200,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$2,805,000,000.00~~ \$2,845,000,000.00 for 2002-2003 for discretionary payments to districts under this section. FUNDS ALLOCATED UNDER THIS SECTION THAT ARE NOT EXPENDED IN THE STATE FISCAL YEAR FOR WHICH THEY WERE ALLOCATED, AS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT, MAY BE USED TO SUPPLEMENT THE ALLOCATIONS UNDER SECTIONS 22A AND 51C IN ORDER TO FULLY FUND THOSE CALCULATED ALLOCATIONS FOR THE SAME FISCAL YEAR.

(2) Subject to subsection ~~(4)~~ (3) AND SECTION 11, beginning in 2000-2001, the allocation to a district under this section shall be an amount equal to the sum of the amounts calculated under sections 20, 20j, 51a(2), 51a(3), and 51a(12), minus the sum of the allocations to the district under sections 22a and 51c.

~~(3) The allocations under this section are not considered to be per pupil revenue for school operating purposes under section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963.~~

(3) ~~(4)~~ In order to receive an allocation under this section, each district shall administer in each grade level that it operates in grades 1 to 5 a standardized assessment approved by the department of grade-appropriate basic educational skills. A district may use the Michigan literacy progress profile to satisfy this requirement for grades 1 to 3.

(4) FROM THE ALLOCATION IN SUBSECTION (1), THE DEPARTMENT MAY EXPEND FUNDS TO PAY FOR NECESSARY COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH RESOLVING MATTERS PENDING IN FEDERAL COURT IMPACTING PAYMENTS TO DISTRICTS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, EXPERT WITNESS FEES.

Sec. 22c. From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated FOR 2001-2002 an amount not to exceed \$129,000,000.00 ~~for 2001-2002~~ to make equity payments to districts that have a foundation allowance or per pupil payment calculated under section 20 for 2001-2002 of less than \$6,500.00. The equity payment for a district shall be an amount calculated by subtracting the district's 2001-2002 foundation allowance or per pupil payment from \$6,500.00 and multiplying the result by the district's membership.

Sec. 24. (1) Subject to subsection (2), from the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~for 1999-2000, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ to the educating district or intermediate district an amount equal to 100% of the added cost each fiscal year for educating all pupils assigned by a court or the family independence agency to reside in or to attend a juvenile detention facility or child caring institution licensed by the family independence agency or the department of consumer and industry services and approved by the department to provide an on-grounds education program. The total amount to be paid under this section for added cost shall not exceed \$7,900,000.00 ~~for 1999-2000, and an amount not to exceed \$8,000,000.00 each fiscal year~~ for 2000-2001, \$8,400,000.00 for 2001-2002, and \$8,900,000.00 for 2002-2003. For the purposes of this section, "added cost" shall be computed by deducting all other revenue received under this act for pupils described in this section from total costs, as approved by the department, for educating those pupils in the on-grounds education program or in a program approved by the department that is located on property adjacent to a juvenile detention facility or child caring institution. Costs reimbursed by federal funds are not included.

(2) A district or intermediate district educating pupils described in this section at a residential child caring institution may operate, and receive funding under this section for, a department-approved on-grounds educational program for those pupils that is longer than 181 days, but not longer than 233 days, if the child caring institution was licensed as a child caring institution and offered in 1991-92 an on-grounds educational program that was longer than 181 days but not longer than 233 days and that was operated by a district or intermediate district.

(3) Special education pupils funded under section 53a shall not be funded under this section.

Sec. 25b. (1) ~~THIS BEGINNING IN 2000-2001, THIS SECTION APPLIES TO A AN EDUCATING DISTRICT'S ENROLLMENT OF A PUPIL IF THE EDUCATING DISTRICT IS NOT A SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE FIRST CLASS UNDER THE REVISED SCHOOL CODE AND~~ if all of the following apply:

(a) The pupil transfers from 1 of 3 other districts specified by the educating district and enrolls in the EDUCATING district after the pupil membership count day.

(b) Due to the pupil's enrollment status as of the pupil membership count day, the pupil was counted in membership in the district from which he or she transfers.

(C) THE PUPIL WAS A RESIDENT OF THE EDUCATING DISTRICT ON THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY OR MET OTHER ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA UNDER SECTION 6(4) OR (6) TO BE COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT IF THE PUPIL HAD BEEN ENROLLED IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT ON THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY.

(D) ~~(E)~~ The total number of pupils enrolled in the district who are described in subdivisions (a), ~~and~~ (b), AND (C) and who transfer from 1 of the 3 other districts specified by the educating district is at least equal to the greater of 25 or 1% of the educating district's membership.

(2) If the conditions specified in subsection (1) are met, and a pupil transfers from 1 of the 3 other specified districts described in subsection ~~(1)(E)~~ (1)(D) and enrolls during a school year in the educating district, the educating district shall report the enrollment information to the department and to the district in which the pupil is counted in membership, and the district in which the pupil is counted in membership shall pay to the educating district an amount equal to the amount of the foundation allowance or per pupil payment as calculated under section 20 for the district in which the pupil is counted in membership, prorated according to the number of days of the school year ending in the fiscal year the pupil is educated in the educating district compared to the number of days of the school year ending in the fiscal year the pupil was actually enrolled in the district in which the pupil is counted in membership. The foundation allowance or per pupil payment shall be adjusted by the pupil's full-time equated status as affected by the membership definition under section 6(4). If a district does not make the payment required under this section within 30 days after receipt of the report, the department shall calculate the amount owed, shall deduct that amount from the remaining state school aid payments to the district for that fiscal year under this act, and shall pay that amount to the educating district. The district in which the pupil is counted in membership and the educating district shall provide to the department all information the department requires to enforce this section.

(3) IN DETERMINING THE TOTAL AMOUNT A DISTRICT OWES TO THE EDUCATING DISTRICT UNDER THIS SECTION, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THAT DISTRICT IS OTHERWISE ELIGIBLE FOR PAYMENT FROM THE EDUCATING DISTRICT UNDER THIS SECTION, THE DISTRICT MAY CALCULATE AND SUBTRACT FROM THE AMOUNT OWED, USING THE CALCULATION DESCRIBED IN SUBSECTION (1), ANY AMOUNT APPLICABLE TO PUPILS WHO TRANSFER TO THAT DISTRICT FROM THE EDUCATING DISTRICT AND MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSECTION (1)(A) TO (C).

(4) ~~(E)~~ As used in this section, "educating district" means the district in which a pupil enrolls after the pupil membership count day as described in subsection (1).

SEC. 25C. (1) BEGINNING IN 2000-2001, THIS SECTION APPLIES TO AN EDUCATING DISTRICT'S ENROLLMENT OF A PUPIL IF THE EDUCATING DISTRICT IS A SCHOOL DISTRICT OF THE FIRST CLASS UNDER THE REVISED SCHOOL CODE AND IF ALL OF THE FOLLOWING APPLY:

(A) THE PUPIL TRANSFERS FROM ANOTHER DISTRICT AND ENROLLS IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT AFTER THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY.

(B) DUE TO THE PUPIL'S ENROLLMENT STATUS AS OF THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY, THE PUPIL WAS COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP IN THE DISTRICT FROM WHICH HE OR SHE TRANSFERS.

(C) THE PUPIL WAS A RESIDENT OF THE EDUCATING DISTRICT ON THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY OR MET OTHER ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA UNDER SECTION 6(4) OR (6) TO BE COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT IF THE PUPIL HAD BEEN ENROLLED IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT ON THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY.

(D) THE TOTAL NUMBER OF PUPILS ENROLLED IN THE DISTRICT WHO ARE DESCRIBED IN SUBDIVISIONS (A), (B), AND (C) IS AT LEAST EQUAL TO 25.

(2) IF THE CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN SUBSECTION (1) ARE MET, AND A PUPIL TRANSFERS FROM ANOTHER DISTRICT AND ENROLLS DURING A SCHOOL YEAR IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT, THE EDUCATING DISTRICT SHALL REPORT THE ENROLLMENT INFORMATION TO THE DEPARTMENT AND TO THE DISTRICT IN WHICH THE PUPIL IS COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP, AND THE DISTRICT IN WHICH THE PUPIL IS COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP SHALL PAY TO THE EDUCATING DISTRICT AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT OF THE FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE OR PER PUPIL PAYMENT AS CALCULATED UNDER SECTION 20 FOR THE DISTRICT IN WHICH THE PUPIL IS COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP, PRORATED ACCORDING TO THE NUMBER OF DAYS OF THE SCHOOL YEAR ENDING IN THE FISCAL YEAR THE PUPIL IS EDUCATED IN THE EDUCATING DISTRICT COMPARED TO THE NUMBER OF DAYS OF THE SCHOOL YEAR ENDING IN THE FISCAL YEAR THE PUPIL WAS ACTUALLY ENROLLED IN THE DISTRICT IN WHICH THE PUPIL IS COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP. THE FOUNDATION ALLOWANCE OR PER PUPIL PAYMENT SHALL BE ADJUSTED BY THE PUPIL'S FULL-TIME EQUATED STATUS AS AFFECTED BY THE MEMBERSHIP DEFINITION UNDER SECTION 6(4). IF A DISTRICT DOES NOT MAKE THE PAYMENT REQUIRED UNDER THIS SECTION WITHIN 30 DAYS AFTER RECEIPT OF THE REPORT, THE DEPARTMENT SHALL CALCULATE THE AMOUNT OWED, SHALL DEDUCT THAT AMOUNT FROM THE REMAINING STATE SCHOOL AID PAYMENTS TO THE DISTRICT FOR THAT FISCAL YEAR UNDER THIS ACT, AND SHALL PAY THAT AMOUNT TO THE EDUCATING DISTRICT. THE DISTRICT IN WHICH THE PUPIL IS COUNTED IN MEMBERSHIP AND THE EDUCATING DISTRICT SHALL PROVIDE TO THE DEPARTMENT ALL INFORMATION THE DEPARTMENT REQUIRES TO ENFORCE THIS SECTION.

(3) IN DETERMINING THE TOTAL AMOUNT A DISTRICT OWES TO THE EDUCATING DISTRICT UNDER THIS SECTION, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER THAT DISTRICT IS OTHERWISE ELIGIBLE FOR PAYMENT FROM THE EDUCATING DISTRICT UNDER THIS SECTION, THE DISTRICT MAY CALCULATE AND SUBTRACT FROM THE AMOUNT OWED, USING THE CALCULATION DESCRIBED IN SUBSECTION (1), ANY AMOUNT APPLICABLE TO PUPILS WHO TRANSFER TO THAT DISTRICT FROM THE EDUCATING DISTRICT AND MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF SUBSECTION (1)(A) TO (C).

(4) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "EDUCATING DISTRICT" MEANS THE DISTRICT IN WHICH A PUPIL ENROLLS AFTER THE PUPIL MEMBERSHIP COUNT DAY AS DESCRIBED IN SUBSECTION (1).

Sec. 26a. From the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated each fiscal year for ~~1999-2000,~~ 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 an amount not to exceed \$7,000,000.00 to reimburse districts, intermediate districts, and the state school aid fund pursuant to section 12 of the Michigan renaissance zone act, 1996 PA 376, MCL 125.2692, for taxes levied in ~~1999,~~ 2000, 2001, and 2002, respectively. This reimbursement shall be made by adjusting payments under section ~~20 or~~ 22a to eligible districts, adjusting payments under section 56, 62, or 81 to eligible intermediate districts, and adjusting the state school aid fund. The adjustments shall be made not later than 60 days after the department of treasury certifies to the department and to the state budget director that the department of treasury has received all necessary information to properly determine the amounts due to each eligible recipient.

Sec. 31a. (1) From the state school aid fund money appropriated in section 11, there is allocated ~~for 1999-2000 an amount not to exceed \$270,920,000.00,~~ for 2000-2001 an amount not to exceed \$304,000,000.00, for 2001-2002 an amount not to exceed ~~\$319,200,000.00~~ \$314,200,000.00, and for 2002-2003 an amount not to exceed ~~\$329,095,200.00~~ \$319,095,200.00 for payments to eligible districts and eligible public school academies under this section. Subject to subsection (10), the amount of the additional allowance under this section shall be based on the number of actual pupils in membership in the district or public school academy who met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk in the immediately preceding state fiscal year, as determined under the Richard B. Russell national school lunch act, chapter 281, 60 Stat. 230, 42 U.S.C. 1751 to 1753, 1755 to 1761, 1762a, 1765 to 1766a, 1769, 1769b to 1769c, and 1769f to 1769h, and reported to the department by October 31 of the immediately preceding fiscal year and adjusted not later than December 31 of the immediately preceding fiscal year. However, for a public school academy that began operations as a public school academy after the pupil membership count day of the immediately preceding school year, the basis for the additional allowance under this section shall be the number of actual pupils in membership in the public school academy who met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk in the current state fiscal year, as determined under the Richard B. Russell national school lunch act.

(2) To be eligible to receive funding under this section, a district or public school academy that has not been previously determined to be eligible shall apply to the department, in a form and manner prescribed by the department, and a district or public school academy must meet all of the following:

(a) The sum of the district's or public school academy's combined state and local revenue per membership pupil in the current state fiscal year, as calculated under section 20, plus the amount of the district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2), is less than or equal to \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00. However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subdivision shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00.

(b) The district or public school academy agrees to use the funding only for purposes allowed under this section and to comply with the program and accountability requirements under this section.

(3) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, an eligible district or eligible public school academy shall receive under this section for each membership pupil in the district or public school academy who met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk, as determined under the Richard B. Russell national school lunch act and as reported to the department by October 31 of the immediately preceding fiscal year and adjusted not later than December 31 of the immediately preceding fiscal year, an amount per pupil equal to 11.5% of the sum of the district's foundation allowance or public school academy's per pupil allocation under section 20, plus the amount of the district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2), not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, or of the public school academy's per membership pupil allocation under section 20 for the current state fiscal year. However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00. A public school academy that began operations as a public school academy after the pupil membership count day of the immediately preceding school year shall receive under this section for each membership pupil in the public school academy who met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk, as determined under the Richard B. Russell national school lunch act and as reported to the department by October 31 of the current fiscal year and adjusted not later than December 31 of the current fiscal year, an amount per pupil equal to 11.5% of the public school academy's per membership pupil allocation under section 20 for the current state fiscal year.

(4) Except as otherwise provided in this section, a district or public school academy receiving funding under this section shall use that money only to provide instructional programs and direct noninstructional services, including, but not limited to, medical or counseling services, for at-risk pupils and for the purposes of subsection (5) or section ~~31E~~ 32E and shall not use any of that money for administrative costs or to supplant another program or other funds, except for funds allocated to the district or public school academy under this section in the immediately preceding year and already being used by the district or public school academy for at-risk pupils. The instruction or direct noninstructional services provided under this section may be conducted before or after regular school hours or by adding extra school days to the school year and may be conducted using a tutorial method, with paraprofessionals working under the supervision of a certificated teacher. The ratio of pupils to paraprofessionals shall be between 10:1 and 15:1. Only 1 certificated teacher is required to supervise instruction using a tutorial method. As used in this subsection, "to supplant another program" means to take the place of a previously existing instructional program or direct noninstructional services funded from a funding source other than funding under this section.

(5) A district or public school academy that receives funds under this section and that operates a school breakfast program under section 1272a of the revised school code, MCL 380.1272a, shall use from the funds received under this section an amount, not to exceed \$10.00 per pupil for whom the district or public school academy receives funds under this section, necessary to operate the school breakfast program. ~~For 1999-2000 only, a district or public school academy that receives funds under this section and that operates a school lunch program under section 1272a of the revised school code, MCL 380.1272a, shall use from the funds received under this section an amount, not to exceed \$10.00 per pupil for whom the district or public school academy receives funds under this section, necessary to operate the school lunch program.~~

(6) Each district or public school academy receiving funds under this section shall submit to the department by July 15 of each fiscal year a report, not to exceed 10 pages, on the usage by the district or public school academy of funds under this section, which report shall include at least a brief description of each program conducted by the district or public school academy using funds under this section, the amount of funds under this section allocated to each of those programs, the number of at-risk pupils eligible for free or reduced price school lunch who were served by each of those programs, and the total number of at-risk pupils served by each of those programs. If a district or public school academy does not comply with this subsection, the department shall withhold an amount equal to the August payment due under this section until the district or public school academy complies with this subsection. If the district or public school academy does not comply with this subsection by the end of the state fiscal year, the withheld funds shall be forfeited to the school aid fund.

(7) In order to receive funds under this section, a district or public school academy shall allow access for the department or the department's designee to audit all records related to the program for which it receives those funds. The district or public school academy shall reimburse the state for all disallowances found in the audit.

(8) Subject to subsection (5), any district may use up to 100% of the funds it receives under this section to reduce the ratio of pupils to teachers in grades K-6, or any combination of those grades, in school buildings in which the percentage of pupils described in subsection (1) exceeds the district's aggregate percentage of those pupils. Subject to subsection (5), if a district obtains a waiver from the department, the district may use up to 100% of the funds it receives under this section to reduce the ratio of pupils to teachers in grades K-6, or any combination of those grades, in school buildings in which the percentage of pupils described in subsection (1) is at least 60% of the district's aggregate percentage of those pupils and at least 30% of the total number of pupils enrolled in the school building. To obtain a waiver, a district must apply to the department and demonstrate to the satisfaction of the department that the class size reductions would be in the best interests of the district's at-risk pupils.

(9) A district or public school academy may use funds received under this section for adult high school completion, general education development (G.E.D.) test preparation, or adult basic education programs described in section 107.

(10) If necessary, and before any proration required under section 11, the department shall prorate payments under this section by reducing the amount of the per pupil payment under this section by a dollar amount calculated by determining the amount by which the amount necessary to fully fund the requirements of this section exceeds the maximum amount allocated under this section and then dividing that amount by the total statewide number of pupils who met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk in the immediately preceding fiscal year, as described in subsection (1).

(11) If a district is formed by consolidation after June 1, 1995, and if 1 or more of the original districts was not eligible before the consolidation for an additional allowance under this section, the amount of the additional allowance under this section for the consolidated district shall be based on the number of pupils described in subsection (1) enrolled in the consolidated district who reside in the territory of an original district that was eligible before the consolidation for an additional allowance under this section.

(12) ~~Beginning in 1999-2000, a~~ A district or public school academy that does not meet the eligibility requirement under subsection (2)(a) is eligible for funding under this section if at least 1/4 of the pupils in membership in the district or public school academy met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk in the immediately preceding state fiscal year, as determined and reported as described in subsection (1), and at least 4,500 of the pupils in membership in the district or public school academy met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk in the immediately preceding state fiscal year, as determined and reported as described in subsection (1). A district or public school academy that is eligible for funding under this section because the district meets the requirements of this subsection shall receive under this section for each membership pupil in the district or public school academy who met the income eligibility criteria for free breakfast, lunch, or milk in the immediately preceding fiscal year, as determined and reported as described in subsection (1), an amount per pupil equal to 5.75% of the sum of the district's foundation allowance or public school academy's per pupil allocation under section 20, plus the amount of the district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2), not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00. However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00.

~~(13) Beginning in 2001-2002, the total amount allocated under this section for a fiscal year shall be increased from the total amount allocated under this section for the immediately preceding fiscal year by the same percentage as the percentage increase in the amount of the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for that fiscal year from the amount of the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the immediately preceding fiscal year.~~

(13) ~~(14)~~ As used in this section, "at-risk pupil" means a pupil for whom the district has documentation that the pupil meets at least 2 of the following criteria: is a victim of child abuse or neglect; is below grade level in English language and communication skills or mathematics; is a pregnant teenager or teenage parent; is eligible for a federal free or reduced-price lunch subsidy; has atypical behavior or attendance patterns; or has a family history of school failure, incarceration, or substance abuse. For pupils for whom the results of at least the applicable Michigan education assessment program (MEAP) test have been received, at-risk pupil also includes a pupil who does not meet the other criteria under this subsection but who did not achieve at least a score of moderate on the most recent MEAP reading test for which results for the pupil have been received, did not achieve at least a score of moderate on the most recent MEAP mathematics test for which results for the pupil have been received, or did not achieve at least a score of novice on the most recent MEAP science test for which results for the pupil have been received. For pupils in grades K-3, at-risk pupil also includes a pupil who is at risk of not meeting the district's core academic curricular objectives in English language, communication skills, or mathematics.

Sec. 31d. (1) From the state school aid fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~an amount not to exceed \$6,454,500.00 for 1999-2000, an amount not to exceed \$13,669,500.00~~ \$14,149,400.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$14,079,600.00~~ \$15,039,400.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$14,502,000.00~~ \$15,941,700.00 for 2002-2003, and from the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$662,200.00~~ \$682,300.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$682,100.00~~ \$722,300.00 for 2001-2002, and an

amount not to exceed ~~\$702,500.00~~ \$762,800.00 for 2002-2003 for the purpose of making payments to districts, intermediate districts, and other eligible entities under this section.

(2) The amounts allocated under this section shall be used to pay the amount necessary to reimburse districts for 6.0127% of the necessary costs of the state mandated portion of the school lunch programs provided by those districts. The amount due to each district under this section shall be computed by the department using the methods of calculation adopted by the Michigan supreme court in the consolidated cases known as Durant v State of Michigan, Michigan supreme court docket no. 104458-104492.

(3) ~~For 1999-2000, the payments made under this section are in addition to the state payments made to districts under the department of education appropriations act for 1999-2000 and under section 31a(5), so that each district receives from all of these sources combined at least 6.0127% of the necessary costs of operating the state mandated portion of the school lunch program in a fiscal year. Beginning in 2000-2001, the~~ THE payments made under this section include all state payments made to districts so that each district receives at least 6.0127% of the necessary costs of operating the state mandated portion of the school lunch program in a fiscal year.

(4) ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, notwithstanding~~ NOTWITHSTANDING section 17b, payments to intermediate districts and other eligible entities under this section shall be paid on a schedule determined by the department.

Sec. 32a. (1) From the state school aid fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$267,850,000.00~~ \$231,350,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$267,850,000.00~~ \$189,250,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$279,850,000.00~~ \$99,250,000.00 for 2002-2003 to fund the all students achieve program (ASAP) as provided under sections 32b to 32h. In addition, from the general fund appropriations in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$25,200,000.00~~ \$21,250,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$30,200,000.00~~ \$2,200,100.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$35,200,000.00~~ \$200,000.00 for 2002-2003 for the purposes of sections 32b to 32h. The programs funded through this section are for the purposes of improving parenting skills, improving school readiness, reducing the number of pupils retained in grade, and reducing the number of pupils requiring special education services.

(2) Each grant recipient approved by the department shall implement department-approved data collection methods and evaluation or assessment tools to measure the impact of the proposed program.

(3) A district shall not use funds received under sections 32b to 32h to supplant any local or federal funds it currently receives. A district may use these funds in combination with other federal, local, public, or private funds to enhance existing programs with similar purposes.

Sec. 32b. (1) From the state school aid fund allocation in section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$45,000,000.00~~ ~~each fiscal year~~ for 2000-2001, AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$45,000,000.00 for 2001-2002, and \$0.00 for 2002-2003 for grants to intermediate districts and districts for programs for preschool children and their parents. The purpose of these programs is to improve school readiness and foster the maintenance of stable families by encouraging positive parenting skills; enhancing parent-child interaction; providing learning opportunities to promote intellectual, physical, and social growth; and promoting access to needed community services through a community-school-home partnership that provides parents with information on child development from birth to age 5.

(2) To qualify for funding under this section, a program shall meet all of the following:

(a) The program must provide services to all families with children age 5 or younger residing within the intermediate district or district who choose to participate, including at least all of the following services:

(i) Home visits by parent educators trained in child development to help parents understand appropriate expectations for each stage of their child's development, to encourage learning opportunities, and to promote strong parent-child relationships.

(ii) Group meetings of participating families.

(iii) Periodic developmental screening of the child's overall development, health, hearing, and vision.

(iv) A community resource network that provides referrals to other state, local, and private agencies as appropriate to assist parents in preparing their children for academic success and to foster the maintenance of stable families.

(v) Connection with quality preschool programs.

(b) The program must be a collaborative community effort that includes at least the intermediate district or district, local multipurpose collaborative bodies, local health and welfare agencies, and private nonprofit agencies involved in programs and services for preschool children and their parents.

(3) To compete for a grant under this section, an intermediate district or district shall apply to the superintendent not later than December 1, 2000 in the form and manner prescribed by the superintendent. To be considered for a grant under this section, a grant application must provide all of the following in a manner prescribed by the department:

(a) Provide a plan for the delivery of the program components described in subsection (2).

(b) Demonstrate an adequate collaboration of local entities involved in providing programs and services for preschool children and their parents.

(c) Provide evidence of a review and approval by the local multipurpose collaborative body of the program plan.

(d) Provide a projected budget for the program to be funded. The intermediate district shall provide at least a 20% local match from local public or private resources for the funds received under this section. Not more than 1/2 of this

matching requirement, up to a total of 10% of the total project budget, may be satisfied through in-kind services provided by participating providers of programs or services. In addition, not more than 10% of the grant may be used for program administration.

(4) Each successful grant recipient shall agree to include a data collection system and an evaluation tool approved by the department to measure the impact of the program on improving school readiness, reducing the number of children needing special education programs and services, and fostering the maintenance of stable families. The data collection system shall provide a report by October 15 of each year on the number of children in families with income below 200% of the federal poverty level that received services under this program and the total number of children who received services under this program.

(5) From the general fund allocation under section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$250,000.00 ~~each fiscal year~~ for 2000-2001, AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$100.00 for 2001-2002, and \$0.00 for 2002-2003 to the department, including the office for safe schools, for implementation and evaluation of activities under this section. Further, ~~beginning in 2000-2001~~, upon receipt of the federal drug-free schools grant, the department shall allocate \$200,000.00 of that grant to the office for safe schools within the department.

(6) The department and superintendent shall do all of the following:

(a) The department shall make applications available for the purposes of this section not later than October 15, 2000.

(b) The superintendent shall approve or disapprove applications and notify the applying intermediate district or district of that decision not later than February 1, 2001. Priority in awarding grants shall be given to programs that focus on reducing the percentage of children needing special education programs and services when they enter school. The superintendent shall ensure that the intermediate districts and districts receiving grants under this section are geographically and economically diverse and that not more than 10% of the total allocation under this section is paid to any 1 particular intermediate district or district.

(c) The department shall ensure that all programs funded under this section utilize the most current validated research-based methods and curriculum for providing the program components described in subsection (2).

(d) The department shall submit a report to the legislature, the state budget director, and the senate and house fiscal agencies detailing the evaluations described in subsection (4) by December 1 of each year.

(7) An intermediate district or district receiving funds under this section shall use the funds only for the program funded under this section. Grants awarded by February 1, 2001 may be used for the following school year.

Sec. 32c. (1) From the general fund allocation in section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$2,000,000.00 each fiscal year for 2000-2001 ; AND for 2001-2002, and \$0.00 for 2002-2003, to the department for grants for community-based collaborative prevention services designed to foster positive parenting skills; improve parent/child interaction, especially for children 0-3 years of age; promote access to needed community services; increase local capacity to serve families at risk; improve school readiness; and support healthy family environments that discourage alcohol, tobacco, and other drug use. ~~This~~ THE allocation UNDER THIS SECTION is to fund secondary prevention programs as defined by the children's trust fund for the prevention of child abuse and neglect.

(2) The funds allocated under subsection (1) shall be distributed through a joint request for proposals process established by the department in conjunction with the children's trust fund and the state's interagency systems reform workgroup. Projects funded with grants awarded under this section shall meet all of the following:

(a) Be secondary prevention initiatives and voluntary to consumers. This appropriation is not intended to serve the needs of children for whom and families in which neglect or abuse has been substantiated.

(b) Demonstrate that the planned services are part of a community's integrated comprehensive family support strategy endorsed by the local multi-purpose collaborative body.

(c) Provide a 25% local match, of which not more than 10% may be in-kind services, unless this requirement is waived by the interagency systems reform workgroup.

(3) Notwithstanding section 17b, payments under this section may be made pursuant to an agreement with the department.

Sec. 32d. (1) From the state school aid fund allocation under section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$72,600,000.00 each fiscal year for 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 for school readiness grants to enable eligible districts, as determined under section 37, to develop or expand, in conjunction with whatever federal funds may be available, including, but not limited to, federal funds under title I of the elementary and secondary education act of 1965, Public Law 89-10, 108 Stat. 3519, chapter 1 of title I of the Hawkins-Stafford elementary and secondary school improvement amendments of 1988, Public Law 89-10, 102 Stat. 140, and the head start act, subchapter B of chapter 8 of subtitle A of title VI of the omnibus budget reconciliation act of 1981, Public Law 97-35, comprehensive compensatory programs designed to improve the readiness and subsequent achievement of educationally disadvantaged children as defined by the department who will be at least 4, but less than 5 years of age, as of December 1 of the school year in which the programs are offered, and who show evidence of 2 or more risk factors as defined in the state board report entitled "children at risk" that was adopted by the state board on April 5, 1988. A comprehensive compensatory program funded under this section shall include an age-appropriate educational curriculum, nutritional services, health screening for participating children, a plan for parent and legal guardian involvement, and provision of

referral services for families eligible for community social services. In addition, from the general fund allocations under section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$20,200,000.00~~ \$16,250,000.00 for 2000-2001 ; FOR THE PURPOSES OF SUBSECTIONS (2) AND (3) AND an amount not to exceed ~~\$25,200,000.00~~ \$200,000.00 EACH FISCAL YEAR for 2001-2002 ; and ~~an amount not to exceed \$30,200,000.00~~ for 2002-2003 for the purposes of ~~subsections (2) and (3)~~ SUBSECTION (2).

(2) From the general fund allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated each fiscal year for 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 an amount not to exceed \$200,000.00 for a competitive grant to continue a longitudinal evaluation of children who have participated in the Michigan school readiness program.

(3) From the general fund allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$20,000,000.00~~ \$16,050,000.00 for 2000-2001 , ~~an amount not to exceed \$25,000,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$30,000,000.00 for 2002-2003~~ under this subsection to operate new or expanded full-day school readiness or head start programs. The funds shall be allocated through a competitive grant process to eligible districts that receive funding under subsection (1), to eligible public or nonprofit entities or agencies that receive funding for school readiness programs under the department appropriations act, or to eligible head start funded programs. The department shall determine the competitive grant criteria. The department may accept available federal funds from the family independence agency to support the program under this subsection. These federal funds include, but are not limited to, federal temporary assistance to needy families funds.

(4) A district, entity, or agency receiving funding under subsection (3) that offers head start or school readiness programs may use the funds to expand the program to operate a full day.

(5) A district, entity, or agency receiving funding under subsection (3) shall contribute a local match, which may consist of local, private, or federal funds or in-kind services, totaling at least 50% of the allocation under subsection (3).

(6) An application for a grant under subsection (3) shall be in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The department shall make the application form available to districts by December 15 of the school year. The application shall include a program budget that states all sources of funding to be used for the program. Applications shall be submitted to the department not later than February 1 of the school year. The department shall approve or disapprove the application and notify the applying district, entity, or agency of that decision by April 1 of the school year. Funds allocated under subsection (3) for the current fiscal year may be expended through the end of the following fiscal year.

(7) A district receiving a grant under this section may contract for the provision of the comprehensive compensatory program or full day school readiness program and retain for administrative services an amount equal to not more than 5% of the grant amount.

(8) As used in this section, "full day" means a program that offers supplementary day care and therefore offers full-day programming of at least 10 hours per day as part of its school readiness program.

(9) Not more than 10% of the grant funding in this section may be used for start-up, equipment, or other costs not directly related to the costs of the program. This does not prohibit any applicant from receiving other available state assistance for these purposes.

(10) A grant recipient receiving funds under this section shall report to the department no later than October 15 of each year the number of children participating in the program who meet the income or other eligibility criteria specified under section 37(3)(g) and the total number of children participating in the program. For children participating in the program who meet the income or other eligibility criteria specified under section 37(3)(g), grant recipients shall also report whether or not a parent is available to provide care based on employment status. For the purposes of this subsection, "employment status" shall be defined by the family independence agency in a manner consistent with maximizing the amount of spending that may be claimed for temporary assistance for needy families maintenance of effort purposes.

Sec. 32e. (1) From the state school aid fund allocations under section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$29,750,000.00~~ \$26,650,000.00 each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 for grants to eligible districts for programs to maintain or establish small classes in grades K to 3 in eligible school buildings in the district.

(2) For a school building to be eligible for funding under this section, the school building must operate at least 1 of grades K to 3; the school building must be operated by a district that operates all of grades K to 12 and that receives funds under section 31a; and at least 50% of the actual pupils enrolled in the school building in the immediately preceding fiscal year must have been eligible for free lunch, as determined under the Richard B. Russell national school lunch act, chapter 281, 60 Stat. 230, 42 U.S.C. 1751 to 1753, 1755 to 1761, 1762a, 1765 to 1766a, 1769, 1769b to 1769c, and 1769f to 1769h, and reported to the department not later than October 31 of the immediately preceding fiscal year and adjusted not later than December 31 of the immediately preceding fiscal year.

(3) Not more than 25% of the total allocation under subsection (1) may be paid to any 1 particular district. The department shall make allocations under subsection (1) to at least 12 districts, and the districts shall be geographically diverse.

(4) A district receiving funds under subsection (1) shall use the funds to maintain or establish small classes in grades K to 3 in school buildings of the district for which funds are received under this section. The average class size shall be not more than 17 pupils per class, with not more than 19 pupils in any particular class. Each fiscal year, a district receiving funds under subsection (1) shall use at least \$2,000,000.00 or 25% of the funds the district receives for the fiscal year under section 31a, whichever is less, for the purposes of this section.

(5) Except as otherwise provided in this section, funding to districts under this section for 2000-2001 is intended to be for the third of 5 years of funding under this section and former section 31c, funding to districts under this section for 2001-2002 is intended to be for the fourth of 5 years of funding under this section and former section 31c, and funding under this section for 2002-2003 is intended to be for the fifth of 5 years of funding under this section and former section 31c. For districts receiving funding under this section for the first time from the additional ~~\$10,000,000.00~~ \$6,900,000.00 allocated under this section for 2000-2001, as compared to the funding under former section 31c, funding to those districts under this section for 2000-2001 is intended to be for the first of 3 years of funding, funding to those districts under this section for 2001-2002 is intended to be for the second of 3 years of funding, and funding to those districts under this section for 2002-2003 is intended to be for the third of 3 years of funding.

(6) The funds allocated under this section for a fiscal year may be expended after the fiscal year through the end of either the fifth fiscal year of funding under this section and former section 31c or the final fiscal year of funding under this section and former section 31c, whichever occurs earlier.

Sec. 32f. (1) From the state school aid fund allocation under section 32a(1), there is allocated for 2000-2001 an amount not to exceed \$57,500,000.00, ~~and there is allocated each fiscal year for 2001-2002 and 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$45,000,000.00, AND FOR 2002-2003 \$0.00, for grants under this section. From the general fund allocation under section 32a(1), there is allocated ~~each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$2,750,000.00 for the purposes of subsections (4) and (5), AND THERE IS ALLOCATED EACH FISCAL YEAR FOR 2001-2002 AND FOR 2002-2003 \$0.00 FOR THE PURPOSES OF SUBSECTION (4).

(2) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated ~~each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$5,000,000.00, FOR 2001-2002 AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$2,000,000.00, AND FOR 2002-2003 \$0.00, for providing grants to the 8 regional literacy centers for the purposes of expanding training programs for trainers and teachers in the use of strategies for reading instruction and assessment, including the Michigan literacy progress profile.

(3) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated for 2000-2001 an amount not to exceed \$2,500,000.00 for competitive grants to higher education institutions for the development or enhancement of programs to meet the needs of autism impaired pupils. These programs may include, but are not limited to, student intervention centers on campus.

(4) From the general fund allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated to the department ~~each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$2,500,000.00 FOR 2000-2001 AND \$0.00 EACH FISCAL YEAR FOR 2001-2002 AND FOR 2002-2003 for the development and dissemination of read, educate, and develop youth (READY) kits to parents of preschool and kindergarten children to provide these parents with information about how they can prepare their children for reading success.

(5) From the general fund allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated to the department ~~each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$250,000.00 AND EACH FISCAL YEAR FOR 2001-2002 AND 2002-2003 \$0.00 for the grant review process and grant administration under this section.

(6) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (18), to be eligible for a grant under this section, a district must have had at least 1,500 pupils in membership in 1998-99, and the number of pupils in the district that have been determined to have a specific learning disability according to R 340.1713 of the Michigan administrative code, as determined in the December 1, 1998 head count required under the individuals with disabilities education act, title VI of Public Law 91-230, must equal or exceed 5% of the district's membership. In addition, a district is eligible for a grant under this section if the district had at least 1,500 pupils in membership in 1998-99 and if not more than 41% of the district's pupils who took the spring 1999 fourth grade MEAP reading test achieved a score of at least satisfactory. Except as otherwise provided in subsection (18), for a public school academy to be eligible for a grant under this section, the public school academy must be located in a district that is eligible under this subsection.

(7) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated ~~each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$50,000,000.00, FOR 2001-2002 AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$43,000,000.00, AND FOR 2002-2003 \$0.00, for competitive grants to eligible districts, to intermediate districts, and to public school academies located within eligible districts for reading improvements programs for pupils in grades K to 4, reading disorders and reading methods programs, mentoring programs, language and literacy outreach programs, or cognitive development programs. FOR 2001-2002, GRANTS UNDER THIS SUBSECTION SHALL BE PAID TO GRANT RECIPIENTS IN THE SAME PROPORTION OF THE TOTAL ALLOCATION UNDER THIS SUBSECTION AS FOR 2000-2001. IF THE LEGISLATURE ENACTS LEGISLATION AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF FEDERAL FUNDS FOR READING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS FOR 2001-2002 OR FOR 2002-2003, THEN IT

IS THE INTENT OF THE LEGISLATURE THAT THESE FUNDS BE USED TO THE EXTENT POSSIBLE FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS SUBSECTION. FEDERAL FUNDS RECEIVED FOR READING IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS THAT CAN BE USED FOR SUBSTANTIALLY SIMILAR PURPOSES AS DESCRIBED UNDER THIS SECTION SHALL BE FIRST EXPENDED FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS SUBSECTION BEFORE FUNDS APPROPRIATED FROM THE STATE SCHOOL AID FUND ALLOCATED UNDER THIS SUBSECTION, AND THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS UNDER THIS SUBSECTION FROM THE STATE SCHOOL AID FUND SHALL BE REDUCED BY AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE AMOUNT OF THE EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL FUNDS UNDER THIS SUBSECTION. IF ANY CONFLICT EXISTS BETWEEN FEDERAL READING PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND THIS SECTION, FEDERAL LAW WILL CONTROL.

(8) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (18), to qualify for funding under this section, a proposed reading improvement program must meet all of the following:

(a) The program shall include assessment of reading skills of pupils in grades K to 4 to identify those pupils who are reading below grade level and must provide special reading assistance for these pupils.

(b) The program shall be a research-based, validated, structured reading program.

(c) The program shall include continuous assessment of pupils and individualized education plans for pupils.

(d) The program shall align learning resources to state standards.

(e) For each school building receiving funding under this section for a reading improvement program, the program shall serve at least 25% of pupils who are identified as at-risk, as determined by the Michigan literacy progress profile, of reading failure, and the amount of the grant shall not exceed \$85,000.00 per school building annually.

(9) Funds allocated for programs described in subsection (8) may be used to reimburse grant recipients for funds paid by districts for up to 1/2 of the salaries and benefits for each teacher trained and certified to provide a reading improvement program.

(10) Except as otherwise provided under subsection (18), to qualify for funding under this section, a proposed mentoring program must be a research-based, validated program or a statewide 1-to-1 mentoring program to enhance the independence and life quality of pupils who are mentally impaired by providing opportunities for mentoring and integrated employment.

(11) Except as otherwise provided under subsection (18), to qualify for funding under this section, a proposed cognitive development program must be a research-based, validated educational service program, focused on assessing and building essential cognitive and perceptual learning abilities to strengthen pupil concentration and learning.

(12) Except as otherwise provided under subsection (18), to qualify for funding under this section, a proposed structured mentoring-tutorial reading program for preschool to grade 4 pupils must be a research-based, validated program that develops individualized instructional plans based on each pupil's age, assessed needs, reading level, interests, and learning style.

(13) A program receiving funding under this section may be conducted outside of regular school hours or outside the regular school calendar.

(14) To compete for a grant under this section, an applicant shall apply to the superintendent in the form and manner prescribed by the superintendent. The department shall make applications available for this purpose. An applicant shall include in its application a projected budget for the programs. The grant recipient shall provide at least a 20% local match from local public or private resources for the funds received under this section. Not more than 1/2 of this matching requirement, up to a total of 10% of the total project budget, may be satisfied through in-kind services provided by participating providers of programs or services. In addition, not more than 10% of the grant may be used for program administration.

(15) The superintendent shall approve or disapprove applications and notify the applicant of that decision. Priority in awarding grants shall be given to programs that focus on accelerating student achievement on a cost-effective basis, reducing the number of pupils requiring special education programs and services, and improving pupil scores on standardized tests and assessments.

(16) A grant recipient receiving funds under this section shall report to the department, in the form and manner prescribed by the department, on the results achieved by the program. At a minimum, the grant recipient shall report to the department by October 15 regarding the program's impact on reducing the number of pupils requiring special education programs and services and on improving pupil scores on standardized tests and assessments, and information on the costs and benefits per unit of pupil improvement. In addition, the report shall state the number of pupils eligible for free or reduced price school lunch who received services under the program and the total number of pupils who received services under the program. Not later than November 15 of each fiscal year, the department shall submit a report to the legislature, the state budget director, and the senate and house agencies detailing the results of the programs. It is the intent of the legislature that further funding for the programs under this section will reflect the results achieved in these programs.

(17) Notwithstanding section 17b, payments under this section shall be paid on a schedule determined by the department.

(18) For a district or public school academy awarded a grant under former section 32, the determination of whether the district or public school academy is eligible for a grant under this section may be made according to the eligibility standards in effect under former section 32. Further, the district or public school academy may continue to use the grant proceeds for any use permissible under this section or former section 32 as in effect at the time the district or public school academy was awarded the grant.

(19) If the maximum amount appropriated under this section exceeds the amount necessary to fully fund allocations under this section, that excess amount shall not be expended in that state fiscal year but shall instead be carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and added to any funds appropriated for that fiscal year for expenditure in that fiscal year.

(20) A district that received funding for 1999-2000 under former section 32 shall receive funding under this section for 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003.

Sec. 32g. (1) From the state school aid fund allocation under section 32a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$38,000,000.00 each fiscal year~~ \$28,000,000.00 for 2000-2001 ~~and for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$50,000,000.00 for 2002-2003~~ for payments to districts to provide summer school instruction in reading and mathematics for pupils in grade 1, 2, 3, or 4.

(2) In order to improve elementary school pupil achievement, districts may provide summer school instruction in reading and mathematics. The department shall develop a model summer mathematics program for pupils who attended grade 1, 2, 3, or 4 in the school year that just ended and who have demonstrated the need for additional mathematics skills training, as evidenced by standardized test results on tests approved by the department for this purpose. The model mathematics program shall be in conformance with the national education goals and shall also meet criteria for DED-OESE, title I program funding.

(3) To be eligible to participate in summer school instruction funded under this section during a particular summer, a pupil shall have been enrolled in grade 1, 2, 3, or 4 in the school year that just ended and shall meet at least 1 of the following criteria:

(a) Achieved less than satisfactory results, as determined by the district, in the mathematics or reading portion of a department-approved annual standardized assessment of grade-appropriate basic educational skills.

(b) Scored in the low performance category of the mathematics or reading portion of the grade 4 Michigan education assessment program (MEAP) test.

(4) An application for funding under this section shall be submitted to the department for approval, in a manner and on forms prescribed by the department, by a date specified by the department.

(5) A district that receives funding under this section shall, at a minimum, offer summer school instruction under this section for pupils who were enrolled in grade 3 in the school year that just ended and met the criteria described in subsection (3)(a).

(6) A district that receives funding under this section shall provide a minimum of 6 weeks of pupil instruction under this section in mathematics and reading. In addition, applications for funding may include the provision of auxiliary services by the district in a manner determined by the district for such services as school lunch and transportation as is necessary to encourage pupil participation.

(7) A district applying for funding under this section must identify money from other sources available to the district that will be used to support at least 50% of the total costs of the summer school program.

(8) Grant awards under this section shall be distributed in accordance with the following:

(a) Eighty percent of the amount provided to a grant recipient shall be based on enrollment of eligible participants.

(b) Twenty percent of the amount provided to a grant recipient shall be based on measured improvement in reading or mathematics, as applicable.

(9) Funds allocated to a district under this section shall not be used to supplant other state or federal funds allocated to the district for similar purposes.

(10) Subject to program capacity, a pupil who was enrolled in grade 1, 2, 3, or 4 in the school year that just ended but who does not otherwise meet the eligibility criteria under this section may receive summer school instruction described in this section upon the payment of tuition. The tuition level shall be determined by the district but shall not exceed actual operating costs.

(11) A district receiving funding under this section shall report on the results achieved by the summer school program in a manner prescribed by the department. At a minimum, the grant recipient shall report to the department by October 15 regarding the program's impact on reducing the number of pupils requiring special education programs and services and on improving pupil scores on standardized tests and assessments, and information on the costs and benefits per unit of pupil improvement. In addition, the report shall state the number of pupils eligible for free or reduced price school lunch who received services under the program and the total number of pupils who received services under the program. Not later than November 15 of each fiscal year, the department shall submit a report to the legislature, the state budget director, and the senate and house fiscal agencies detailing the results of the programs.

(12) ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, notwithstanding~~ NOTWITHSTANDING section 17b, payments under this section shall be paid on a schedule determined by the department.

(13) Districts may form consortia or enter into cooperative arrangements for operating programs and obtaining funding under this section.

(14) Funds allocated under this section that are not expended in the state fiscal year for which they were allocated may be carried forward to a subsequent state fiscal year.

Sec. 32h. From the school aid fund allocation under section 32a(1), there is allocated ~~each fiscal year~~ for 2000-2001 ; ~~for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed ~~\$10,000,000.00~~ \$1,600,000.00 to provide additional resources for coordinating counseling services or for payments to districts to make tuition grants for higher education programs that lead to a degree in school counseling.

Sec. 33. ~~(1) From the state school aid fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$15,000,000.00 for 1999-2000 only to a district that is a school district of the first class under the revised school code.~~

(1) ~~(2)~~ From the state school aid fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$15,000,000.00 EACH FISCAL YEAR for 2000-2001 ~~only~~ AND FOR 2001-2002 to a district that is a qualifying school district under part 5a of the revised school code, MCL 380.371 to 380.376, or that is the subject of intervention under a substantially similar provision of the revised school code. If more than 1 district qualifies for funding under this subsection, the funds shall be allocated on an equal per-pupil basis.

(2) ~~(3)~~ Funds allocated under this section are for measures to improve student performance, including, but not limited to, enhanced school security and reading readiness programs.

Sec. 41. From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$4,212,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003, to applicant districts and intermediate districts offering programs of bilingual instruction for pupils of limited English-speaking ability under section 1153 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1153. Reimbursement shall be on a per pupil basis and shall be based on the number of pupils of limited English-speaking ability in membership on the pupil membership count day. Funds allocated under this section shall be used solely for bilingual instruction in speaking, reading, writing, or comprehension of pupils of limited English-speaking ability.

Sec. 51a. (1) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated for ~~1999-2000~~ 2000-2001 an amount not to exceed ~~\$777,631,900.00~~ \$739,021,900.00 from state sources and all available federal funding under sections 611 to 619 of part B of the individuals with disabilities education act, title VI of Public Law 91-230, 20 U.S.C. 1411 to 1419, estimated at ~~\$125,000,000.00~~ \$160,000,000.00, plus any carryover federal funds from previous year appropriations; ~~there is allocated for 2000-2001 an amount not to exceed \$746,121,900.00 from state sources and all available federal funding, estimated at \$145,000,000.00, plus any carryover federal funds from previous year appropriations;~~ there is allocated for 2001-2002 an amount not to exceed ~~\$805,861,900.00~~ \$794,821,900.00 from state sources and all available federal funding, estimated at ~~\$145,000,000.00~~ \$203,000,000.00, plus any carryover federal funds from previous year appropriations; and there is allocated for 2002-2003 an amount not to exceed ~~\$863,811,900.00~~ \$848,661,900.00 from state sources and all available federal funding, estimated at ~~\$145,000,000.00~~ \$235,000,000.00, plus any carryover federal funds from previous year appropriations. The allocations under this subsection are for the purpose of reimbursing districts and intermediate districts for special education programs, services, and special education personnel as prescribed in article 3 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1701 to 380.1766; net tuition payments made by intermediate districts to the Michigan schools for the deaf and blind; and special education programs and services for pupils who are eligible for special education programs and services according to statute or rule. For meeting the costs of special education programs and services not reimbursed under this article, a district or intermediate district may use money in general funds or special education funds, not otherwise restricted, or contributions from districts to intermediate districts, tuition payments, gifts and contributions from individuals, or federal funds that may be available for this purpose, as determined by the intermediate district plan prepared pursuant to article 3 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1701 to 380.1766.

(2) From the funds allocated under subsection (1), there is allocated ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 the amount necessary, estimated at ~~\$656,000,000.00 for 1999-2000, \$126,000,000.00~~ \$128,200,000.00 for 2000-2001, ~~\$136,000,000.00~~ \$138,000,000.00 for 2001-2002, and ~~\$147,000,000.00~~ \$148,000,000.00 for 2002-2003, for payments toward reimbursing districts and intermediate districts for 28.6138% of total approved costs of special education, excluding costs reimbursed under section 53a, and 70.4165% of total approved costs of special education transportation. Allocations under this subsection shall be made as follows:

(a) The initial amount allocated to a district under this subsection toward fulfilling the specified percentages shall be calculated by multiplying the district's special education pupil membership, excluding pupils described in subsection (12), times the sum of the foundation allowance under section 20 of the pupil's district of residence plus the amount of the district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2), not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current fiscal year and \$5,000.00, or, for a special education pupil in membership in a district that is a public school academy or university school, times an amount equal to the amount per membership pupil calculated under section 20(6). For an intermediate district, the amount allocated under this subdivision toward fulfilling the specified percentages shall be an amount per special education membership pupil, excluding pupils described in subsection (12), and shall be calculated in the same manner

as for a district, using the foundation allowance under section 20 of the pupil's district of residence, not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current fiscal year and \$5,000.00, and that district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2). However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subdivision shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00.

(b) After the allocations under subdivision (a), districts and intermediate districts for which the payments under subdivision (a) do not fulfill the specified percentages shall be paid the amount necessary to achieve the specified percentages for the district or intermediate district.

(3) From the funds allocated under subsection (1), there is allocated ~~for 1999-2000~~ EACH FISCAL YEAR FOR 2000-2001, FOR 2001-2002, AND FOR 2002-2003 the amount necessary, estimated at ~~\$38,300,000.00~~ \$3,000,000.00 EACH FISCAL YEAR, to make payments to districts and intermediate districts under this subsection. If the amount allocated to a district or intermediate district for a fiscal year under subsection (2)(b) is less than the sum of the amounts allocated to the district or intermediate district for 1996-97 under sections 52 and 58, there is allocated to the district or intermediate district for the fiscal year an amount equal to that difference, adjusted by applying the same proration factor that was used in the distribution of funds under section 52 in 1996-97 as adjusted to the district's or intermediate district's necessary costs of special education used in calculations for the fiscal year. This adjustment is to reflect reductions in special education program operations between 1996-97 and subsequent fiscal years. Beginning in 2000-2001, adjustments for reductions in special education program operations shall be made in a manner determined by the department and shall include adjustments for program shifts.

(4) If the department determines that the sum of the amounts allocated for a fiscal year to a district or intermediate district under subsection (2)(a) and (b) is not sufficient to fulfill the specified percentages in subsection (2), then the shortfall shall be paid to the district or intermediate district during the fiscal year beginning on the October 1 following the determination and payments under subsection (3) shall be adjusted as necessary. If the department determines that the sum of the amounts allocated for a fiscal year to a district or intermediate district under subsection (2)(a) and (b) exceeds the sum of the amount necessary to fulfill the specified percentages in subsection (2), then the department shall deduct the amount of the excess from the district's or intermediate district's payments under this act for the fiscal year beginning on the October 1 following the determination and payments under subsection (3) shall be adjusted as necessary. However, if the amount allocated under subsection (2)(a) in itself exceeds the amount necessary to fulfill the specified percentages in subsection (2), there shall be no deduction under this subsection.

(5) State funds shall be allocated on a total approved cost basis. Federal funds shall be allocated under applicable federal requirements, except that an amount not to exceed \$3,500,000.00 each fiscal year may be allocated by the department ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to districts or intermediate districts on a competitive grant basis for programs, equipment, and services that the department determines to be designed to benefit or improve special education on a statewide scale.

(6) From the amount allocated in subsection (1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$2,200,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to reimburse 100% of the net increase in necessary costs incurred by a district or intermediate district in implementing the revisions in the administrative rules for special education that became effective on July 1, 1987. As used in this subsection, "net increase in necessary costs" means the necessary additional costs incurred solely because of new or revised requirements in the administrative rules minus cost savings permitted in implementing the revised rules. Net increase in necessary costs shall be determined in a manner specified by the department.

(7) For purposes of this article, all of the following apply:

(a) "Total approved costs of special education" shall be determined in a manner specified by the department and may include indirect costs, but shall not exceed 115% of approved direct costs for section 52 and section 53a programs. The total approved costs include salary and other compensation for all approved special education personnel for the program, including payments for social security and medicare and public school employee retirement system contributions. The total approved costs do not include salaries or other compensation paid to administrative personnel who are not special education personnel as defined in section 6 of the revised school code, MCL 380.6. Costs reimbursed by federal funds, other than those federal funds included in the allocation made under this article, are not included. Special education approved personnel not utilized full time in the evaluation of students or in the delivery of special education programs, ancillary, and other related services shall be reimbursed under this section only for that portion of time actually spent providing these programs and services, with the exception of special education programs and services provided to youth placed in child caring institutions or juvenile detention programs approved by the department to provide an on-grounds education program.

(b) Reimbursement for ancillary and other related services, as defined by R 340.1701 of the Michigan administrative code, shall not be provided when those services are covered by and available through private group health insurance carriers or federal reimbursed program sources unless the department and district or intermediate district agree otherwise and that agreement is approved by the state budget director. Expenses, other than the incidental expense of

filing, shall not be borne by the parent. In addition, the filing of claims shall not delay the education of a pupil. A district or intermediate district shall be responsible for payment of a deductible amount and for an advance payment required until the time a claim is paid.

(8) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 an amount not to exceed \$15,313,900.00 each fiscal year to intermediate districts. The payment under this subsection to each intermediate district shall be equal to the amount of the 1996-97 allocation to the intermediate district under subsection (6) of this section as in effect for 1996-97.

(9) A pupil who is enrolled in a full-time special education program conducted or administered by an intermediate district or a pupil who is enrolled in the Michigan schools for the deaf and blind shall not be included in the membership count of a district, but shall be counted in membership in the intermediate district of residence.

(10) Special education personnel transferred from 1 district to another to implement the revised school code shall be entitled to the rights, benefits, and tenure to which the person would otherwise be entitled had that person been employed by the receiving district originally.

(11) If a district or intermediate district uses money received under this section for a purpose other than the purpose or purposes for which the money is allocated, the department may require the district or intermediate district to refund the amount of money received. Money that is refunded shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of the state school aid fund.

(12) From the funds allocated in subsection (1), there is allocated each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 the amount necessary, estimated at ~~\$11,100,000.00 for 1999-2000~~, ~~\$7,700,000.00~~ \$6,700,000.00 for 2000-2001, ~~\$8,140,000.00~~ \$7,100,000.00 for 2001-2002, and ~~\$8,350,000.00~~ \$7,300,000.00 for 2002-2003 to pay the foundation allowances for pupils described in this subsection. The allocation to a district under this subsection shall be calculated by multiplying the number of pupils described in this subsection who are counted in membership in the district times the sum of the foundation allowance under section 20 of the pupil's district of residence plus the amount of the district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2), not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current fiscal year and \$5,000.00, or, for a pupil described in this subsection who is counted in membership in a district that is a public school academy or university school, times an amount equal to the amount per membership pupil under section 20(6). The allocation to an intermediate district under this subsection shall be calculated in the same manner as for a district, using the foundation allowance under section 20 of the pupil's district of residence, not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current fiscal year and \$5,000.00, and that district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2). However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00. This subsection applies to all of the following pupils:

- (a) Pupils described in section 53a.
- (b) Pupils counted in membership in an intermediate district who are not special education pupils and are served by the intermediate district in a juvenile detention or child caring facility.
- (c) Emotionally impaired pupils counted in membership by an intermediate district and provided educational services by the department of community health.

(13) After payments under subsections (2) and (12) and ~~, beginning in 2000-2001~~, section 51c, the remaining expenditures from the allocation in subsection (1) shall be made in the following order:

- (a) 100% of the reimbursement required under section 53a.
- (b) 100% of the reimbursement required under subsection (6).
- (c) 100% of the payment required under section 54.
- (d) 100% of the payment required under subsection (3).
- (e) 100% of the payment required under subsection (8).
- (f) 100% of the payments under section 56.

(14) ~~Beginning in 2000-2001~~, the THE allocations under subsection (2), subsection (3), and subsection (12) shall be allocations to intermediate districts only and shall not be allocations to districts, but instead shall be calculations used only to determine the state payments under section 22b.

Sec. 51c. As required by the court in the consolidated cases known as Durant v the state STATE of Michigan, Michigan supreme court docket no. 104458-104492, from the allocation under section 51a(1), there is allocated for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 the amount necessary, estimated at ~~\$540,300,000.00~~ \$529,000,000.00 for 2000-2001, ~~\$583,000,000.00~~ \$568,000,000.00 for 2001-2002, and ~~\$629,100,000.00~~ \$611,000,000.00 for 2002-2003, for payments to reimburse districts for 28.6138% of total approved costs of special education excluding costs reimbursed under section 53a, and 70.4165% of total approved costs of special education transportation. FUNDS ALLOCATED UNDER THIS SECTION THAT ARE NOT EXPENDED IN THE STATE FISCAL YEAR FOR WHICH THEY WERE ALLOCATED, AS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT, MAY BE USED TO SUPPLEMENT THE ALLOCATIONS UNDER SECTIONS 22A AND 22B IN ORDER TO FULLY FUND THOSE CALCULATED ALLOCATIONS FOR THE SAME FISCAL YEAR.

Sec. 53a. (1) For districts, reimbursement for pupils described in subsection (2), reimbursement shall be 100% of the total approved costs of operating special education programs and services approved by the department and included in the intermediate district plan adopted pursuant to article 3 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1701 to 380.1766, minus the district's foundation allowance calculated under section 20, and minus the amount of the district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2). For intermediate districts, reimbursement for pupils described in section (2) shall be calculated in the same manner as for a district, using the foundation allowance under section 20 of the pupil's district of residence, not to exceed \$6,500.00 adjusted by the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the current fiscal year and \$5,000.00, and that district's per pupil allocation under section 20j(2). However, beginning in 2002-2003, the \$6,500.00 amount prescribed in this subsection shall be adjusted each year by an amount equal to the dollar amount of the difference between the basic foundation allowance for the current state fiscal year and \$5,000.00, minus \$200.00.

(2) Reimbursement under subsection (1) is for the following special education pupils:

(a) Pupils assigned to a district or intermediate district through the community placement program of the courts or a state agency, if the pupil was a resident of another intermediate district at the time the pupil came under the jurisdiction of the court or a state agency.

(b) Pupils who are residents of institutions operated by the department of community health.

(c) Pupils who are former residents of department of community health institutions for the developmentally disabled who are placed in community settings other than the pupil's home.

(d) Pupils enrolled in a department-approved on-grounds educational program longer than 180 days, but not longer than 233 days, at a residential child care institution, if the child care institution offered in 1991-92 an on-grounds educational program longer than 180 days but not longer than 233 days.

(e) Pupils placed in a district by a parent for the purpose of seeking a suitable home, if the parent does not reside in the same intermediate district as the district in which the pupil is placed.

(3) Only those costs that are clearly and directly attributable to educational programs for pupils described in subsection (2), and that would not have been incurred if the pupils were not being educated in a district or intermediate district, are reimbursable under this section.

(4) The costs of transportation shall be funded under this section ~~but~~ AND shall not be reimbursed under section 58.

(5) Not more than ~~\$14,500,000.00 for 1999-2000, and not more than~~ \$14,800,000.00 each fiscal year for 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003, of the allocation in section 51a(1) shall be allocated under this section.

(6) From the allocation in subsection (5), there is allocated each fiscal year for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 an amount not to exceed \$150,000.00 to an intermediate district that received at least \$1,000,000.00 for 1999-2000 under subsection (4).

Sec. 54. In addition to the aid received under section 52, each intermediate district shall receive an amount per pupil for each pupil in attendance at the Michigan schools for the deaf and blind. The amount shall be proportionate to the total instructional cost at each school. Not more than \$1,688,000.00 each fiscal year for ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 of the allocation in section 51a(1) shall be allocated under this section.

Sec. 56. (1) For the purposes of this section:

(a) "Membership" means for a particular fiscal year the total membership for the immediately preceding fiscal year of the intermediate district and the districts constituent to the intermediate district.

(b) "Millage levied" means the millage levied for special education pursuant to part 30 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1711 to 380.1743, including a levy for debt service obligations.

(c) "Taxable value" means the total taxable value of the districts constituent to an intermediate district, except that if a district has elected not to come under part 30 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1711 to 380.1743, membership and taxable value of the district shall not be included in the membership and taxable value of the intermediate district.

(2) From the allocation under section 51a(1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$38,530,000.00 for 1999-2000~~, \$38,120,000.00 for 2000-2001, \$44,720,000.00 for 2001-2002, and \$45,360,000.00 for 2002-2003 to reimburse intermediate districts levying millages for special education pursuant to part 30 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1711 to 380.1743. The purpose, use, and expenditure of the reimbursement shall be limited as if the funds were generated by these millages and governed by the intermediate district plan adopted pursuant to article 3 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1701 to 380.1766. As a condition of receiving funds under this section, an intermediate district distributing any portion of special education millage funds to its constituent districts shall submit for departmental approval and implement a distribution plan.

(3) ~~Reimbursement for those millages levied in 1998-99 shall be made in 1999-2000 at an amount per 1998-99 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$106,800.00 the 1998-99 taxable value behind each membership pupil, and multiplying the resulting difference by the 1998-99 millage levied. Reimbursement for those millages levied in 1999-2000 shall be made in 2000-2001 at an amount per 1999-2000 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$111,700.00 the 1999-2000 taxable value behind each membership pupil, and multiplying the resulting difference by the 1999-2000 millage levied. Reimbursement for those millages levied in 2000-2001 shall be made in 2001-2002 at an amount per 2000-2001 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$118,000.00 the 2000-2001 taxable value~~

behind each membership pupil and multiplying the resulting difference by the 2000-2001 millage levied. Reimbursement for those millages levied in 2001-2002 shall be made in 2002-2003 at an amount per 2001-2002 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$123,500.00 the 2001-2002 taxable value behind each membership pupil and multiplying the resulting difference by the 2001-2002 millage levied.

(4) From the allocation in subsection (2), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$3,300,000.00 for 1999-2000, an amount not to exceed~~ \$2,440,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed \$6,820,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$7,240,000.00 for 2002-2003 for payments to intermediate districts under this subsection that do not qualify for a payment under subsection (3) for reimbursement for changes as a result of revisions to the personal property tax depreciation tables. ~~The allocation for 1999-2000 includes payments for prior year adjustments in taxable value for changes as a result of revisions to the personal property tax depreciation tables.~~ To receive a payment under this subsection, an intermediate district shall file a claim by July 1 of the fiscal year to the department, detailing the loss of revenue to the intermediate district's special education millage attributable to those revisions. The amount of the payment under this subsection to each intermediate district shall be an amount equal to the same proportion of the total amount of funding available under this subsection as the intermediate district's claim under this section bears to the total amount of claims under this subsection and, notwithstanding section 121, shall not be adjusted for prior year adjustments more than 2 years after the end of the state fiscal year for which payment under this subsection was made.

Sec. 57. (1) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$600,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000,~~ for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to applicant intermediate districts that provide support services for the education of gifted and talented pupils. An intermediate district is entitled to 75% of the actual salary, but not to exceed \$25,000.00 reimbursement for an individual salary, of a support services teacher approved by the department, and not to exceed \$4,000.00 reimbursement for expenditures to support program costs, excluding in-county travel and salary, as approved by the department.

(2) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$400,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000,~~ for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to support part of the cost of summer institutes for gifted and talented students. This amount shall be contracted to applicant intermediate districts in cooperation with a local institution of higher education and shall be coordinated by the department.

(3) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~an amount not to exceed \$4,000,000.00 for 1999-2000, and~~ an amount not to exceed \$5,000,000.00 ~~each fiscal year~~ for 2000-2001, AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$4,000,000.00 for 2001-2002, and AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$4,000,000.00 for 2002-2003 for the development and operation of comprehensive programs for gifted and talented pupils. An eligible district or consortium of districts shall receive an amount not to exceed \$100.00 per K-12 pupil for up to 5% of the district's or consortium's K-12 membership for the immediately preceding fiscal year with a minimum total grant of \$6,000.00. Funding shall be provided in the following order: the per pupil allotment, and then the minimum total grant of \$6,000.00 to individual districts. An intermediate district may act as the fiscal agent for a consortium of districts. In order to be eligible for funding under this subsection, the district or consortium of districts shall submit each year a current 3-year plan for operating a comprehensive program for gifted and talented pupils and the district or consortium shall demonstrate to the department that the district or consortium will contribute matching funds of at least \$50.00 per K-12 pupil. The plan or revised plan shall be developed in accordance with criteria established by the department and shall be submitted to the department for approval. Within the criteria, the department shall encourage the development of consortia among districts of less than 5,000 memberships.

Sec. 61a. (1) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$31,027,600.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000,~~ for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to reimburse on an added cost basis districts, except for a district that served as the fiscal agent for a vocational education consortium in the 1993-94 school year, and secondary area vocational-technical education centers for secondary-level vocational-technical education programs, including parenthood education programs, according to rules approved by the superintendent. Applications for participation in the programs shall be submitted in the form prescribed by the department. The department shall determine the added cost for each vocational-technical program area. The allocation of added cost funds shall be based on the type of vocational-technical programs provided, the number of pupils enrolled, and the length of the training period provided, and shall not exceed 75% of the added cost of any program. With the approval of the department, the board of a district maintaining a secondary vocational-technical education program may offer the program for the period from the close of the school year until September 1. The program shall use existing facilities and shall be operated as prescribed by rules promulgated by the superintendent.

(2) Except for a district that served as the fiscal agent for a vocational education consortium in the 1993-94 school year, districts and intermediate districts shall be reimbursed for local vocational administration, shared time vocational administration, and career education planning district vocational-technical administration. The definition of what constitutes administration and reimbursement shall be pursuant to guidelines adopted by the superintendent. Not more than \$800,000.00 of the allocation in subsection (1) shall be distributed under this subsection.

(3) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$388,700.00 each fiscal year to intermediate districts with constituent districts that had combined state and local revenue per membership pupil in the

1994-95 state fiscal year of \$6,500.00 or more, served as a fiscal agent for a state board designated area vocational education center in the 1993-94 school year, and had an adjustment made to their 1994-95 combined state and local revenue per membership pupil pursuant to section 20d. The payment under this subsection to the intermediate district shall equal the amount of the allocation to the intermediate district for 1996-97 under this subsection.

Sec. 62. (1) For the purposes of this section:

(a) "Membership" means for a particular fiscal year the total membership for the immediately preceding fiscal year of the intermediate district and the districts constituent to the intermediate district or the total membership for the immediately preceding fiscal year of the area vocational-technical program.

(b) "Millage levied" means the millage levied for area vocational-technical education pursuant to sections 681 to 690 of the revised school code, MCL 380.681 to 380.690, including a levy for debt service obligations incurred as the result of borrowing for capital outlay projects and in meeting capital projects fund requirements of area vocational-technical education.

(c) "Taxable value" means the total taxable value of the districts constituent to an intermediate district or area vocational-technical education program, except that if a district has elected not to come under sections 681 to 690 of the revised school code, MCL 380.681 to 380.690, the membership and taxable value of that district shall not be included in the membership and taxable value of the intermediate district. However, the membership and taxable value of a district that has elected not to come under sections 681 to 690 of the revised school code, MCL 380.681 to 380.690, shall be included in the membership and taxable value of the intermediate district if the district meets both of the following:

(i) The district operates the area vocational-technical education program pursuant to a contract with the intermediate district.

(ii) The district contributes an annual amount to the operation of the program that is commensurate with the revenue that would have been raised for operation of the program if millage were levied in the district for the program under sections 681 to 690 of the revised school code, MCL 380.681 to 380.690.

(2) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$9,880,000.00 for 1999-2000, an amount not to exceed~~ \$9,810,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed \$11,190,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$11,330,000.00 for 2002-2003 to reimburse intermediate districts and area vocational-technical education programs established under section 690(3) of the revised school code, MCL 380.690, levying millages for area vocational-technical education pursuant to sections 681 to 690 of the revised school code, MCL 380.681 to 380.690. The purpose, use, and expenditure of the reimbursement shall be limited as if the funds were generated by those millages.

(3) ~~Reimbursement for the millages levied in 1998-99 shall be made in 1999-2000 at an amount per 1998-99 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$108,800.00 the 1998-99 taxable value behind each membership pupil, and multiplying the resulting difference by the 1998-99 millage levied.~~ Reimbursement for the millages levied in 1999-2000 shall be made in 2000-2001 at an amount per 1999-2000 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$114,300.00 the 1999-2000 taxable value behind each membership pupil, and multiplying the resulting difference by the 1999-2000 millage levied. Reimbursement for the millages levied in 2000-2001 shall be made in 2001-2002 at an amount per 2000-2001 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$121,500.00 the 2000-2001 taxable value behind each membership pupil, and multiplying the resulting difference by the 2000-2001 millage levied. Reimbursement for the millages levied in 2001-2002 shall be made in 2002-2003 at an amount per 2001-2002 membership pupil computed by subtracting from \$127,600.00 the 2001-2002 taxable value behind each membership pupil, and multiplying the resulting difference by the 2001-2002 millage levied.

(4) From the allocation in subsection (2), there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$670,000.00 for 1999-2000, an amount not to exceed~~ \$500,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed \$1,380,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$1,470,000.00 for 2002-2003 for payments to intermediate districts under this subsection that do not qualify for a payment under subsection (3) for reimbursement for changes as a result of revisions to the personal property tax depreciation tables. ~~The allocation for 1999-2000 includes payments for prior year adjustments in taxable value for changes as a result of revisions to the personal property tax depreciation tables.~~ To receive a payment under this subsection, an intermediate district shall file a claim by July 1 of the fiscal year to the department, detailing the loss of revenue to the intermediate district's vocational education millage attributable to those revisions. The amount of the payment under this subsection to each intermediate district shall be an amount equal to the same proportion of the total amount of funding available under this subsection as the intermediate district's claim under this section bears to the total amount of claims under this subsection and, notwithstanding section 121, shall not be adjusted for prior year adjustments more than 2 years after the end of the state fiscal year for which payment under this subsection was made.

Sec. 63. (1) From the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$1,800,000.00 each fiscal year for 1999-2000, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003~~ FOR 2000-2001 for implementation of the Michigan manufacturing technology program for the corresponding school years as provided under this section.

(2) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated \$1,800,000.00 ~~each fiscal year~~ to the department, in conjunction with the department of career development, to award competitive grants for the purpose of improving manufacturing technology programs offered by public education agencies. The maximum amount of a grant under this subsection shall not exceed \$50,000.00 ~~each fiscal year~~ for each public education agency determined to be eligible for funding.

(3) Applications for grants under subsection (2) shall be submitted in a form and manner determined by the department, in conjunction with the department of career development. Criteria for funding shall include all of the following:

(a) The public education agency operates a manufacturing technology program, is a participating agency in a regional career preparation plan described in section 68, and has the support of the local workforce development board for submission of the grant application.

(b) The public education agency offers employer-provided instruction for its pupils as part of its manufacturing technology curriculum.

(c) The public education agency agrees to evaluate the impact of the grant.

(d) Any other criteria determined by the department, in conjunction with the department of career development.

(4) Grants awarded under subsection (2) shall be used by eligible public education agencies for activities intended to increase the amount of employer-provided instruction provided to pupils and to increase pupil awareness of manufacturing technology programs.

(5) The department, in conjunction with the department of career development, shall consider the potential for graduates to be placed in high-wage, high-demand positions upon completion of the manufacturing technology program in its determination of grant awards.

(6) Grants under subsection (2) shall be awarded by the department no later than May 31 before the beginning of ~~each~~ THE fiscal year and paid out to the grant recipients in total no later than October 1 of the fiscal year for which the grant is awarded. Funds may be used by grant recipients to support allowable expenditures in the following school year.

Sec. 67. (1) From the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$350,000.00 ~~each fiscal year for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 for Michigan career preparation system grants under this section.

(2) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated \$150,000.00 ~~each fiscal year for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to the department to identify uniform career competency standards and assessments for career clusters, to establish a statewide information system on current and anticipated employment opportunities and the required level of skills and education required for employment.

(3) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated \$100,000.00 ~~each fiscal year for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to the department to provide information to parents, pupils, school personnel, employers, and others regarding opportunities to receive integrated academic and technical preparation in the public schools of this state.

(4) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated \$100,000.00 ~~each fiscal year for 1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 to the department to provide technical assistance to eligible education agencies and workforce development boards.

(5) As used in this section and in section 68:

(a) "Advanced career academy" means a career-technical education program operated by a district, by an intermediate district, or by a public school academy, that applies for and receives advanced career academy designation from the department. To receive this designation, a career-technical education program shall meet criteria established by the department, which criteria shall include at least all of the following:

(i) Operation of programs for those career clusters identified by the department as being eligible for advanced career academy status.

(ii) Involvement of employers in the design and implementation of career-technical education programs.

(iii) A fully integrated program of academic and technical education available to pupils.

(iv) Demonstration of an established career preparation system resulting in industry-validated career ladders for graduates of the program, including, but not limited to, written articulation agreements with postsecondary institutions to allow pupils to receive advanced college placement and credit or federally registered apprenticeships, as applicable.

(b) "Career cluster" means a grouping of occupations from 1 or more industries that share common skill requirements.

(c) "Career preparation system" is a system of programs and strategies providing pupils with opportunities to prepare for success in careers of their choice.

(d) "Department" means the department of career development.

(e) "Eligible education agency" means a district, intermediate district, or advanced career academy that participates in an approved regional career preparation plan.

(f) "FTE" means full-time equivalent pupil as determined by the department.

(g) "Workforce development board" means a local workforce development board established pursuant to ~~the job training partnership act, Public Law 97-300, 96 Stat. 1322, or, beginning July 1, 2000,~~ the workforce investment act of 1998, Public Law 105-220, 112 Stat. 936, and the school-to-work opportunities act of 1994, Public Law 103-239, 108 Stat. 568, or the equivalent.

(h) "Strategic plan" means a department-approved comprehensive plan prepared by a workforce development board with input from local representatives, including the education advisory group, that includes career preparation system goals and objectives for the region.

Sec. 68. (1) From the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$23,850,000.00~~ \$21,850,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000,~~ for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to be used to implement the Michigan career preparation system in the corresponding school years as provided under this section. ~~From this allocation, the department may reserve an amount not to exceed \$2,000,000.00 each fiscal year for career technical education programs that have achieved designation as an advanced career academy.~~ In order to receive funds under this section, an eligible education agency shall be part of an approved regional career preparation plan under subsection (2) and shall agree to expend the funds required under this section in accordance with the regional career preparation plan. Funds awarded under this section that are not expended in accordance with this section may be recovered by the department.

(2) In order to receive funding under this section, an eligible education agency shall be a part of an approved 3-year regional career preparation plan that is consistent with the workforce development board's strategic plan and is as described in this subsection. All of the following apply to a regional career preparation plan:

(a) A 3-year regional career preparation plan shall be developed under subdivisions (b), (c), and (d) for all public education agencies participating as part of a regional career preparation system within the geographical boundaries of a workforce development board, and revised annually. If an intermediate district is located within the geographical boundaries of more than 1 workforce development board, the board of the intermediate district shall choose 1 workforce development board with which to align and shall notify the department of this choice not later than October 31, 1997.

(b) The regional career preparation plan shall be developed by representatives of the education advisory group of each workforce development board in accordance with guidelines developed under former section 67(5), and in accordance with subdivisions (d) and (e). All of the following shall be represented on each education advisory group: workforce development board members, other employers, labor, districts, intermediate districts, postsecondary institutions, career/technical educators, parents of public school pupils, and academic educators. The representatives of districts, intermediate districts, and postsecondary institutions appointed to the education advisory group by the workforce development board shall be individuals designated by the board of the district, intermediate district, or postsecondary institution.

(c) By majority vote, the education advisory group may nominate 1 education representative, who may or may not be a member of the education advisory group, for appointment to the workforce development board. This education representative shall be in addition to existing education representation on the workforce development board. This education representative shall meet all workforce development board membership requirements.

(d) The components of the regional career preparation plan shall include, but are not limited to, all of the following:

(i) The roles of districts, intermediate districts, advanced career academies, postsecondary institutions, employers, labor representatives, and others in the career preparation system.

(ii) Programs to be offered, including at least career exploration activities, for middle school pupils.

(iii) Identification of integrated academic and technical curriculum, including related professional development training for teachers.

(iv) Identification of work-based learning opportunities for pupils and for teachers and other school personnel.

(v) Identification of testing and assessments that will be used to measure pupil achievement.

(vi) Identification of all federal, state, local, and private sources of funding available for career preparation activities in the region.

(e) The education advisory group shall develop a 3-year regional career preparation plan consistent with the workforce development board's strategic plan and submit the plan to the department for final approval. The submission to the department shall also include statements signed by the chair of the education advisory group and the chair of the workforce development board certifying that the plan has been reviewed by each entity. Upon department approval, all eligible education agencies designated in the regional career preparation plan as part of the career preparation delivery system are eligible for funding under this section.

(3) Funding under this section shall be distributed to eligible education agencies for allowable costs defined in this subsection and identified as necessary costs for implementing a regional career preparation plan, as follows:

(a) For ~~1999-2000 and~~ 2000-2001, the department shall rank all career clusters, including career exploration, guidance, and counseling. Rank determination will be based on median salary data in career clusters and employment opportunity data provided by the council for career preparation standards. In addition, rank determination shall be based on placement data available for prior year graduates of the programs in the career clusters either in related

careers or postsecondary education. The procedure for ranking of career clusters shall be determined by the department.

(b) Allowable costs to be funded under this section shall be determined by the department. Budgets submitted by eligible education agencies to the department in order to receive funding shall identify funds and in-kind contributions from the regional career education plan, excluding funds or in-kind contributions available as a result of funding received under section 61a, equal to at least 100% of anticipated funding under this section. Eligible categories of allowable costs are the following:

- (i) Career exploration, guidance, and counseling.
- (ii) Curriculum development, including integration of academic and technical content, and professional development for teachers directly related to career preparation.
- (iii) Technology and equipment determined to be necessary.
- (iv) Supplies and materials directly related to career preparation programs.
- (v) Work-based learning expenses for pupils, teachers, and counselors.
- (vi) Evaluation, including career competency testing and peer review.
- (vii) Career placement services.
- (viii) Student leadership organizations integral to the career preparation system.
- (ix) Up to 10% of the allocation to an eligible education agency may be expended for planning, coordination, direct oversight, and accountability for the career preparation system.

(c) For ~~1999-2000 and~~ 2000-2001, the department shall calculate career preparation costs per FTE for each career cluster, including career exploration, guidance, and counseling, by dividing the allowable costs for each career cluster by the prior year FTE enrollment for each career cluster. Distribution to eligible education agencies shall be the product of 50% of career preparation costs per FTE times the current year FTE enrollment of each career cluster. This allocation shall be distributed to eligible education agencies in decreasing order of the career cluster ranking described in subdivision (a) until the money allocated for grant recipients in this section is distributed. Beginning in 2001-2002, funds shall be distributed to eligible education agencies according to workforce development board geographic area consistent with subsection (2)(a) based upon the proportion of each workforce development board area's K-12 public school membership to the total state K-12 public school membership.

(4) The department shall establish a review procedure for assessing the career preparation system in each region.

(5) An education advisory group is responsible for assuring the quality of the career preparation system. An education advisory group shall review the career preparation system in accordance with evaluation criteria established by the department.

(6) An education advisory group shall report its findings and recommendations for changes to the participating eligible education agencies, the workforce development board, and the department.

(7) The next revision of a regional career preparation plan shall take into account the findings of the education advisory group in accordance with evaluation criteria established by the department in order for the affected education agencies to receive continued funding under this section.

Sec. 74. (1) From the amount appropriated in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$1,625,000.00 each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 for the purposes of subsections (2) and (3).

(2) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated each fiscal year the amount necessary for payments to state supported colleges or universities and intermediate districts providing school bus driver safety instruction or driver skills road tests pursuant to sections 51 and 52 of the pupil transportation act, 1990 PA 187, MCL 257.1851 and 257.1852. The payments shall be in an amount determined by the department not to exceed 75% of the actual cost of instruction and driver compensation for each public or nonpublic school bus driver attending a course of instruction. For the purpose of computing compensation, the hourly rate allowed each school bus driver shall not exceed the hourly rate received for driving a school bus. Reimbursement compensating the driver during the course of instruction or driver skills road tests shall be made by the department to the college or university or intermediate district providing the course of instruction.

(3) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated each fiscal year the amount necessary to pay the reasonable costs of nonspecial education auxiliary services transportation provided pursuant to section 1323 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1323. Districts funded under this subsection shall not receive funding under any other section of this act for nonspecial education auxiliary services transportation.

Sec. 81. (1) Except as otherwise provided in this section, from the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 to the intermediate districts the sum necessary, but not to exceed ~~\$83,363,400.00 for 1999-2000~~, not to exceed \$87,781,700.00 for 2000-2001, not to exceed \$92,170,800.00 for 2001-2002, and not to exceed \$95,028,100.00 for 2002-2003 to provide state aid to intermediate districts under this section. ~~Except as otherwise provided in this section, there shall be allocated to each intermediate district for 1999-2000 an amount equal to 104.4% of the amount of funding actually received by the intermediate district under this subsection for 1998-99.~~ Except as otherwise provided in this section, there shall be allocated to each

intermediate district for 2000-2001 an amount equal to 105.3% of the amount of funding actually received by the intermediate district under this subsection for 1999-2000. Except as otherwise provided in this section, there shall be allocated to each intermediate district for 2001-2002 an amount equal to 105% of the amount of funding actually received by the intermediate district under this subsection for 2000-2001. Except as otherwise provided in this section, there shall be allocated to each intermediate district for 2002-2003 an amount equal to 103.1% of the amount of funding actually received by the intermediate district under this subsection for 2001-2002. Funding provided under this section shall be used to comply with requirements of this act and the revised school code that are applicable to intermediate districts, and for which funding is not provided elsewhere in this act, and to provide technical assistance to districts as authorized by the intermediate school board.

(2) From the allocation in subsection (1), there is allocated to an intermediate district, formed by the consolidation or annexation of 2 or more intermediate districts or the attachment of a total intermediate district to another intermediate school district or the annexation of all of the constituent K-12 districts of a previously existing intermediate school district which has disorganized, an additional allotment of \$3,500.00 each fiscal year for each intermediate district included in the new intermediate district for 3 years following consolidation, annexation, or attachment.

(3) If an intermediate district participated in 1993-94 in a consortium operating a regional educational media center under section 671 of the revised school code, MCL 380.671, and rules promulgated by the superintendent, and if the intermediate district obtains written consent from each of the other intermediate districts that participated in the consortium in 1993-94, the intermediate district may notify the department not later than December 30 of the current fiscal year that it is electing to directly receive its payment attributable to participation in that consortium. An intermediate district making that election, and that has obtained the necessary consent, shall receive each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003, as applicable, for each pupil in membership in the intermediate district or a constituent district an amount equal to the quotient of the 1993-94 allocation to the fiscal agent for that consortium under former section 83, adjusted as determined by the department to account for that election, divided by the combined total membership for the current fiscal year in all of the intermediate districts that participated in that consortium and their constituent districts. The amount allocated to an intermediate district under this subsection for a fiscal year shall be deducted from the total allocation for that fiscal year under this section to the intermediate district that was the 1993-94 fiscal agent for the consortium.

(4) During a fiscal year, the department shall not increase an intermediate district's allocation under subsection (1) because of an adjustment made by the department during the fiscal year in the intermediate district's taxable value for a prior year. Instead, the department shall report the adjustment and the estimated amount of the increase to the house and senate fiscal agencies and the state budget director not later than June 1 of the fiscal year, and the legislature shall appropriate money for the adjustment in the next succeeding fiscal year.

(5) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$360,000.00 for 1999-2000~~ ~~an amount not to exceed~~ \$320,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed \$890,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$940,000.00 for 2002-2003 for payments to intermediate districts under this subsection for reimbursement for changes as a result of revisions to the personal property tax depreciation tables. To receive a payment under this subsection, an intermediate district shall file a claim by July 1 of the fiscal year to the department, detailing the loss of revenue to the intermediate district's operational millage attributable to those revisions. The amount of the payment under this subsection to each intermediate district shall be an amount equal to the same proportion of the total amount of funding available under this subsection as the intermediate district's claim under this subsection bears to the total amount of the claims under this subsection and, notwithstanding section 121, shall not be adjusted for prior year adjustments more than 2 years after the end of the state fiscal year for which payment under this subsection was made.

(6) In order to receive funding under this section, an intermediate district shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the department that the intermediate district employs at least 1 person who is trained in pupil counting procedures, rules, and regulations.

Sec. 94. From the general fund money appropriated in section 11, there is allocated to the department ~~an amount not to exceed \$1,500,000.00 for 1999-2000~~, an amount not to exceed \$3,000,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$5,000,000.00~~ \$3,000,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$10,000,000.00~~ \$5,000,000.00 for 2002-2003 to provide technical assistance to districts for school accreditation purposes as described in section 1280 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1280.

Sec. 94a. (1) From the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~an amount not to exceed \$10,000,000.00 for 1999-2000~~, an amount not to exceed \$2,160,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed \$2,332,000.00 for 2002, and an amount not to exceed \$2,519,000.00 for 2002-2003 for payments to the ~~database~~ CENTER for educational performance and information created pursuant to executive order.

(2) The goals of the ~~database~~ CENTER for educational performance and information shall be to improve the quality and quantity of educational data available to teachers, school administrators, parents, taxpayers, and others.

(3) A portion of the funds allocated under this section may be used for funding to districts to cover additional costs resulting from implementation of the ~~database~~ CENTER for educational performance and information.

(4) Funds allocated under this section that are not expended in the fiscal year in which they were allocated may be carried forward to a subsequent fiscal year. FROM THE FUNDS ALLOCATED FOR 1999-2000 THAT WERE CARRIED FORWARD UNDER THIS SUBSECTION, THE CENTER SHALL PAY DISTRICTS GRANTS FOR NET COSTS INCURRED FROM 1998-1999 THROUGH 2002-2003 DUE TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SINGLE RECORD STUDENT DATABASE. THE CENTER SHALL ALSO PAY INTERMEDIATE DISTRICTS GRANTS FOR NET COSTS INCURRED FROM 1998-1999 THROUGH 2002-2003 DUE TO THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SINGLE RECORD STUDENT DATABASE ON BEHALF OF CONSTITUENT DISTRICTS. NET COSTS SHALL BE DETERMINED AND THE AMOUNT OF THE GRANT CALCULATED IN A MANNER DETERMINED BY THE CENTER. PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE CENTER SHALL MAKE GRANTS TO DISTRICTS AND INTERMEDIATE DISTRICTS MAY INCLUDE PURCHASES OF SOFTWARE TO SUBMIT DATA FILES TO THE MICHIGAN EDUCATION INFORMATION SYSTEM OR NEW STUDENT INFORMATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS COMPATIBLE WITH THE SINGLE RECORD STUDENT DATABASE OR COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE SINGLE RECORD STUDENT DATABASE. THE DISTRICT OR INTERMEDIATE DISTRICT SHALL PROVIDE WRITTEN JUSTIFICATION OF THESE NET COSTS TO THE CENTER FOR EDUCATION PERFORMANCE AND INFORMATION. PURPOSES FOR WHICH A GRANT IS MADE MUST BE APPROVED BY THE CENTER. THIS REIMBURSEMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED A TOTAL OF \$2.00 PER PUPIL FOR EACH DISTRICT OR INTERMEDIATE DISTRICT.

Sec. 95. (1) From the state school aid fund money appropriated in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$10,000,000.00~~ \$0.00 each fiscal year for 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 for payments to districts and intermediate districts under this section.

(2) If a district or intermediate district provides a teacher professional development training program required under section 1527 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1527, during time that is not part of the time scheduled for pupil instruction in the district's or intermediate district's school calendar and if the district does not elect to use the hours of pupil instruction exception under section 101(11), there is allocated to the district or intermediate district an amount sufficient to reimburse the district or intermediate district for the full per diem compensation paid to the participants in that program.

Sec. 96. (1) From the state school aid fund money appropriated in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed ~~\$8,000,000.00 each fiscal year for 1999-2000, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ for \$50,000.00 FOR 2000-2001 FOR ADJUSTING golden apple awards under this section FOR 1999-2000. The awards shall be based on elementary school achievement on the fourth grade and fifth grade Michigan education assessment program (MEAP) tests, AS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY.

(2) ~~TO~~ SUBJECT TO SUBSECTION (4), TO be eligible for a golden apple award, an elementary school shall ~~have~~ MEET ALL OF THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS:

(A) THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL HAS at least 50 pupils in membership. ~~and shall meet the following requirements:~~

~~(a) For 1999-2000, at least 80% of the fourth and fifth grade pupils enrolled and in regular daily attendance in the school on the pupil membership count day in that school year took the applicable MEAP tests, and 1 or both of the following are met:~~

~~(i) The composite score for the pupils in the school who took the applicable MEAP tests increased by at least 60 points over the 2 consecutive school years immediately preceding the state fiscal year in which the award is given.~~

~~(ii) The test scores for the pupils in the school who took the applicable MEAP tests are among the highest elementary school scores statewide, as determined by the department of treasury, for that school year.~~

(b) ~~Beginning in 2000-2001, at~~ AT least 90% of the fourth and fifth grade pupils enrolled and in regular daily attendance in the ELEMENTARY school on the pupil membership count day in that school year took the applicable MEAP tests, and 1 or both of the following are met:

(i) The composite score for the pupils in the ELEMENTARY school who took the applicable MEAP tests increased by at least 60 points over the 2 consecutive school years immediately preceding the state fiscal year in which the award is given.

(ii) The test scores for the pupils in the ELEMENTARY school who took the applicable MEAP tests are among the highest elementary school scores statewide, as determined by the department of treasury, for that school year.

(3) IN CALCULATING THE PERCENTAGE OF PUPILS THAT TOOK THE APPLICABLE MEAP TESTS FOR THE PURPOSES OF SUBSECTION (2), THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY SHALL NOT COUNT A SPECIAL EDUCATION PUPIL AS PART OF THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL'S ENROLLMENT IF ALL OF THE FOLLOWING APPLY:

(A) THE PUPIL'S INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PROGRAM PROVIDES THAT THE PUPIL WILL NOT TAKE ANY OF THE APPLICABLE MEAP TESTS.

(B) AT LEAST 10% OF THE GRADE 4 AND 5 PUPILS ENROLLED IN THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ARE SPECIAL EDUCATION PUPILS, AS DETERMINED BY THE DEPARTMENT.

(4) IF AN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CONSISTS OF MULTIPLE SCHOOLS, WITH GRADE 4 OPERATED BY A DIFFERENT SCHOOL OR SCHOOLS THAN GRADE 5, THEN FOR THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TO BE ELIGIBLE FOR A GOLDEN APPLE AWARD, THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL MUST MEET THE REQUIREMENTS UNDER SUBSECTION (2) AND SHALL PROVIDE TO THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY ANY INFORMATION THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY CONSIDERS NECESSARY TO MAKE THE DETERMINATION OF WHETHER THAT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL MEETS THOSE REQUIREMENTS. A DETERMINATION BY THE DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY UNDER THIS SUBSECTION IS FINAL. IF AN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL QUALIFIES UNDER THIS SUBSECTION FOR A GOLDEN APPLE AWARD, THE AWARD TO THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL SHALL BE PAID TO THE DISTRICT THAT OPERATES THE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL. THE DISTRICT SHALL DISTRIBUTE THE AWARD TO THE COMPONENT SCHOOL OPERATING GRADE 4.

(5) ~~(3)~~ A golden apple award under this section shall be allocated to and used by a district exclusively for the purpose of distributing funds to each eligible elementary school. A golden apple award shall consist of \$1,000.00 per each full-time employee who works in the eligible elementary school OPERATING GRADE 4 plus \$10,000.00 to be allocated to the principal of ~~the~~ THAT school for school improvements, but shall not be less than \$50,000.00 per recipient ELEMENTARY school. All money allocated under this section per full-time employee shall be used for school improvements FOCUSED ON GRADES K TO 5, as determined collectively by a majority vote of ~~those~~ THE FULL-TIME employees WHO WORK AT THE SCHOOL OPERATING GRADE 4.

~~(4) Funds allocated under this section that are not expended in the state fiscal year for which they were allocated may be carried forward to a subsequent state fiscal year.~~

(6) AS USED IN THIS SECTION, "ELEMENTARY SCHOOL" MEANS A SCHOOL OPERATING BOTH GRADES 4 AND 5, OR A COMBINATION OF A SCHOOL OPERATING GRADE 4 AND 1 OR MORE OTHER SCHOOLS THAT OPERATE GRADE 5 AND RECEIVE PUPILS FROM THE SCHOOL OPERATING GRADE 4.

Sec. 98. (1) From the general fund money appropriated in section 11, there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$15,000,000.00 for 2000-2001, and an amount not to exceed \$1,500,000.00 each fiscal year for 2001-2002 and for 2002-2003 to the department to provide a grant EACH FISCAL YEAR to the Michigan virtual university for the development, implementation, and operation of the Michigan virtual high school.

(2) The Michigan virtual high school shall have the following goals:

(a) Significantly expand curricular offerings for high schools across this state through agreements with districts or licenses from other recognized providers.

(b) Create statewide instructional models using interactive multimedia tools delivered by electronic means, including, but not limited to, the internet, digital broadcast, or satellite network, for distributed learning at the high school level.

(c) Provide pupils with opportunities to develop skills and competencies through on-line learning.

(d) Offer teachers opportunities to learn new skills and strategies for developing and delivering instructional services.

(e) Accelerate this state's ability to respond to current and emerging educational demands.

(f) Grant high school diplomas through a dual enrollment method with districts.

(g) Act as a broker for college level equivalent courses, as defined in section 1471 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1471, and dual enrollment courses from postsecondary education institutions.

(3) The Michigan virtual high school course offerings shall include, but are not limited to, all of the following:

(a) Information technology courses.

(b) College level equivalent courses, as defined in section 1471 of the revised school code, MCL 380.1471.

(c) Courses and dual enrollment opportunities.

(d) Programs and services for at-risk pupils.

(e) General education development test preparation courses for adjudicated youth.

(f) Special interest courses.

(g) Professional development programs and services for teachers.

~~(4) Funds allocated under this section that are not expended in the state fiscal year for which they were allocated may be carried forward to a subsequent state fiscal year.~~

Sec. 99. (1) From the state school aid fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~an amount not to exceed \$7,904,900.00 for 1999-2000,~~ an amount not to exceed \$9,270,000.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed ~~\$10,684,300.00~~ \$9,684,300.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed ~~\$10,984,500.00~~ \$9,784,500.00 for 2002-2003, and from the general fund appropriation in section 11 there is allocated ~~an amount not to exceed \$400,000.00 for fiscal year 1999-2000,~~ an amount not to exceed \$475,100.00 for 2000-2001, an amount not to exceed \$548,000.00 for 2001-2002, and an amount not to exceed \$596,000.00 for 2002-2003 for implementing the comprehensive master plan for mathematics and science centers developed by the department and approved by the state board on February 17, 1993.

(2) Within a service area designated locally, approved by the department, and consistent with the master plan described in subsection (1), an established mathematics and science center shall address 2 or more of the following 6 basic services, as described in the master plan, to constituent districts and communities: leadership, pupil services, curriculum support, community involvement, professional development, and resource clearinghouse services.

(3) The department shall not award a grant under this section to more than 1 mathematics and science center located in a particular intermediate district unless each of the grants serves a distinct target population or provides a service that does not duplicate another program in the intermediate district.

(4) As part of the technical assistance process, the department shall provide minimum standard guidelines that may be used by the mathematics and science center for providing fair access for qualified pupils and professional staff as prescribed in this section.

(5) Allocations under this section to support the activities and programs of mathematics and science centers shall be continuing support grants to all 25 established mathematics and science centers and, subject to subsection (9), the 8 satellite extensions that were funded in 1996-97. ~~Each~~ BEGINNING IN 2000-2001, EACH established mathematics and science center that was funded in 1999-2000 shall receive an amount equal to ~~103%~~ 105.3% of the amount it received under this section in 1999-2000.

(6) In order to receive funds under this section, a grant recipient shall allow access for the department or the department's designee to audit all records related to the program for which it receives such funds. The grant recipient shall reimburse the state for all disallowances found in the audit.

(7) From the state school aid fund allocation under subsection (1), there is allocated an amount not to exceed \$611,800.00 each fiscal year for ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 for additional funding under this subsection for mathematics and science centers that have come into compliance with the comprehensive master plan described in subsection (1). These amounts are in addition to the funding determined under subsection (5) and are as follows for each of those fiscal years:

(a) \$68,000.00 each to the central Michigan science, mathematics, and technology center; the Hillsdale-Lenawee-Monroe mathematics and science center; the St. Clair mathematics, science, and technology network; the Saginaw valley state university regional center; the Genesee area mathematics, science, and technology center; the Grand Traverse area regional mathematics, science, and technology center; and the Livingston/Washtenaw mathematics and science center.

(b) \$85,000.00 to the Grand valley state university regional mathematics and science center.

(c) \$50,800.00 to the Seaborg center at Northern Michigan university.

(8) Not later than June 30, 2000, the department shall reevaluate and update the comprehensive master plan described in subsection (1), including any recommendations for upgrading satellite extensions to full centers.

(9) During the course of the 2000-2001 and 2001-2002 fiscal years, the department shall facilitate the conversion of the 8 existing satellite extensions to full mathematics and science centers. To this end, in 2000-2001 the department shall provide 4 satellite extensions, as selected by the department, with applications for conversion to full centers, and in 2001-2002 the department shall provide the remaining 4 satellite extensions with applications for conversion. The department shall provide the applications not later than October 15 of the applicable fiscal year; a satellite extension shall submit the application and a detail plan as prescribed by the department not later than November 15 of the applicable fiscal year; and the department shall review the applications and plans and notify the satellite extensions of their status not later than December 1 of the applicable fiscal year. The allocations under this section are sufficient to fund the conversion of the satellite extensions to full centers and to fund them as full centers.

~~(10) Beginning in 2001-2002, the total amount allocated under this section for a fiscal year shall be increased from the total amount allocated under this section for the immediately preceding fiscal year by the same percentage as the percentage increase in the amount of the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for that fiscal year from the amount of the basic foundation allowance under section 20 for the immediately preceding fiscal year.~~

Sec. 107. (1) From the appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~for 1999-2000, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$80,000,000.00 ~~each fiscal year~~ FOR 2000-2001 AND AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED \$75,000,000.00 EACH FISCAL YEAR FOR 2001-2002 AND FOR 2002-2003 for adult education programs authorized under this section.

(2) To be eligible to be a participant funded under this section, a person shall be enrolled in an adult basic education program, an adult English as a second language program, a general education development (G.E.D.) test preparation program, a job or employment related program, or a high school completion program, that meets the requirements of this section, and shall meet either of the following, as applicable:

(a) If the individual has obtained a high school diploma or a general education development (G.E.D.) certificate, the individual meets 1 of the following:

(i) Is less than 20 years of age on September 1 of the school year and is enrolled in the state technical institute and rehabilitation center.

(ii) Is less than 20 years of age on September 1 of the school year, is not attending an institution of higher education, and is enrolled in a job or employment-related program through a referral by an employer.

(iii) Is enrolled in an English as a second language program.

(iv) Is enrolled in a high school completion program.

(b) If the individual has not obtained a high school diploma or G.E.D. certificate, is at least 20 years of age on September 1 of the school year.

(3) The amount allocated under subsection (1) shall be distributed as follows:

(a) For districts and consortia that received payments for 1995-96 under former section 107f and that received payments for 1996-97 under subsection (4) of this section as in effect in 1996-97, the amount allocated to each ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 shall be an amount each fiscal year equal to 36.76% of the amount the district or consortium received for 1995-96 under former section 107f.

(b) For districts and consortia that received payments under subsection (3) of this section as in effect for 1996-97, the amount allocated to each ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 shall be an amount each fiscal year equal to the product of the number of full-time equated participants actually enrolled and in attendance during the 1996-97 school fiscal year in the program funded under subsection (3) of this section as in effect for 1996-97 as reported to the department, audited, and adjusted according to subsection (10) of this section as in effect for 1996-97, multiplied by \$2,750.00.

(c) For districts and consortia that meet the conditions of both subdivisions (a) and (b), the amount allocated each fiscal year ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, and for 2002-2003 shall be the sum of the allocations to the district or consortium under subdivisions (a) and (b).

(d) A district or consortium that received funding in 1996-97 under this section as in effect for 1996-97 may operate independently of a consortium or join or form a consortium ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, or for 2002-2003. The allocation ~~for 1999-2000~~, for 2000-2001, for 2001-2002, or for 2002-2003 to the district or the newly formed consortium under this subsection shall be determined by the department and shall be based on the proportion of the amounts specified in subdivision (a) or (b), or both, that are attributable to the district or consortium that received funding in 1996-97. A district or consortium described in this subdivision shall notify the department of its intention with regard to ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, or 2002-2003 by October 1 of the affected fiscal year.

(4) A district that operated an adult education program in 1996-97 and does not intend to operate a program in ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, or 2002-2003 shall notify the department by October 1 of the affected fiscal year of its intention. The funds intended to be allocated under this section to a district that does not operate a program in ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, or 2002-2003 and the unspent funds originally allocated under this section to a district or consortium that subsequently operates a program at less than the level of funding allocated under subsection (3) shall instead be proportionately reallocated to the other districts described in subsection (3)(a) that are operating an adult education program in ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, or 2002-2003 under this section.

(5) The amount allocated under this section per full-time equated participant is \$2,850.00 for a 450-hour program. The amount shall be proportionately reduced for a program offering less than 450 hours of instruction.

(6) An adult basic education program or an adult English as a second language program operated on a year-round or school year basis may be funded under this section, subject to all of the following:

(a) The program enrolls adults who are determined by an appropriate assessment to be below ninth grade level in reading or mathematics, or both, or to lack basic English proficiency.

(b) The program tests individuals for eligibility under subdivision (a) before enrollment and tests participants to determine progress after every 90 hours of attendance, using assessment instruments approved by the department.

(c) A participant in an adult basic education program is eligible for reimbursement until 1 of the following occurs:

(i) The participant's reading and mathematics proficiency are assessed at or above the ninth grade level.

(ii) The participant fails to show progress on 2 successive assessments after having completed at least 450 hours of instruction.

(d) A funding recipient enrolling a participant in an English as a second language program is eligible for funding according to subsection (10) until the participant meets 1 of the following:

(i) The participant is assessed as having attained basic English proficiency.

(ii) The participant fails to show progress on 2 successive assessments after having completed at least 450 hours of instruction. The department shall provide information to a funding recipient regarding appropriate assessment instruments for this program.

(7) A general education development (G.E.D.) test preparation program operated on a year-round or school year basis may be funded under this section, subject to all of the following:

(a) The program enrolls adults who do not have a high school diploma.

(b) The program shall administer a G.E.D. pre-test approved by the department before enrolling an individual to determine the individual's potential for success on the G.E.D. test, and shall administer other tests after every 90 hours of attendance to determine a participant's readiness to take the G.E.D. test.

(c) A funding recipient shall receive funding according to subsection (10) for a participant, and a participant may be enrolled in the program until 1 of the following occurs:

(i) The participant passes the G.E.D. test.

(ii) The participant fails to show progress on 2 successive tests used to determine readiness to take the G.E.D. test after having completed at least 450 hours of instruction.

(8) A high school completion program operated on a year-round or school year basis may be funded under this section, subject to all of the following:

(a) The program enrolls adults who do not have a high school diploma.

(b) A funding recipient shall receive funding according to subsection (10) for a participant in a course offered under this subsection until 1 of the following occurs:

(i) The participant passes the course and earns a high school diploma.

(ii) The participant fails to earn credit in 2 successive semesters or terms in which the participant is enrolled after having completed at least 900 hours of instruction.

(9) A job or employment-related adult education program operated on a year-round or school year basis may be funded under this section, subject to all of the following:

(a) The program enrolls adults referred by their employer who are less than 20 years of age, have a high school diploma, are determined to be in need of remedial mathematics or communication arts skills and are not attending an institution of higher education.

(b) An individual may be enrolled in this program and the grant recipient shall receive funding according to subsection (10) until 1 of the following occurs:

(i) The individual achieves the requisite skills as determined by appropriate assessment instruments administered at least after every 90 hours of attendance.

(ii) The individual fails to show progress on 2 successive assessments after having completed at least 450 hours of instruction. The department shall provide information to a funding recipient regarding appropriate assessment instruments for this program.

(10) A funding recipient shall receive payments under this section in accordance with the following:

(a) Ninety percent for enrollment of eligible participants.

(b) Ten percent for completion of the adult basic education objectives by achieving an increase of at least 1 grade level of proficiency in reading or mathematics; for achieving basic English proficiency; for passage of the G.E.D. test; for passage of a course required for a participant to attain a high school diploma; or for completion of the course and demonstrated proficiency in the academic skills to be learned in the course, as applicable.

(11) As used in this section, "participant" means the sum of the number of full-time equated individuals enrolled in and attending a department-approved adult education program under this section, using quarterly participant count days on the schedule described in section 6(7)(b).

(12) A person who is not eligible to be a participant funded under this section may receive adult education services upon the payment of tuition. In addition, a person who is not eligible to be served in a program under this section due to the program limitations specified in subsection (6), (7), (8), or (9) may continue to receive adult education services in that program upon the payment of tuition. The tuition level shall be determined by the local or intermediate district conducting the program.

(13) An individual who is an inmate in a state correctional facility shall not be counted as a participant under this section.

(14) A district shall not commingle money received under this section or from another source for adult education purposes with any other funds of the district. A district receiving adult education funds shall establish a separate ledger account for those funds. This subsection does not prohibit a district from using general funds of the district to support an adult education or community education program.

(15) The department shall work with the department of education to ensure that this section is administered in the same manner as in 1998-99.

(16) As used in this section and section 108, "department" means the department of career development.

Sec. 108. (1) From the general fund appropriation in section 11, there is allocated ~~for 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003~~ an amount not to exceed \$20,000,000.00 ~~each fiscal year~~ FOR 2000-2001 AND THERE IS ALLOCATED \$0.00 EACH FISCAL YEAR FOR 2001-2002 AND FOR 2002-2003 for partnership for adult learning programs authorized under this section.

(2) To be eligible to be enrolled as a participant in an adult learning program funded under this section, a person shall be at least 16 years of age as of September 1 of the immediately preceding state fiscal year and shall meet the following, as applicable:

(a) If the individual has obtained a high school diploma or a general education development (G.E.D.) certificate, the individual is determined to have English language proficiency, reading, writing, or math skills below workforce readiness standards as determined by department-approved tests and is not enrolled in a postsecondary institution. An individual who has obtained a high school diploma is not eligible for enrollment in a G.E.D. test preparation program funded under this section.

(b) If the individual has not obtained a high school diploma or a G.E.D. certificate, the individual has not attended a secondary institution for at least 6 months before enrollment in an adult learning program funded under this section and is not enrolled in a postsecondary institution.

(3) From the allocation under subsection (1), an amount not to exceed \$19,800,000.00 is allocated ~~each fiscal year~~ for 2000-2001 ; AND \$0.00 IS ALLOCATED EACH FISCAL YEAR for 2001-2002 ; and for 2002-2003 to local workforce development boards for the purpose of providing regional adult learning programs. An application for a grant under this subsection shall be in the form and manner prescribed by the department. Subject to subsections (4), (5), and (6), the amount allocated to each local workforce development board shall be as provided in this subsection, except that an eligible local workforce development board shall not receive an initial allocation under this section that is less than \$70,000.00. The maximum amount of a grant awarded to an eligible local workforce development board shall be the sum of the following components:

(a) Thirty-four percent of the allocation under this subsection multiplied by the proportion of the family independence agency caseload in the local workforce development board region to the statewide family independence agency caseload.

(b) Thirty-three percent of the allocation under this subsection multiplied by the proportion of the number of persons in the local workforce development board region over age 17 who have not received a high school diploma compared to the statewide total of persons over age 17 who have not received a high school diploma.

(c) Thirty-three percent of the allocation under this subsection multiplied by the proportion of the number of persons in the local workforce development board region over age 17 for whom English is not a primary language compared to the statewide total of persons over age 17 for whom English is not a primary language.

(4) The amount of a grant to a local workforce development board under subsection (3) shall not exceed the cost for adult learning programs needed in the local workforce development board region, as documented in a manner approved by the department.

(5) Not more than 9% of a grant awarded to a local workforce development board may be used for program administration, including contracting for the provision of career and educational information, counseling services, and assessment services.

(6) In order to receive funds under this section, a local workforce development board shall comply with the following requirements in a manner approved by the department:

(a) The local workforce development board shall document the need for adult learning programs in the local workforce development region.

(b) The local workforce development board shall report participant outcomes and other measurements of program performance.

(c) The local workforce development board shall develop a strategic plan that incorporates adult learning programs in the region. ~~Beginning in 2001-2002, a local workforce development board is not eligible for state funds under this section without a department approved strategic plan.~~

(d) The local workforce development board shall furnish to the department, in a form and manner determined by the department, the information the department determines is necessary to administer this section.

(e) The local workforce development board shall allow access for the department or the department's designee to audit all records related to adult learning programs for which it receives funds. The local workforce development board shall reimburse this state for all disallowances found in the audit in a manner determined by the department.

(7) Local workforce development boards shall distribute funds to eligible adult learning providers as follows:

(a) Not less than 85% of a grant award shall be used to support programs that improve reading, writing, and math skills to workforce readiness standards; English as a second language programs; G.E.D. preparation programs; high school completion programs; or workforce readiness programs in the local workforce development board region. These programs may include the provision of career and educational information, counseling services, and assessment services.

(b) Up to 15% of a grant award may be used to support workforce readiness programs for employers in the local workforce development board region as approved by the department. Employers or consortia of employers whose employees participate in these programs must provide matching funds in a ratio of at least \$1.00 of private funds for each \$1.00 of state funds.

(8) Local workforce development boards shall award competitive grants to eligible adult learning providers for the purpose of providing adult learning programs in the local workforce development board region. Applications shall be in a form and manner prescribed by the department. In awarding grants, local workforce development boards shall consider all of the following:

(a) The ability of the provider to assess individuals before enrollment using department-approved assessment tools and to develop individual adult learner plans from those assessments for each participant.

(b) The ability of the provider to conduct continuing assessments in a manner approved by the department to determine participant progress toward achieving the goals established in individual adult learner plans.

(c) The past effectiveness of an eligible provider in improving adult literacy skills and, beginning in 2001-2002, the success of an eligible provider in meeting or exceeding department-approved performance measures.

(d) Whether the program is of sufficient intensity and duration for participants to achieve substantial learning gains.

(e) Whether the program uses research-based instructional practices that have proven to be effective in teaching adult learners.

- (f) Whether the program uses advances in technology, as appropriate, including computers.
- (g) Whether the programs are staffed by well-trained teachers, counselors, and administrators.
- (h) Whether the activities coordinate with other available resources in the community, such as schools, postsecondary institutions, job training programs, and social service agencies.
- (i) Whether the provider offers flexible schedules and support services, such as child care and transportation, that enable participants, including individuals with disabilities or other special needs, to attend and complete programs.
- (j) Whether the provider offers adequate job and postsecondary education counseling services.
- (k) Whether the provider can maintain an information management system that has the capacity to report participant outcomes and monitor program performance against department-approved performance measures.
- (l) Whether the provider will allow access for the local workforce development board or its designee to audit all records related to adult learning programs for which it receives funds. The adult learning provider shall reimburse the local workforce development board for all disallowances found in the audit.
- (m) The cost per participant contact hour or unit of measurable outcome for each type of adult learning program for which the provider is applying.
- ~~(9) Beginning in 2001-2002, contracts awarded by local workforce development boards to adult learning providers shall comply with the priorities established in a department approved strategic plan.~~
- (9) ~~(10)~~ Adult learning providers that do not agree with the decisions of the local workforce development board in issuing or administering competitive grants may use the grievance procedure established by the department.
- (10) ~~(11)~~ Local workforce development boards shall reimburse eligible adult learning providers under this section as follows:
- (a) For a first-time provider, as follows:
- (i) Fifty percent of the contract amount shall be allocated to eligible adult learning providers based upon enrollment of participants in adult learning programs. "Enrollment" means a participant enrolled in the program who received a preenrollment assessment using department-approved assessment tools and for whom an individual adult learner plan has been developed.
- (ii) Fifty percent of the contract amount shall be allocated to eligible adult learning providers based upon the following performance standards as measured in a department-approved manner:
- (A) The percentage of participants taking both a pretest and a posttest in English language proficiency, reading, writing, and math.
- (B) The percentage of participants showing improvement toward goals identified in their individual adult learner plan.
- (C) The percentage of participants achieving their terminal goals as identified in their individual adult learner plan.
- ~~(b) Beginning in 2001-2002, eligible providers that have provided adult learning programs previously under this section shall be reimbursed 100% of the contract amount based upon the performance standards in subdivision (a)(ii) as measured in a manner determined by the department.~~
- (B) ~~(c)~~ A provider is eligible for reimbursement for a participant in an adult learning program until the participant's reading, writing, or math proficiency, as applicable, is assessed at workforce readiness levels or the participant fails to show progress on 2 successive assessments as determined by the department.
- (C) ~~(d)~~ A provider is eligible for reimbursement for a participant in an English as a second language program until the participant is assessed as having attained basic English proficiency or the participant fails to show progress on 2 successive assessments as determined by the department.
- (D) ~~(e)~~ A provider is eligible for reimbursement for a participant in a G.E.D. test preparation program until the participant passes the G.E.D. test or the participant fails to show progress on 2 successive assessments as determined by the department.
- (E) ~~(f)~~ A provider is eligible for reimbursement for a participant in a high school completion program until the participant earns a high school diploma or the participant fails to show progress as determined by the department.
- (11) ~~(12)~~ A person who is not eligible to be a participant funded under this section may receive adult learning services upon the payment of tuition or fees for service. The tuition or fee level shall be determined by the adult learning provider and approved by the local workforce development board.
- (12) ~~(13)~~ Adult learning providers may collect refundable deposits from participants for the use of reusable equipment and supplies and may provide incentives for program completion.
- (13) ~~(14)~~ A provider shall not be reimbursed under this section for an individual who is an inmate in a state correctional facility.
- (14) ~~(15)~~ In order to administer the partnership for adult learning system under this section, the department shall do all of the following:
- (a) Develop and provide guidelines to local workforce development boards for the development of strategic plans that incorporate adult learning.
- (b) Develop and provide adult learning minimum program performance standards to be implemented by local workforce development boards.

(c) Identify approved assessment tools for assessing a participant's English language proficiency, reading, math, and writing skills.

(d) Approve workforce readiness standards for English language proficiency, reading, math, and writing skills that can be measured by department-approved, nationally recognized assessment tools.

(15) ~~(16)~~ Of the amount allocated in subsection (1), up to \$200,000.00 is allocated to the department for the development and administration of a standardized data collection system. ~~Beginning in 2001-2002, local workforce development boards and adult learning providers receiving funding under this section shall use the standardized data collection system for enrolling participants in adult learning programs, tracking participant progress, reporting participant outcomes, and reporting other performance measures.~~

(16) ~~(17)~~ A provider is not required to use certificated teachers or certificated counselors to provide instructional and counseling services in a program funded under this section.

(17) ~~(18)~~ As used in this section:

(a) "Adult education", for the purposes of complying with section 3 of article VIII of the state constitution of 1963, means a high school pupil receiving educational services in a nontraditional setting from a district or intermediate district in order to receive a high school diploma.

(b) "Adult learning program" means a department-approved program that improves reading, writing, and math skills to workforce readiness standards; an English as a second language program; a G.E.D. preparation program; a high school completion program; or a workforce readiness program that enhances employment opportunities.

(c) "Department" means the department of career development.

(d) "Eligible adult learning provider" means a district, public school academy, intermediate district, community college, university, community-based organization, or other organization approved by the department that provides adult learning programs under a contract with a local workforce development board.

(e) "Participant" means an individual enrolled in an adult learning program and receiving services from an eligible adult learning provider.

(f) "Strategic plan" means a department-approved document that incorporates adult learning goals and objectives for the local workforce development board region and is developed jointly by the local workforce development board and the education advisory groups.

(g) "Workforce development board" means a local workforce development board established pursuant to the workforce investment act of 1998, Public Law 105-220, 112 Stat. 936, and the school-to-work opportunities act of 1994, Public Law 103-239, 108 Stat. 568, or the equivalent.

(h) "Workforce readiness standard" means a department-approved level of English language, reading, writing, or mathematics proficiency, or any and all of these, as determined by results from assessments approved for use by the department.

Sec. 147. (1) The allocations for ~~1999-2000~~, 2000-2001, 2001-2002, and 2002-2003 for the public school employees' retirement system pursuant to the public school employees retirement act of 1979, 1980 PA 300, MCL 38.1301 to ~~38.1467~~ 38.1408, shall be made using the entry age normal cost actuarial method and risk assumptions adopted by the public school employees retirement board and the department of management and budget. ~~The annual level percentage of payroll contribution rate for the 1999-2000 state fiscal year is estimated at 11.66% and the annual level percentage of payroll contribution rate for the 2000-2001 state fiscal year is estimated at 12.16% AND THE ANNUAL LEVEL PERCENTAGE OF PAYROLL CONTRIBUTION RATE FOR THE 2001-2002 STATE FISCAL YEAR IS ESTIMATED AT 12.17%. The portion of the contribution rate assigned to districts and intermediate districts for each fiscal year is all of the total percentage points. This contribution rate reflects an amortization period of 37 years for 1999-2000 and 36 years for 2000-2001 AND 35 YEARS FOR 2001-2002. The public school employees' retirement system board shall notify each district and intermediate district by February 28 of each fiscal year of the estimated contribution rate for the next fiscal year.~~

(2) It is the intent of the legislature that the amortization period described in section 41(2) of the public school employees retirement act of 1979, 1980 PA 300, MCL 38.1341, be reduced to 30 years by the end of the 2005-2006 state fiscal year by reducing the amortization period by not more than 1 year each fiscal year.

Enacting section 1. In accordance with section 30 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, total state spending in this amendatory act and in 1999 PA 119 and 2000 PA 297 from state sources for fiscal year 2000-2001 is estimated at \$10,724,335,000.00 state appropriations to be paid to local units of government for fiscal year 2000-2001 are estimated at \$10,666,875,300.00; total state spending in this amendatory act and 2000 PA 297 from state sources for fiscal year 2001-2002 is estimated at \$11,227,313,400.00 and state appropriations to be paid to local units of government for fiscal year 2001-2002 are estimated at \$11,211,486,600.00; and total state spending in this amendatory act and 2000 PA 297 from state sources for fiscal year 2002-2003 is estimated at \$11,438,573,800.00 and state appropriations to be paid to local units of government for fiscal year 2002-2003 are estimated at \$11,422,560,100.00.

Enacting section 2. (1) Sections 11k and 35 of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1611k and 388.1635, are repealed.

(2) Sections 20k and 98a of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1620k and 388.1698a, are repealed effective October 1, 2001.

(3) Section 1282a of the revised school code, 1976 PA 451, MCL 380.1282a, is repealed.

(4) Section 221 of 2001 PA 42 is repealed.

Second: That the House and Senate agree to the title of the bill to read as follows:

A bill to amend 1979 PA 94, entitled "An act to make appropriations to aid in the support of the public schools and the intermediate school districts of the state; to make appropriations for certain other purposes relating to education; to provide for the disbursement of the appropriations; to supplement the school aid fund by the levy and collection of certain taxes; to authorize the issuance of certain bonds and provide for the security of those bonds; to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state departments, the state board of education, and certain other boards and officials; to prescribe penalties; and to repeal acts and parts of acts," by amending sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 22a, 22b, 22c, 24, 25b, 26a, 31a, 31d, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32f, 32g, 32h, 33, 41, 51a, 51c, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 94a, 95, 96, 98, 99, 107, 108, and 147 (MCL 388.1606, 388.1611, 388.1611f, 388.1611g, 388.1620, 388.1620j, 388.1622a, 388.1622b, 388.1622c, 388.1624, 388.1625b, 388.1626a, 388.1631a, 388.1631d, 388.1632a, 388.1632b, 388.1632c, 388.1632d, 388.1632e, 388.1632f, 388.1632g, 388.1632h, 388.1633, 388.1641, 388.1651a, 388.1651c, 388.1653a, 388.1654, 388.1656, 388.1657, 388.1661a, 388.1662, 388.1663, 388.1667, 388.1668, 388.1674, 388.1681, 388.1694, 388.1694a, 388.1695, 388.1696, 388.1698, 388.1699, 388.1707, 388.1708, and 388.1747), sections 6, 11, 11f, 11g, 20, 20j, 24, 26a, 31a, 31d, 33, 41, 51a, 53a, 54, 56, 57, 61a, 62, 63, 67, 68, 74, 81, 94, 99, 107, and 147 as amended and sections 22a, 22b, 22c, 25b, 32a, 32b, 32c, 32d, 32e, 32g, 32h, 51c, 94a, 95, 96, 98, and 108 as added by 2000 PA 297 and section 32f as amended by 2000 PA 388, and by adding sections 18d and 25c; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

Ron Jelinek
Tony Stamas
Conferees for the House

Leon Stille
Dan L. DeGrow
Conferees for the Senate

Pending the order that, under joint rule 9, the conference report be laid over one day,

Senator Emmons moved that the rule be suspended.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

The question being on the adoption of the conference report,

The first conference report was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, as follows:

Roll Call No. 307

Yeas—22

Bennett	Gast	McCotter	Shugars
Bullard	Gougeon	McManus	Sikkema
DeGrow	Hammerstrom	North	Steil
Dunaskiss	Hoffman	Schuette	Stille
Emmons	Johnson	Schwarz	Van Regenmorter
Garcia	Koivisto		

Nays—13

Byrum	Goschka	Miller	Scott
Cherry	Hart	Murphy	Smith
DeBeaussaert	Leland	Peters	Young
Emerson			

Excused—2

Dingell	Vaughn
---------	--------

Not Voting—0

In The Chair: President

House Bill No. 4258, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the state institutions of higher education and certain state purposes related to education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002; to provide for the expenditures of those appropriations; and to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state departments, institutions, agencies, employees, and officers.

The House of Representatives has adopted the report of the Committee of Conference and ordered that the bill be given immediate effect.

The Conference Report was read as follows:

FIRST CONFERENCE REPORT

The Committee of Conference on the matters of difference between the two Houses concerning

House Bill No. 4258, entitled

A bill to make appropriations for the state institutions of higher education and certain state purposes related to education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002; to provide for the expenditures of those appropriations; and to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state departments, institutions, agencies, employees, and officers.

Recommends:

First: That the House and Senate agree to the Substitute of the Senate as passed by the Senate, amended to read as follows:

A bill to make appropriations for the state institutions of higher education and certain state purposes related to education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002; to provide for the expenditures of those appropriations; and to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state departments, institutions, agencies, employees, and officers.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF MICHIGAN ENACT:

PART 1

LINE-ITEM APPROPRIATIONS

Sec. 101. Subject to the conditions set forth in this act, the amounts listed in this part are appropriated for higher education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002, from the funds indicated in this part. The following is a summary of the appropriations in this part:

HIGHER EDUCATION

Full-time equated classified positions	1.0	
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 1,947,842,366
Total interdepartmental grants and intradepartmental transfers		\$ 0
ADJUSTED GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 1,947,842,366
Appropriated from:		
Federal revenues:		
Total federal revenues		4,900,000
Special revenue funds:		
Total local revenues		0
Total private revenues		0
Total other state restricted revenues		130,273,850
State general fund/general purpose		\$ 1,812,668,516
Sec. 102. CENTRAL MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY		
Operations.....		\$ 90,003,800
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 90,003,800
Appropriated from:		
State general fund/general purpose		\$ 90,003,800
Sec. 103. EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY		
Operations.....		\$ 87,637,200
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 87,637,200
Appropriated from:		
State general fund/general purpose		\$ 87,637,200
Sec. 104. FERRIS STATE UNIVERSITY		
Operations.....		\$ 55,520,300
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 55,520,300
Appropriated from:		
State general fund/general purpose		\$ 55,520,300
Sec. 105. GRAND VALLEY STATE UNIVERSITY		
Operations.....		\$ 60,095,400
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 60,095,400
Appropriated from:		
State general fund/general purpose		\$ 60,095,400

	For Fiscal Year Ending Sept. 30, 2002
Sec. 106. LAKE SUPERIOR STATE UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 14,268,700
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 14,268,700
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 14,268,700
Sec. 107. MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 325,982,300
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 325,982,300
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 325,982,300
Sec. 108. MICHIGAN TECHNOLOGICAL UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 55,241,600
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 55,241,600
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 55,241,600
Sec. 109. NORTHERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 52,012,900
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 52,012,900
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 52,012,900
Sec. 110. OAKLAND UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 52,384,700
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 52,384,700
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 52,384,700
Sec. 111. SAGINAW VALLEY STATE UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 27,393,300
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 27,393,300
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 27,393,300
Sec. 112. UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN-ANN ARBOR	
Operations.....	\$ 363,562,700
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 363,562,700
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 363,562,700
Sec. 113. UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN-DEARBORN	
Operations.....	\$ 27,993,300
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 27,993,300
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 27,993,300
Sec. 114. UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN-FLINT	
Operations.....	\$ 24,068,100
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 24,068,100
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 24,068,100
Sec. 115. WAYNE STATE UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 253,644,700
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 253,644,700
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 253,644,700
Sec. 116. WESTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY	
Operations.....	\$ 125,677,200
GROSS APPROPRIATION	\$ 125,677,200
Appropriated from:	
State general fund/general purpose	\$ 125,677,200

For Fiscal Year
Ending Sept. 30,
2002

Sec. 117. STATE AND REGIONAL PROGRAMS

Full-time equated classified positions	1.0	
Agricultural experiment station		\$ 36,848,700
Cooperative extension service		31,782,600
Michigan molecular institute.....		236,900
Japan center for Michigan universities		305,300
Higher education database modernization and conversion—1.0 FTE position.....		275,000
Midwest higher education compact.....		82,500
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 69,531,000

Appropriated from:

State general fund/general purpose		\$ 69,531,000
--	--	---------------

Sec. 118. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. - CESAR CHAVEZ - ROSA PARKS PROGRAM

Select student supportive services		\$ 2,173,450
Michigan college/university partnership program.....		652,050
Morris Hood, Jr. educator development program		165,100
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 2,990,600

Appropriated from:

State general fund/general purpose		\$ 2,990,600
--	--	--------------

Sec. 119. GRANTS AND FINANCIAL AID

State competitive scholarships		\$ 36,354,616
Tuition grants.....		66,100,200
Michigan work-study program		8,015,800
Part-time independent student program.....		2,903,000
Grant for Michigan resident dental graduates		5,052,300
Grant for general degree graduates		6,319,400
Grant for allied health graduates		935,100
Michigan education opportunity grants		2,280,300
Robert C. Byrd honors scholarship program		1,600,000
Michigan merit award program		125,023,850
Tuition incentive program/high school completion		5,250,000
GROSS APPROPRIATION		\$ 259,834,566

Appropriated from:

Federal revenues:

Higher education act of 1965, title IV, 20 U.S.C.....		3,300,000
Higher education act of 1965, title IV, part A		1,600,000

Special revenue funds:

Michigan merit award trust fund		130,273,850
State general fund/general purpose		\$ 124,660,716

PART 2

PROVISIONS CONCERNING APPROPRIATIONS

GENERAL SECTIONS

Sec. 201. Pursuant to section 30 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, total state spending from state resources under part 1 for fiscal year 2001-2002 is \$1,942,942,366.00 and state spending from state resources to be paid to local units of government for fiscal year 2001-2002 is \$4,050,073.00. The itemized statement below identifies appropriations from which spending to units of local government will occur:

Part-time independent student program		\$ 1,352,857
Michigan education opportunity grant.....		1,005,121
Michigan work-study		1,692,095
TOTAL.....		\$ 4,050,073

Sec. 202. The appropriations authorized under this act are subject to the management and budget act, 1984 PA 431, MCL 18.1101 to 18.1594.

Sec. 208. Unless otherwise specified, the institutions of higher education shall use the Internet to fulfill the reporting requirements of this act. This may include transmission of reports via electronic mail to the recipients identified for each reporting requirement, or it may include placement of reports on an Internet or Intranet site. Quarterly, the institutions of higher education shall provide to the appropriations subcommittee members, state budget office, and the fiscal agencies an electronic and paper copy listing of the reports submitted during the most recent 3-month period along with the Internet or Intranet site of each report, if any.

Sec. 209. Funds appropriated in part 1 shall not be used for the purchase of foreign goods or services, or both, if competitively priced and of comparable quality American goods and services, or both, are available. Not later than May 1, 2002, each university shall have available upon request information on efforts to comply with this section.

Sec. 210. (1) The funds appropriated in part 1 to state institutions of higher education shall be paid out of the state treasury and distributed by the state treasurer to the respective institutions in 11 equal monthly installments on the sixteenth of each month, or the next succeeding business day, beginning with October 16, 2001. Except for Wayne State University, each institution shall accrue its July and August 2002 payments to its institutional fiscal year ending June 30, 2002.

(2) The amount distributed to an institution shall not exceed the net appropriations plus additional distributions specifically authorized by this act.

(3) All universities shall submit higher education institutional data inventory (HEIDI) data and associated financial and program information requested by and in a manner prescribed by the state budget director. For universities with fiscal years ending June 30, 2001, these data shall be submitted to the state budget director by October 15, 2001. Universities with a fiscal year ending September 30, 2001 shall submit preliminary HEIDI data by November 15, 2001 and final data by December 15, 2001. If a university fails to submit HEIDI data and associated financial aid program information in accordance with this reporting schedule, the state treasurer shall withhold the monthly installments under subsection (1) to the university until those data are submitted.

(4) A detailed description of procedures utilized to arrive at the amounts appropriated in part 1 shall be submitted to each institution by the senate and house fiscal agencies.

Sec. 211. Funds received by the state from the federal government or private sources for the use of a college or university are appropriated for the purposes for which they are provided. The acceptance and use of federal or private funds does not place an obligation upon the legislature to continue the purposes for which the funds are made available.

Sec. 213. A state institution of higher education that receives funds under this act shall furnish all program and financial information that is required by and in a manner prescribed by the state budget director or the house or senate appropriations committee.

Sec. 214. (1) If section 274 of the income tax act of 1967, 1967 PA 281, MCL 206.274, is repealed, \$27,533,553.00 is appropriated and allocated as determined by the legislature for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002 for the public universities and the grant for general degree graduates. The \$27,533,553.00 shall be added to the base appropriations for each public university and the grant for general degree graduates.

(2) If section 274 of the income tax act of 1967, 1967 PA 281, MCL 206.274, is not repealed and if a state institution of higher education that receives funds under this act notifies the department of treasury regarding its tuition and fee rates in order to qualify as an eligible institution for the Michigan tuition tax credit under section 274 of the income tax act of 1967, 1967 PA 281, MCL 206.274, the institution shall also submit the notification and applicable documentation of tuition and fee changes to the house and senate fiscal agencies.

Sec. 215. All funds received under part 1 for the charter schools development and performance institute are intended to be expended on activities of that institute.

Sec. 216. By February 15, 2002, the department of treasury shall provide the state budget director, the subcommittees on higher education of the house and senate appropriations committees, and the senate and house fiscal agencies with an annual report on restricted fund balances, projected revenues, and expenditures for the fiscal years ending September 30, 2001 and September 30, 2002.

GRANTS AND FINANCIAL AID

Sec. 301. (1) Payments of the amounts included in part 1 for the state competitive scholarship program shall be distributed pursuant to 1964 PA 208, MCL 390.971 to 390.981.

(2) The Michigan higher education assistance authority shall implement a proportional competitive scholarship maximum award level for recipients enrolled less than full-time in a given semester or term.

(3) If a student who receives an award under this section has his or her tuition and fees paid under the Michigan educational trust program, pursuant to the Michigan education trust act, 1986 PA 316, MCL 390.1421 to 390.1444, and still has financial need, the funds awarded under this section may be used for educational expenses other than tuition and fees.

(4) If the Michigan higher education assistance authority increases the maximum award per eligible student from that provided in the previous fiscal year, it shall not have the effect of reducing the number of eligible students receiving awards in relation to the total number of eligible applicants. Any increase in the maximum grant shall be proportional for all eligible students receiving awards.

Sec. 302. (1) The amounts appropriated in part 1 for the state tuition grant program shall be distributed pursuant to 1966 PA 313, MCL 390.991 to 390.997a.

(2) Tuition grant awards shall be made to all eligible Michigan residents who apply before September 1, 2001 and who are qualified. Tuition grant awards shall not be made to students newly enrolled in a juris doctor law degree program after the 1995-96 academic year.

(3) The Michigan higher education assistance authority shall determine an actual maximum tuition grant award per student that ensures that the aggregate payments for the tuition grant program do not exceed the appropriation contained in part 1 for the state tuition grant program. By December 15, 2001, and again by February 1, 2002, the authority shall analyze the status of award commitments, shall make any necessary adjustments, and shall confirm that those award commitments will not exceed the appropriation contained in part 1 for the tuition grant program. The determination and actions shall be reported to the state budget director and the house and senate fiscal agencies no later than February 15, 2002. If award adjustments are necessary, the students shall be notified of the adjustment by the third Monday in February.

(4) Any unexpended and unencumbered funds remaining on September 30, 2002 from the amounts appropriated in part 1 for the tuition grant program shall not lapse on September 30, 2002, but shall continue to be available for expenditure for tuition grants provided in the 2002-2003 fiscal year. The use of these unexpended fiscal year 2001-2002 funds shall terminate at the end of the 2002-2003 fiscal year.

(5) The Michigan higher education assistance authority shall continue a proportional tuition grant maximum award level for recipients enrolled less than full-time in a given semester or term.

(6) If the Michigan higher education assistance authority increases the maximum award per eligible student from that provided in the previous fiscal year, it shall not have the effect of reducing the number of eligible students receiving awards in relation to the total number of eligible applicants. Any increase in the maximum grant shall be proportional for all eligible students receiving awards for fiscal year 2001-2002.

(7) All Ferris State University students enrolled at Kendall College of Art and Design prior to January 1, 2001 who were qualified for the state tuition grant shall continue to receive the dollar amount of the state tuition grant for which they were eligible until they graduate or are no longer enrolled at Ferris State University. For the 2001-2002 academic year only, any first year, transfer, or readmitted student enrolled at Ferris State University's Kendall College of Art and Design who has received notification by July 1, 2001 from the Michigan higher education assistance authority that he or she is eligible for a state tuition grant award shall receive an award for academic year 2001-2002 only.

Sec. 303. (1) Included in the appropriation in part 1 is funding for the Michigan work-study program established under 1986 PA 288, MCL 390.1371 to 390.1382, and 1986 PA 303, MCL 390.1321 to 390.1332. An effort should be made by each institution participating in the Michigan work-study program to assure that not less than 10% of those undergraduate, graduate, and professional students eligible to participate in the program are placed with for-profit employers no later than December 31 of each year for which funding is provided under this act.

(2) The Michigan higher education assistance authority shall allocate funds to institutions eligible for work-study money based upon each institution's specific Pell grant index and each institution's utilization rate of work-study funds for the 3 most recent years for which statistics are available.

(3) The Michigan higher education assistance authority shall set aside not more than 5% of the total work-study appropriation to process requests from participating institutions for allocation adjustments. Allocation adjustments shall be based on criteria set by the authority prior to making the allocations under subsection (2).

Sec. 304. (1) Payments of the amounts included in part 1 for the general degree reimbursement program established under 1974 PA 75, MCL 390.1021 to 390.1027, shall be made for all degrees identified in section 1(1) of 1974 PA 75, MCL 390.1021, except doctor of dental surgery, doctor of dental medicine, juris doctor law, and allied health degrees.

(2) The reimbursement rate per eligible degree shall be the equally prorated amount permitted by the appropriation, except that the amount of the reimbursement for each associate degree shall be 1/2 of the rate of reimbursement for the other degrees eligible under subsection (1) for the general degree reimbursement program.

(3) From the general degree reimbursement program, \$135,300.00 shall be provided to Spring Arbor College for the southern Michigan state prison program.

(4) From the general degree reimbursement program, \$200,500.00 shall be provided to the University of Detroit - Mercy for graduate research aid.

(5) From the general degree reimbursement program, \$30,100.00 shall be provided to Marygrove College for learning clinics.

(6) From the general degree reimbursement program, \$50,000.00 shall be provided to Finlandia University for career education programs.

Sec. 305. The reimbursement rate per eligible degree under the allied health degree reimbursement program established under 1974 PA 75, MCL 390.1021 to 390.1027, shall be the equally prorated amount permitted by the appropriation included in part 1.

Sec. 306. Funds disbursed through the degree reimbursement programs shall not be used by any recipient institution for theology or divinity programs.

Sec. 307. The auditor general may audit selected enrollments, degrees, and awards at selected independent colleges and universities receiving awards administered by the department of treasury. The audits shall be based upon definitions and requirements established by the Michigan higher education assistance authority, the state budget director, and the senate and house fiscal agencies. The auditor general shall accept the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) form as the standard of residency documentation. The auditor general shall submit a report of findings to the senate and house appropriations committees and state budget director by May 1, 2002.

Sec. 308. The sums appropriated in part 1 for the student financial aid and degree reimbursement programs shall be paid out of the state treasury and shall be distributed to the respective institutions under a quarterly payment system as follows:

(a) For the state competitive scholarship, tuition incentive, and tuition grant programs, 40% shall be paid at the beginning of the state's first fiscal quarter, 40% at the beginning of the state's second fiscal quarter, 10% at the beginning of the state's third fiscal quarter, and 10% at the beginning of the state's fourth fiscal quarter.

(b) For the work-study program, payments shall be made in 11 monthly installments from October 1 to August 31 of any year.

(c) For the part-time independent student program and Michigan education opportunity grant program, 50% shall be paid at the beginning of the state's first fiscal quarter, 25% at the beginning of the state's second fiscal quarter, and 25% at the beginning of the state's third fiscal quarter.

(d) For the general degree reimbursement program, allied health degree reimbursement program, Michigan resident dental grant program, and Robert C. Byrd honors scholarship program, 50% shall be paid at the beginning of the state's first fiscal quarter and 50% at the beginning of the state's second fiscal quarter after the number of earned degrees conferred and total amounts to be paid are certified.

Sec. 309. The Michigan higher education assistance authority shall determine the needs analysis criteria for students to qualify for the competitive scholarship program and tuition grant program. To be consistent with federal requirements, student wages may be taken into consideration when determining the amount of the award.

Sec. 310. (1) The funds appropriated in part 1 for the tuition incentive program/high school completion program shall be distributed as provided in this section and pursuant to the administrative procedures for the tuition incentive program/high school completion program of the department of treasury.

(2) As used in this section:

(a) "Phase I" means the first part of the tuition incentive assistance program defined as the academic period of 80 semester or 120 term credits, or less, leading to an associate degree or certificate.

(b) "Phase II" means the second part of the tuition incentive assistance program which provides assistance in the third and fourth year of 4-year degree programs.

(c) "Department" means the department of treasury.

(3) A person shall meet the following basic criteria and financial thresholds to be eligible for tuition incentive benefits:

(a) To be eligible for phase I, a person shall meet all of the following criteria:

(i) Apply for certification to the department before graduating from high school or completing the general education development (GED) certificate.

(ii) Be less than 20 years of age at the time of high school graduation or GED completion.

(iii) Be a United States citizen and a resident of Michigan according to institutional criteria.

(iv) Be at least a half-time student, earning less than 80 semester or 120 term credits at a participating educational institution within 4 years of high school graduation or GED certificate completion.

(b) To be eligible for phase II, a person shall meet either of the following criteria in addition to the criteria in subdivision (a):

(i) Complete at least 56 transferable semester or 84 transferable term credits.

(ii) Obtain an associate degree or certificate at a participating institution.

(c) To be eligible for phase I or phase II, a person must be financially eligible as determined by the department. A person is financially eligible for the tuition incentive program if that person was Medicaid eligible for 24 months within the 36 months before application. Certification of eligibility may begin in the sixth grade and continue until the time of enrollment in a participating institution.

(4) For phase I, the department shall provide payment on behalf of a person eligible under subsection (3). The department shall reject billings that are excessive or outside the guidelines for the type of educational institution.

(5) For phase I, all of the following apply:

(a) Payments for associate degree or certificate programs shall not be made for more than 80 semester or 120 term credits for any individual student at any participating institution.

(b) For persons enrolled at a Michigan community college, the department shall pay the current in-district tuition and mandatory fees. For persons residing in an area that is not included in any community college district, the out-of-district tuition rate may be authorized.

(c) For persons enrolled at a Michigan public university, the department shall pay lower level resident tuition and mandatory fees for the current year.

(d) For persons enrolled at a Michigan independent, nonprofit degree granting college or university, or a Michigan federal tribally controlled community college, or Focus: HOPE, the department shall pay mandatory fees for the current year and a per credit payment that does not exceed the average community college in-district per credit tuition rate as reported on August 1, for the immediately preceding academic year.

(6) A person participating in phase II may be eligible for additional funds not to exceed \$500.00 per semester or \$400.00 per term up to a maximum of \$2,000.00 subject to the following conditions:

- (a) Credits are earned in a 4-year program at a Michigan degree granting 4-year college or university.
- (b) The tuition reimbursement is for coursework completed within 30 months of completion of the phase I requirements.
- (7) Program payments shall not be used by any recipient for theology or divinity courses.
- (8) The department shall work closely with participating institutions to develop an application and eligibility determination process that will provide the highest level of participation and ensure that all requirements of the program are met.
- (9) Applications for the tuition incentive program may be approved at any time after the student begins the sixth grade. If a determination of financial eligibility is made, that determination is valid as long as the student meets all other program requirements and conditions.
- (10) Each institution shall ensure that all known available restricted grants for tuition and fees are used prior to billing the tuition incentive program for any portion of a student's tuition and fees.
- (11) The department shall ensure that the tuition incentive program is well publicized and that potentially eligible Medicaid clients are provided information on the program. The department shall provide the necessary funding and staff to fully operate the program.
- (12) When statutory provisions are enacted to provide for a tuition incentive program/high school completion program, the provisions of this section are superseded.
- (13) Any unexpended and unencumbered funds remaining on September 30, 2002 from the amounts appropriated in part 1 for the tuition incentive program shall not lapse on September 30, 2002, but shall continue to be available for expenditure for the tuition incentive program in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2003.
- (14) The department of treasury shall continue the outreach components of the tuition incentive program/high school completion program previously implemented by the family independence agency.
- (15) If the funds in part 1 from the Michigan merit award trust fund are insufficient to support the tuition incentive program, a sum sufficient to fund the tuition incentive program is appropriated from the general fund.

Sec. 311. To enable the legislature and the state budget director to evaluate the appropriation needs of higher education, each independent college and university shall make available to the legislature or state budget director, upon request, data regarding grants for the preceding, current, and ensuing fiscal years.

STATE UNIVERSITIES

Sec. 401. (1) Included in part 1 is \$6,356,023.00 to Wayne State University for the Joseph F. Young, Sr. psychiatric research and training program. Wayne State University shall use these funds for psychiatric laboratory and clinical research, training, and treatment services. Within the available appropriation, services shall not be denied to any patient who meets established research guidelines for treatment on the basis of personal financial circumstances, age, geographic residence, or projected/actual length of treatment as medically warranted.

(2) Wayne State University shall report the following information to the department of community health by November 1, 2002:

- (a) The number and type of psychiatric research projects funded by the appropriation described in subsection (1).
 - (b) The number and type of students trained and the location of training funded by the appropriation.
 - (c) Demographic data regarding the number and profile of patients to receive psychiatric services funded by the appropriation and a profile of the services provided.
 - (d) A summary budget outlining major expenditure categories and any first- and third-party reimbursements.
- (3) Copies of these reports shall also be provided to the house and senate fiscal agencies and the state budget director.

Sec. 402. The University of Michigan biological station at Douglas Lake in Cheboygan County is regarded as a unique resource and is designated as a special research reserve. It is the intent of the legislature to protect and preserve the unique long-term research value and capabilities of the biological station area and Douglas Lake. The legislature further intends that no state programs or policies be developed that would have a deleterious impact on the research value of Douglas Lake.

Sec. 404. It is the intent of the legislature that no funds, other than tuition and other revenues from law school students or private funds explicitly directed to the Detroit College of Law - Michigan State University law alliance, shall be used either directly or indirectly to support the joint law school. The auditor general or a certified public accountant appointed by the auditor general shall audit the financial and accounting systems of the Detroit College of Law - Michigan State University law alliance to determine compliance with this statement of legislative intent and report its findings to the state budget director, house and senate fiscal agencies, and members of the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on higher education.

Sec. 405. (1) There is created the higher education institutional data inventory advisory committee. The committee shall be appointed by the state budget director and shall consist of the following members:

- (a) One representative from the house fiscal agency.
- (b) One representative from the senate fiscal agency.
- (c) One representative from the state budget director's office.

(d) Three representatives of the presidents council of state universities. The presidents council shall appoint 1 representative each from a masters, a doctoral, and a research university.

(2) The committee shall provide for the general scope and direction for implementing the conversion and modernization of the state's higher education databases, for which funding is provided in part 1.

(3) The committee shall prepare a plan for the conversion and modernization effort. The plan shall include, but is not limited to, all of the following:

(a) The development of a data dictionary/glossary.

(b) The integration of appropriate federal, national, regional, and state databases.

(c) The assurance of the accuracy of the data.

Sec. 408. The legislature recognizes that the first and foremost obligation of the public universities is undergraduate instruction. The public universities are therefore encouraged to increase their commitment of tenured and tenure track faculty to undergraduate instruction.

Sec. 409. The amounts included in part 1 for public universities recognize 4 separate university groupings. Funding floors for the 4 groupings are established as follows:

(a) Funding floor of \$4,600.00 per fiscal-year-equated student for Eastern Michigan University, Ferris State University, Grand Valley State University, Lake Superior State University, Northern Michigan University, Saginaw Valley State University, and the University of Michigan-Flint.

(b) Funding floor of \$4,800.00 per fiscal-year-equated student for Central Michigan University, Oakland University, and the University of Michigan-Dearborn.

(c) Funding floor of \$5,800.00 per fiscal-year-equated student for Michigan Technological University and Western Michigan University.

(d) Funding floor of \$9,100.00 per fiscal-year-equated student for Michigan State University, the University of Michigan-Ann Arbor, and Wayne State University.

Sec. 411. A bipartisan work group comprised of members of the house appropriations subcommittee on higher education shall be created to review the criteria established for tier funding. The review shall include, but not be limited to, an objective review of instructional costs differences in providing graduate and undergraduate programs, programmatic differences between colleges and universities and their relative instructional cost differences, and any other criteria determined by the work group. The bipartisan work group shall make recommendations to the chairperson of the house appropriations subcommittee on higher education by February 1, 2002.

Sec. 412. By October 15, 2001, each state university shall provide through the Higher Education Institutional Data Inventory (HEIDI) reporting system the number of graduates in each field of academic study for the preceding academic year.

Sec. 418. No state funds shall be used by any state university to undertake a collaborative effort with any other university that would have the effect of increasing its enrollment of first-time professional law degree seeking students.

Sec. 421. Central Michigan University shall report by September 30, 2002 to the state budget director, house and senate appropriations committees, and the house and senate fiscal agencies information on the activities and effectiveness of the charter schools development and performance institute for which an appropriation is provided in part 1. Included in the report shall be an accounting of all revenues and expenditures of the institute, the names of the public school academies served, and the type of assistance provided to each public school academy.

Sec. 426. It is legislative intent that private bookstores that sell textbooks to university students and student governments that provide a book swap for university students have accurate and timely access to lists of universities' required textbooks in order to provide prompt and efficient service for students. It is further legislative intent that each state university allow students who are on financial aid or are receiving tuition grants to decide where to purchase their textbooks.

Sec. 433. (1) Included in part 1 is \$3,281,500.00 for the agricultural experiment station and \$2,910,000.00 for the cooperative extension service for project GREEN. Project GREEN is intended to address critical regulatory, food safety, economic, and environmental problems faced by this state's plant-based agriculture, forestry, and processing industries. "GREEN" is an acronym for generating research and extension to meet environmental and economic needs.

(2) The department of agriculture and Michigan State University, in consultation with agricultural commodity groups and other interested parties, shall develop project GREEN and its program priorities.

(3) Not later than September 30, 2002, a report shall be submitted by Michigan State University to the state budget director, the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on agriculture and on higher education, and the house and senate fiscal agencies for the preceding fiscal year regarding project GREEN projects. The report shall include, but is not limited to, the dollar amount of each project and a review of each project's performance and accomplishments.

Sec. 434. All state universities shall work with the Michigan economic development corporation (MEDC) to foster the state's economic development. The presidents council shall meet quarterly with the MEDC or its representative to discuss potential cooperative efforts and examine any strategies or issues of concern related to advancement of Michigan's economic development. The state universities, through its presidents council, shall submit a report that summarizes the discussion and identifies any conclusions or recommendations of the participants at each quarterly meeting. The quarterly report shall be submitted to the state budget director, the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on higher education, and the house and senate fiscal agencies no later than 30 days after each quarterly meeting.

Sec. 435. Each institution of higher education shall conduct a study on the installation of automatic sprinkler and other fire safety systems in dormitories, and shall report to the legislature on or before January 1, 2003 the existence or nonexistence of such systems and the estimated cost of installing automatic sprinkler systems where they do not exist.

MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. - CESAR CHAVEZ - ROSA PARKS PROGRAMS

Sec. 501. (1) Included in the appropriation for each public university in part 1 is funding for the Martin Luther King, Jr. - Cesar Chavez - Rosa Parks future faculty program, that is intended to increase the pool of minority candidates pursuing faculty teaching careers in postsecondary education. Each university shall apply the percentage increase applicable to every university in the calculation of appropriations in part 1 to the amount of funds allocated to the future faculty program.

(2) The program shall be administered by each university in a manner prescribed by the Michigan department of career development. The Michigan department of career development shall use a good faith effort standard to evaluate whether a fellowship is in default.

Sec. 502. (1) Included in the appropriation for each public university in part 1 is funding for the Martin Luther King, Jr. - Cesar Chavez - Rosa Parks college day program that is intended to introduce schoolchildren underrepresented in postsecondary education to the potential of a college education.

(2) Individual program plans of each university shall include a budget of equal contributions from this program, the participating public university, the participating school district, and the participating independent degree granting college. College day funds shall not be expended to cover indirect costs. Not more than 20% of the university match shall be attributable to indirect costs. Each university shall apply the percentage increase applicable to every university in the calculation of appropriations in part 1 to the amount of funds allocated to the college day program.

(3) The program shall be administered by each university in a manner prescribed by the Michigan department of career development.

Sec. 503. (1) Included in part 1 is funding for the Martin Luther King, Jr. - Cesar Chavez - Rosa Parks select student support services program for developing academically and economically disadvantaged student retention programs for 4-year public and independent educational institutions in this state.

(2) An award made under this program to any 1 institution shall not be greater than \$150,000.00, and the amount awarded shall be matched on a 70% state, 30% college or university basis.

(3) The program shall be administered by the Michigan department of career development.

Sec. 504. (1) Included in part 1 is funding for the Martin Luther King, Jr. - Cesar Chavez - Rosa Parks college/university partnership program between 4-year public and independent colleges and universities and public community colleges, which is intended to increase the number of academically and economically disadvantaged students who transfer from community colleges into baccalaureate programs.

(2) The grants shall be made under this program to Michigan public and independent colleges and universities. An award to any 1 institution shall not be greater than \$150,000.00, and the amount awarded shall be matched on a 70% state, 30% college or university basis.

(3) The program shall be administered by the Michigan department of career development.

Sec. 505. (1) Included in the appropriation for each public university in part 1 is funding for the Martin Luther King, Jr. - Cesar Chavez - Rosa Parks visiting professors program which is intended to increase the number of underrepresented minority instructors in the classroom and provide role models for underrepresented minority students.

(2) The program shall be administered by the Michigan department of career development.

Sec. 506. (1) Included in the appropriation in part 1 is funding under the Martin Luther King, Jr. - Cesar Chavez - Rosa Parks initiative for the Morris Hood, Jr. educator development program which is intended to increase the number of minority students, especially males, who enroll in and complete K-12 teacher education programs at the baccalaureate level.

(2) The program shall be administered by each state-approved teacher education institution in a manner prescribed by the Michigan department of career development.

(3) Approved teacher education institutions may and are encouraged to use student support services funding in coordination with the Morris Hood, Jr. funding to achieve the goals of the program.

Sec. 507. Each state institution of higher education receiving funds under section 503, 504, 505, or 506 shall notify the Michigan department of career development by April 15, 2002 as to whether it will expend by the end of its fiscal year the funds received under section 503, 504, 505, or 506. Notwithstanding the award limitations in sections 503 and 504, the amount of funding reported as not being expended will be reallocated to the institutions that intend to expend all funding received under section 503, 504, 505, or 506.

STUDENT PERFORMANCE REPORTING

Sec. 601. (1) From the amount appropriated in part 1 for state universities, the state universities shall systematically inform Michigan high schools regarding the academic status of students from each high school in a manner prescribed by the presidents council, state universities of Michigan in cooperation with the Michigan association of secondary school principals.

(2) The Michigan high schools shall systematically inform the state universities about the use of information received under this section in a manner prescribed by the Michigan association of secondary school principals in cooperation with the presidents council, state universities of Michigan.

(3) The Michigan association of secondary school principals in cooperation with the presidents council, state universities of Michigan shall provide a summary report to the state board of education, the state budget director, and the house and senate fiscal agencies by August 31, 2002 about the use of the student achievement information received by Michigan high schools under this section.

Sec. 602. From the amount appropriated in part 1 for state universities, the state universities shall inform Michigan community colleges regarding the academic status of community college transfer students in a manner prescribed by the presidents council, state universities of Michigan in cooperation with the Michigan community college association.

GENERAL REPORTS AND AUDITS

Sec. 701. (1) The auditor general shall audit enrollments at 5 randomly selected public universities. The audits shall be based upon the definitions and requirements established by the state budget director and the senate and house fiscal agencies. The audits shall be based on uniform reporting categories and shall include higher education institutional data inventory (HEIDI) data. The auditor general shall submit a report of findings to the house and senate appropriations committees and the state budget director no later than July 1, 2002.

(2) Student credit hours reports shall not include the following:

(a) Student credit hours generated through correspondence courses, credit by examination, or inmate prison programs regardless of teaching location.

(b) Student credit hours generated in new degree programs after January 1, 1975, that have not been specifically authorized for funding by the legislature, except spin-off programs converted from existing core programs that do all of the following:

(i) Represent new options, fields, or concentrations within existing programs.

(ii) Are consistent with the current institutional role and mission.

(iii) Are accommodated within the continuing funding base of the institution.

(iv) Do not require a new degree level beyond that which the institution is currently authorized to grant within that discipline or field.

(v) Do not require funding from the state other than that provided by the student credit hours generated within the program, either before program initiation or within the first 3 years of program operation.

(3) The auditor general shall periodically audit higher education institutional data inventory (HEIDI) data as submitted by the state universities for compliance with the definitions approved by the HEIDI advisory committee for the HEIDI database.

Sec. 701a. (1) Pursuant to section 701(2)(b), the following degree programs may be established:

(a) Bachelors

Central Michigan University

Social Work, B.S.W.

Ferris State University

Automotive Engineering Technology, B.S.

Ferris State University

English Major, B.A.

Ferris State University

History Major, B.A.

Ferris State University

Mechanical Engineering Technology, B.S.

Ferris State University

Sociology, B.A.

Lake Superior State University

French Studies, B.A.

Oakland University

Major and Minor in Women's Studies, B.A.

University of Michigan-Ann Arbor

Biomedical Engineering, B.S.E.

University of Michigan-Ann Arbor

Undergraduate Concentration in Organizational Studies, B.A.

University of Michigan-Dearborn

Criminal Justice Studies, B.A.

University of Michigan-Dearborn

Software Engineering, B.S.

(b) Masters

Michigan State University

Adult Language Learning, M.A.

Northern Michigan University

Criminal Justice, M.S.

Northern Michigan University

Training and Development, M.S.

Michigan Technological University

Applied Science Education, M.S.

University of Michigan-Ann Arbor

Bioinformatics, M.S.

University of Michigan-Dearborn

Environmental Science, M.S.

Western Michigan University

Marriage and Family Therapy, M.A.

Western Michigan University

Molecular Biotechnology, M.S.

(c) Doctorate

Eastern Michigan University

Technology, Ph.D.

Michigan Technological University

Computer Science, Ph.D.

University of Michigan-Ann Arbor

Bioinformatics, Ph.D.

University of Michigan-Ann Arbor

Public Policy and Social Science, Ph.D.

Western Michigan University

Interdisciplinary Health Studies, Ph.D.

(2) The listing of degree programs in subsection (1) does not constitute legislative intent to provide additional dollars for those programs.

Sec. 702. The principal executive officer of each institution of higher education receiving an appropriation under this act shall expend a portion of the funds appropriated to that institution to make a report to the auditor general, the house and senate fiscal agencies, and the state budget director within 60 days after the auditor general issues his or her annual report on the operation of the institution. The institution's report shall specify all of the following:

- (a) The recommendations of the auditor general implemented by the institution, including projected dates and resources required, if any, to achieve compliance.
- (b) The recommendations of the auditor general not implemented by the institution or implemented by the institution as modified.
- (c) The rationale for not implementing a recommendation of the auditor general or of implementing a recommendation as modified.

Sec. 705. (1) As part of the higher education data inventory (HEIDI) submission, each state university shall report the following information for the 2001-2002 academic year on or before October 31, 2001:

(a) Separately, the number of tenured faculty, tenure-track faculty, nontenure-track faculty, and instruction/research assistants who taught an undergraduate class section.

(b) The total number of undergraduate credit hours and section credits taught by each of the following:

- (i) Tenured faculty.
- (ii) Tenure-track faculty.
- (iii) Nontenure-track faculty.
- (iv) Instruction/research assistants.

(2) For the purposes of subsection (1), the following definitions apply:

- (a) "Tenured faculty" means a faculty member who has earned tenure.
- (b) "Tenure-track faculty" means a faculty member who has not yet earned tenure but is eligible to earn tenure.
- (c) "Nontenure-track faculty" means a faculty member who is not eligible to earn tenure.
- (d) "Instruction/research assistant" means an individual who is a master's or doctoral degree candidate.

(3) Each state university shall also report the following information for the 2000-2001 academic year, as part of the higher education data inventory (HEIDI) submission, on or before October 31, 2001:

- (a) Separately, the number of part-time and full-time faculty.
- (b) Separately, the number of tenured and nontenured faculty.

(4) For the purposes of subsection (3), the following definitions apply:

- (a) "Part-time faculty" means an individual who does not have a full-time appointment as a faculty member.
- (b) "Full-time faculty" means an individual who has a full-time appointment as a faculty member.
- (c) "Tenured faculty" means an individual who has earned tenure and who does not hold an administrative post.
- (d) "Nontenured faculty" means an individual who has not earned tenure.

Sec. 708. The auditor general shall conduct performance audits of not fewer than 3 state universities during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002.

Sec. 709. (1) An institution receiving funds under this act and also subject to the student right-to-know and campus security act, Public Law 101-522, 104 Stat. 2381, shall furnish by October 15, 2001 to the Michigan department of education, a copy of all material prepared pursuant to the public information reporting requirements under the crime awareness and campus security act of 1990, title II of the student right-to-know and campus security act, Public Law 101-542, 104 Stat. 2381.

(2) Each institution shall make this information available in electronic Internet format on their websites.

Sec. 710. By February 15, 2002, each public university that receives funds under this act shall report to the house and senate appropriations subcommittees on higher education and the house and senate fiscal agencies the aggregate dollar amount and the number and percentages of undergraduate students who receive need-based grants, merit-based scholarships and grants, loans, and work-study financial aid for the academic year 2000-2001.

Second: That the House and Senate agree to the title of the bill to read as follows:

A bill to make appropriations for the state institutions of higher education and certain state purposes related to education for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2002; to provide for the expenditures of those appropriations; and to prescribe the powers and duties of certain state departments, institutions, agencies, employees, and officers.

Sandra Caul
David Mead
Michael Switalski
Conferees for the House

John J.H. Schwarz
George A. McManus, Jr.
Don W. Koivisto
Conferees for the Senate

Pending the order that, under joint rule 9, the conference report be laid over one day, Senator Emmons moved that the rule be suspended.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

The question being on the adoption of the conference report,

The first conference report was adopted, a majority of the members serving voting therefor, as follows:

Roll Call No. 308**Yeas—32**

Bennett	Emmons	Johnson	Peters
Bullard	Garcia	Koivisto	Schuette
Byrum	Gast	Leland	Schwarz
Cherry	Goschka	McCotter	Scott
DeBeaussaert	Gougeon	McManus	Smith
DeGrow	Hammerstrom	Miller	Stille
Dunaskiss	Hart	Murphy	Van Regenmorter
Emerson	Hoffman	North	Young

Nays—3

Shugars	Sikkema	Steil
---------	---------	-------

Excused—2

Dingell	Vaughn
---------	--------

Not Voting—0

In The Chair: President

By unanimous consent the Senate proceeded to the order of
Resolutions

Senator Emmons moved that consideration of the following concurrent resolution be postponed for today:

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 11

The motion prevailed.

The question was placed on the adoption of the following resolution consent calendar:

Senate Resolution No. 105**Senate Resolution No. 106**

The resolution consent calendar was adopted.

Senators Gougeon, Johnson, Hammerstrom, Smith, DeBeaussaert and Emerson offered the following resolution:

Senate Resolution No. 105.

A resolution to honor Elizabeth W. Bauer on the occasion of her retirement as Executive Director of Michigan Protection and Advocacy Service, Inc.

Whereas, Elizabeth Bauer came to Michigan Protection and Advocacy Service, Inc., from the Michigan Department of Mental Health in July 1981. Michigan Protection and Advocacy Service, Inc., is a nonprofit charitable organization designated to implement the protection and advocacy systems for persons with disabilities pursuant to federal and state laws; and

Whereas, As Executive Director, Elizabeth currently oversees a staff of sixty in three offices statewide, a budget that exceeds \$4 million, and administers advocacy programs pursuant to law and policy established by the board of directors; and

Whereas, Elizabeth and her staff serve persons with developmental disabilities, mental illness, HIV/AIDS, and operates the Michigan Self-Help Clearinghouse, while implementing and evaluating programs and fundraising; and

Whereas, Almost 300,000 people have been assisted in achieving their objectives of protection from abuse and neglect; the right to free and appropriate public education; freedom from discrimination in employment, housing, and recreation; and access to health care, social security benefits, and public accommodations; and

Whereas, Ms. Bauer previously served the state as the administrator of the Developmental Disabilities Community Residential Services Division for the Michigan Department of Mental Health (DMH) in the metropolitan regional office, director of training for DMH, and administrator for special education for the Pontiac School District; and

Whereas, Elizabeth has a Bachelor of Arts in speech pathology from Mount Holyoke College in Maryland, a Master of Arts in education for exceptional children from Ohio State University, and is a doctoral candidate at Michigan State University in education administration; and

Whereas, She serves on the Advisory Council on Mental Illness, Michigan Department of Mental Health, Adult Foster Care Licensing Advisory Council, Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services, Mental Disability Rights International Board of Directors, and consults with other states' mental health boards; and

Whereas, Elizabeth Bauer has given testimony to committees of the Michigan Legislature, United States Senate, and United States House of Representatives, been a speaker at many national conferences, and received many honors and awards; and

Whereas, Elizabeth has shared her life since 1959 with her husband George and their children, Anna, Robert, Virginia, and Edward; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the Senate, That we hereby honor Elizabeth W. Bauer on the occasion of her retirement as Executive Director of Michigan Protection and Advocacy Service, Inc.; and be it further

Resolved, That a copy of this resolution be transmitted to Elizabeth W. Bauer as evidence of our respect and best wishes.

Senators Van Regenmorter and Young were named co-sponsors of the resolution.

Senator Byrum offered the following resolution:

Senate Resolution No. 106.

A resolution commemorating September 29, 2001, as Celebrate Recovery Day in Michigan.

Whereas, Alcoholism and other drug addiction are major health problems that affect hundreds of thousands of Michigan citizens of all ages, races, and social and ethnic backgrounds and in all communities. Addiction exacts huge medical, societal, and economic costs; and

Whereas, Thousands of health care providers have dedicated their lives to the recovery process and the education of the public about addiction and treatment issues; and

Whereas, Appropriate treatment and participation in recovery support groups have been shown to be effective in saving lives and reducing the number of people addicted to alcohol and other drugs; and

Whereas, National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month celebrates the tremendous strides taken by individuals and families in recovery; and

Whereas, The National Council on Alcoholism and Drug Dependence of Michigan and Project Vox have undertaken numerous local and statewide efforts to eliminate the unhealthy stigma associated with the disease of addiction, including the first annual Celebrate Recovery event; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the Senate, That September 29, 2001, be commemorated as Celebrate Recovery Day in Michigan. We encourage all citizens to show their support for the thousands of men, women, and youth who are in recovery from addiction by attending the Celebrate Recovery event in Lansing on September 29, 2001; and be it further

Resolved, That we recognize September 2001 as National Alcohol and Drug Addiction Recovery Month in Michigan and encourage all citizens to support this year's theme—"We Recover Together: Family, Friends, and Community."

Senator Emmons offered the following resolution:

Senate Resolution No. 71.

A resolution to amend the Standing Rules of the Senate.

Resolved by the Senate, That Rule 3.902 of the Standing Rules of the Senate be hereby amended to read as follows:
"3.902 FLOOR PRIVILEGE AND CONDUCT

A) A session of the Senate shall be defined, for the purposes of this rule, as any period of time when the Senate is in session, any recess, and any 15-minute period before the Senate convenes and five minutes after it adjourns. The Senate floor is defined as the Senate Chamber and adjoining Rooms S212, S204 (E. Lakin Brown Room), S204A, S201

and S207. Access to the Senate floor shall be restricted as outlined below during any session of the Senate, except that members of the public are permitted in Room S204 when a scheduled press conference is held there during session.

1) No person, other than the following, shall be admitted to the Senate floor:

- a) Senators or Representatives
- b) The President of the Senate
- c) The Governor
- d) Senators or Representatives in Congress
- e) Former Michigan Legislators, EXCEPT AN EXPELLED MEMBER
- f) The Secretary of the Senate and his or her support staff
- g) Legislative staff as authorized in guidelines issued by the Senate Majority Leader
- h) One representative of the Governor
- i) Members of the immediate family of a Senator or the President of the Senate
- j) Registered members of the media pursuant to Rule 3.901

k) A guest who has been invited by a Senator to offer the invocation, and an immediate family member of that guest.
 2) No registered lobbyist agent, including former Legislators, shall be allowed on the Senate floor. They shall not be allowed in the hallway behind the Senate rostrum, unless en route to or from the Lieutenant Governor's Office (S215) or the Elijah Myers Room (S208).

B) No person shall engage in any conduct on the Senate floor during any session of the Senate which undermines the decorum of the Senate. All persons who are admitted to the Senate floor shall observe the following guidelines:

1) No Senator shall speak until recognized by the presiding officer, unless the Senator rises to make a point of order.

2) Except as otherwise outlined in other Senate rules, no Senator shall speak on any matter not properly before the Senate.

3) No Senator shall speak more than twice in any one debate on the same day, without leave of the Senate, except the Senator who sponsored the matter under consideration, the Senator who sponsored the bill or resolution if an amendment is under consideration, the chairperson of the committee which reported it and the chairperson of the subcommittee which considered the matter. Each speech shall not exceed five minutes or, if submitted in writing, not exceed 1,000 words, except there is no limit on the length of a speech on Third Reading of Bills or an oral dissent statement.

4) No Senator shall speak impertinently, attack the motives of any Senator who proposes or advocates a particular position, use indecent language or other disorderly words, or refer to another Senator by name in a disparaging way.

5) No Senator shall use a display, exhibit, or prop on the Senate floor during discussions, debate, statements, or the announcement of the introduction of a bill or resolution.

6) No person other than a Senator or the President of the Senate shall pass through the well of the Senate Chamber which is immediately in front of the Senate rostrum.

7) No person shall pass between the presiding officer and a Senator who is speaking.

8) No person other than a Senator or the President of the Senate shall use the center aisle of the Chamber.

9) No person other than a Senator shall sit in a Senator's chair.

10) No staff shall be allowed on the Senate floor unless they wait in the majority or minority lounge or the lounge at the rear of the Chamber until they are needed by a Senator and shall then be seated at a Senator's desk.

11) No member of the media shall be allowed on the Senate floor unless he or she is in the media's designated area, except as otherwise provided in Rule 3.901.

12) No smoking shall be permitted on the Senate floor. Room S202 is a designated smoking area for Senators."

Pursuant to rule 3.204, the resolution was referred to the Committee on Government Operations.

Senator Goschka was named co-sponsor of the resolution.

Senators Hart, Byrum and Emerson offered the following resolution:

Senate Resolution No. 107.

A resolution to condemn all discrimination and bigotry against Arab Americans and Muslims.

Whereas, The terrible national nightmare of the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, has touched everyone who cherishes peace, freedom, and decency. In addition to the immediate victims of this murderous act, who come from all over the globe, in a greater sense, all people of conscience are victims of this attack. Prayers, donated blood, money, and offers of help have come from every neighborhood and community in Michigan; and

Whereas, The horror we feel at the loss of innocent lives is made worse when we learn of acts of bigotry directed to our Arab American and Muslim neighbors. There have been reports of acts of violence against people and property. In addition to those who have already been victimized by acts of ignorance and hatred, many other Arab Americans and Muslims are afraid to leave their homes. Occurrences in our state and other parts of the country of threats, violence, and vandalism against people who may be from the Mideast only compound a difficult and frightening situation and atmosphere; and

Whereas, The leaders of all political groups and all religious faiths have repeatedly called for Americans to treat one another with respect and dignity. After all, when we speak of patriotism and love of country, we must remember that treating law-abiding, hardworking citizens and neighbors with respect and understanding is a building block of patriotism. This is especially true for a country like ours that is comprised of the sons and daughters of all creeds and all parts of the world; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the Senate, That we condemn all discrimination and bigotry directed against Arab Americans and Muslims in response to the tragedy of September 11, 2001.

Pending the order that, under rule 3.204, the resolution be referred to the Committee on Government Operations, Senator Emmons moved that the rule be suspended.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

The resolution was adopted.

Senator Emmons moved that rule 3.204 be suspended to name the entire membership of the Senate and the Lieutenant Governor as co-sponsors of the resolution.

The motion prevailed, a majority of the members serving voting therefor.

Senator Emmons asked and was granted unanimous consent to make a statement and moved that the statement be printed in the Journal.

The motion prevailed.

Senator Emmons' statement is as follows:

I support this resolution because even in my little town we have two businesses owned by Americans who happen to have an Arab background, and it shocked me that even in my little town people would assume that these people are terrorists and treat them like they're some sort of second-class citizen. My husband has made a special effort to visit those businesses and tell them that, certainly, we abhor what went on, but we don't believe that they had anything to do with it. We've made a special effort—my husband has—to visit the coffee tables and talk to leaders and say we don't want to act like the people who did these terrorists attacks; we are different than them.

Introduction and Referral of Bills

Senators McManus, Koivisto, North, Gougeon, Gast and Smith introduced

Senate Bill No. 665, entitled

A bill to authorize the department of natural resources to convey certain state owned property in Roscommon county; to prescribe conditions for the conveyance; and to provide for disposition of the revenue from the conveyance.

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Local, Urban and State Affairs.

Senators Bullard, Garcia, Miller, Dunaskiss, Leland and Shugars introduced

Senate Bill No. 666, entitled

A bill to amend 1956 PA 218, entitled "The insurance code of 1956," by amending section 834 (MCL 500.834), as amended by 2000 PA 378; and to repeal acts and parts of acts.

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Financial Services.

Senators Goschka, McCotter and Shugars introduced

Senate Bill No. 667, entitled

A bill to repeal 1903 LA 540, entitled "An act to establish a board of county auditors for the county of Saginaw and to prescribe their powers and duties."

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Local, Urban and State Affairs.

Senators Goschka, McCotter and Shugars introduced

Senate Bill No. 668, entitled

A bill to repeal 1905 LA 653, entitled "An act to provide the manner of voting by the members of the board of supervisors of Saginaw county."

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Local, Urban and State Affairs.

Senators Goschka, Dunaskiss, Bullard, Hoffman, Garcia and Bennett introduced
Senate Bill No. 669, entitled

A bill to name a certain portion of highway business route US-27 the “Veteran’s Memorial Highway”; and to prescribe certain duties of the state transportation department.

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Transportation and Tourism.

Senator Hammerstrom introduced
Senate Bill No. 670, entitled

A bill to amend 1937 PA 306, entitled “An act to promote the safety, welfare and educational interests of the people of the state of Michigan by regulating the construction, reconstruction and remodeling of certain public or private school buildings or additions thereto, by regulating the construction, reconstruction and remodeling of buildings leased or acquired for school purposes, and to define the class of buildings affected by this act; to prescribe the powers and duties of the superintendent of public instruction, the state fire marshal, architects, engineers and school board members with respect thereto; to prescribe penalties for the violation of this act; and to repeal all acts and parts of acts, general, local and special, inconsistent with or contrary to the provisions of this act,” by amending section 2 (MCL 388.852).

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Human Resources and Labor.

Senator Gast introduced
Senate Bill No. 671, entitled

A bill to amend 1984 PA 431, entitled “The management and budget act,” by amending section 353c (MCL 18.1353c), as amended by 2001 PA 112.

The bill was read a first and second time by title and referred to the Committee on Appropriations.

Statements

Senators Hoffman and Cherry asked and were granted unanimous consent to make statements and moved that the statements be printed in the Journal.

The motion prevailed.

Senator Hoffman’s statement is as follows:

As we all know, two weeks ago today, our nation was attacked. Since that attack, I think it has brought out the best our nation has to offer. I just want to take a second to recognize one of our Senate staffers, who happens to be working in my office, Leta Schindler. Last Friday, the 14th of September, Leta took it upon herself to go to New York to ground zero with about 40 members of the Westwinds Community Church in Jackson. Over the next week, Leta and the members of the Westwinds Community Church served meals on 14th Street near ground zero in New York City. I thought it was appropriate that we take a second and recognize one of our own who, in their own special way, answered the call to duty. And I might add that she didn’t ask me if she could go; she just went. She knew that it was the right thing to do and that we would support her. I would like to ask Leta Schindler to please stand.

Further, Leta, I’d like you to come back here, the Senate Majority Leader has something he wants to present to you.

Senator Cherry’s statement is as follows:

I just wanted to comment on an article I saw from today’s *Detroit Free Press*. There’s a headline in the article that says “State to Hike Insurance \$57.00 Per Vehicle.” I wanted to take a brief moment to point this out to members because, ultimately, it’s not the state that’s going to hike insurance rates \$57.00 per vehicle. This is being done by the Michigan Catastrophic Claims Association, which is an organization comprised of insurance companies. They have made the decision to increase this fee by \$57.00 per vehicle. Ultimately, I don’t think that we ought to take the blame for their action because this is an action that private individuals have made. Obviously, it will be put on their insurance bills, but again, this is not the state. The state is not hiking this insurance fee. It’s a private association, and they ought to be pointed to as the people who are doing this.

Committee Reports

The Committee on Judiciary reported
Senate Bill No. 346, entitled

A bill to amend 1961 PA 236, entitled “Revised judicature act of 1961,” by amending section 2922a (MCL 600.2922a), as added by 1998 PA 211.

With the recommendation that the substitute (S-1) be adopted and that the bill then pass.

The committee further recommends that the bill be given immediate effect.

William Van Regenmorter
 Chairperson

To Report Out:

Yeas: Senators Van Regenmorter, McCotter, Schuette, Bullard, Dingell and Scott

Nays: None

The bill and the substitute recommended by the committee were referred to the Committee of the Whole.

The Committee on Judiciary reported

House Bill No. 4793, entitled

A bill to amend 1964 PA 170, entitled "An act to make uniform the liability of municipal corporations, political subdivisions, and the state, its agencies and departments, officers, employees, and volunteers thereof, and members of certain boards, councils, and task forces when engaged in the exercise or discharge of a governmental function, for injuries to property and persons; to define and limit this liability; to define and limit the liability of the state when engaged in a proprietary function; to authorize the purchase of liability insurance to protect against loss arising out of this liability; to provide for defending certain claims made against public officers and paying damages sought or awarded against them; to provide for the legal defense of public officers and employees; to provide for reimbursement of public officers and employees for certain legal expenses; and to repeal certain acts and parts of acts," by amending section 1 (MCL 691.1401), as amended by 1999 PA 205.

With the recommendation that the bill pass.

The committee further recommends that the bill be given immediate effect.

William Van Regenmorter
Chairperson

To Report Out:

Yeas: Senators Van Regenmorter, McCotter, Schuette, Bullard, Dingell and Scott

Nays: None

The bill was referred to the Committee of the Whole.

COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE REPORT

The Committee on Judiciary submits the following:

Meeting held on Wednesday, September 19, 2001, at 2:00 p.m., Rooms 402 and 403, Capitol Building

Present: Senators Van Regenmorter (C), McCotter, Schuette, Bullard, Dingell and Scott

Excused: Senator Peters

Scheduled Meetings

Appropriations - Wednesday, September 26, 2:00 p.m., Senate Appropriations Room, 3rd Floor, Capitol Building (373-6960)

Families, Mental Health and Human Services - Wednesday, October 3, 3:00 p.m., Room 100, Farnum Building (373-3543)

Farming, Agribusiness and Food Systems - Wednesday, September 26, 1:00 p.m., Room 405, Capitol Building (373-1725)

Government Operations - Thursdays, October 4 and October 11, 1:00 p.m. or later immediately following session, Senate Hearing Room, Ground Floor, Michigan National Tower (373-1707)

Great Lakes Conservation Task Force - Monday, October 1, 6:00 p.m., Monroe Community College, Administration Building, Dining Hall, 1555 Raisinville Road, Monroe; Thursday, October 18, 6:00 p.m., Northern Michigan University, Don H. Bollum University Center, Ontario Room, 2nd Floor, 1401 Presque Isle Avenue, Marquette; Tuesday, October 30, 6:00 p.m., City of Port Huron Municipal Office Center, 100 McMorran Boulevard, Port Huron; Monday, November 26, 6:00 p.m., Saginaw Valley State University, Curtis Center, 2250 Pierce Road, University Center; (Location information for the following meetings will be provided in a future notice) Monday, October 8, 6:00 p.m., Macomb; Monday, November 5, 6:00 p.m., St. Joseph (373-0797)

Human Resources and Labor - Wednesday, September 26, 1:00 p.m., Room 110, Farnum Building (373-1801)
(CANCELED)

Hunting, Fishing and Forestry - Wednesday, September 26, 8:30 a.m., Room 110, Farnum Building (373-2426)

Judiciary - Wednesday, September 26, 1:00 p.m., Rooms 402 and 403, Capitol Building (373-6920)

Legislative Retirement Board of Trustees - Wednesday, October 3, 3:00 p.m., Room H-252, Capitol Building (373-0575)

Senate Fiscal Agency Governing Board - Wednesday, September 26, 3:00 p.m. or later immediately following the Senate Appropriations meeting, Room S-324, Capitol Building (373-6960)

Senator Emmons moved that the Senate adjourn.
The motion prevailed, the time being 10:35 a.m.

The President, Lieutenant Governor Posthumus, declared the Senate adjourned until Wednesday, September 26, at 10:00 a.m.

CAROL MOREY VIVENTI
Secretary of the Senate.